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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present to the shareholders of the Company the annual report
and audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

Business Review

The Group is an electronic manufacturing services (the “EMS”)
provider offering comprehensive assembling and production
services of printed circuit board assembly (the “PCBAs”) in
the PRC that integrate research and design, selection and
procurement of raw materials, assembling of PCBAs, quality
control, testing, logistics and aftersales services.

During the Reporting Period, to diversify the Group’s existing
business portfolio and to broaden its revenue base, the Group
commenced the financial technology business by acquiring the
registered capital of a third party company, which is principally
engaged in provision of financial-related application platform
(the “Financial Application Platform”) and related maintenance
services (the “Platform Maintenance Services”). Detailed
information please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 25 July 2022 (the “Acquisition Announcement”).

New waves of COVID-19 disease occurred in various cities in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) during the Reporting
Period. The PRC government implemented pandemic control
and lockdown measures in response to the resurgence of the
COVID-19 disease, logistic and business activities were disrupted
accordingly. The economy was slowing down and the market
experienced weak demand, and thus, the Group’s orders from
our customers declined substantially in the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group decreased
by approximately 25.6% from RMB353.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB263.2 million for the Reporting
Period, which was attributed to the slowdown of the economic
in the PRC. The Group recorded a net loss of approximately
RMB7.1 million for the Reporting Period as compared with
the Group’s profit of approximately RMB10.1 million for the
corresponding period in 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FERE @)

Prospects

The global consumer electronics market demand is rapidly
changing by facing macroeconomic headwinds, the Russian-
Ukrainian conflict, local epidemics and other factors. The
economy environment in China and the world remains uncertain
and challenging. The Group is taking proactive measures and
making active responses in an effort to sustain the business and
actively diversify or expand our customer base and product base
to broaden the sources of revenue and diversify business risk.

The Group commenced the financial technology business
with the cooperation of third-party business partner during
the Reporting Period. The Group will actively expand this new
business to sustain the future growth of business of the Group.

Also, the Group will continue to invest in our development
of in-house capabilities and keep ourselves abreast of the
development of latest technology advancement in our industries
to secure more opportunities in the EMS business.

At the same time, the Group will keep more cautious on its
spending and expansion to reduce finance risk. We will continue
to strive a balance among the interests of shareholders,
employees and customers, and pursue long-term and sustainable
development for the Group.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to the management team and our staff for
their tenacious efforts and outstanding contributions to the
development of the Group. | would also like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers and
business partners for their continuous trust and support to the
Group.

By order of the Board
Li Hao
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEE R E IS &

Operating Results

Revenue by Customers’ Geographical Location
The Group’s revenue by customers’ geographical location, which
is determined by the location of customers, is as follows:

REXRE
REFHEMES S HKE
AEEREE IR E (ERNE S EET)
S RBEEIT :

Revenue for
the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HL

FEHWE
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETx ARET T
The PRC s 263,177 353,615
The United States of America (the “USA”) EFBEFRE([ERH]) 71 281
Total HET 263,248 353,896

The Group derives its revenue from (i) manufacturing and sales
of PCBAs and (ii) Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services. Based on the usage of the electronic
products which incorporated with our PCBAs, our PCBAs can
be broadly applied to electronic end products for three principal
industries, namely, telecommunication devices, loT products,
and automotive related devices. The table below summarises
the amount of revenue generated and as a percentage of total
revenue from each product category for the Reporting Period
and for the year ended 31 December 2021 respectively:

REBHWE KRB ()PCBARI R E MIHE &
ERERBFERFEEZRS - ERER
R FIPCBAM E F Ean - RIFIHPCBATR]
BEZRERANR=ZATETENEFRIHBER
BIEAEE YHMEBERNTERBEEE-T
AUARBEPERBE_E_—F+_H
St -RALFERREREENKRESER
hRdNEA DL

Revenue for % of total revenue for
the year ended 31 December the year ended 31 December
B2+-A=1+-AL BE+-A=1+-AL
FEHKER FEMMAREZAL
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
ZBIZf % #y —T--F —T_—-F 2%
RMB’000  RMB'000 %
AR®TR ARETT %
PCBAS for FARA DA 2 mm #) PCBA
Telecommunication devices ~ EilEE 131,643 183,485 (28.9) 50.0 51.8 (1.8)
loT products WEE B 89,421 142,253 (37.1) 34.0 40.2 6.2)
Automotive related devices  JSEFMEE 31,430 9,223 240.8 12.0 26 9.4
Others Hit 8,020 18,935 (57.6) 3.0 5.4 (2.4)
260,514 353,896 (26.4) 99.0 100.0 (1.0
Financial Application Platform £ BER T A &
and Platform Maintenance ¥4 % ER#%
Services 2,734 - 100.0 1.0 - 1.0
Total B 263,248 363,896 (25.6) 100.0 100.0 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EREF WM DN @)

Qur revenue generated from sales of PCBAs for
telecommunication devices decreased by approximately 28.3%
from approximately RMB183.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB131.6 million for
the Reporting Period, primarily due to dropped orders from
our telecommunication devices customers because that the
smartphone market experienced weak demand in the Reporting
Period.

Our Group recorded a decrease in revenue derived from sales of
PCBAs for loT products from approximately RMB142.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB89.4
million for the Reporting Period, which was mainly attributable
to the decline orders received from the Group’s major customer,
who was located in Shanghai city and the operation of which
were restricted due to the strict lockdown measures implemented
by Shanghai authorities in response to the resurgence of
CQOVID-19 Disease during the first half year of 2022.

Our revenue generated from sales of PCBAs for automotive
related devices increased by approximately 2.4 times from
approximately RMB9.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB31.4 million for the Reporting Period,
primarily due to the increased orders from the automotive related
devices customers with the maturity of production technology of
the automotive related devices.

Other revenue from PCBAS mainly include (i) PCBAs for industrial
use devices; and (ii) the revenue generated from the sale of
auxiliary and other materials. Other revenue decreased from
approximately RMB18.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB8.0 million for the Reporting Period,
which was mainly caused by the decreased orders from the
industrial use devices customers due to the slowing down of the
economy.

The Group recorded revenue derived from Financial Application
Platform and Platform Maintenance Services approximately
RMB2.7 million during the Reporting Period (2021: Nil) as a result
of the acquisition of the 60% registered capital of Shanhai Regan
Financial Information Services CO., Ltd.(the "Regan Financial
Information”), a company principally engaged in the provision
of Financial Application Platform and Platform Maintenance
Services. Please refer to the Acquisition Announcement for
detailed information.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB29.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RM24.6 million or approximately 45.6% as
compared with approximately RMB54.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Overall gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 15.3% for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately 11.2% for the Reporting Period.

Gross profit for
the year ended 31 December

EFREF=E
AEERHFEHENENOABARKE2047
BT BEE-_ZE-_—Ft+_-_A=t—HItHF
EHOAREAOBEELRLHARE246
BEILA456% BEEMNEHEE_-ZF
T—F+ A=+ —HIEFEMNH153% [
EREHEM11.2% -

Gross profit margin for
the year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=t-HL BE+-A=t-HL
EENER EEMNEANE
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
“EC-F ZT-—F 2y —FT-—F —T-—F 2E)
RMB'000  RMB'000 (%) (%) (%) (%)
ARET ARETR (%) (%) (%) (%)
PCBAs for FERA AT EE m A PCBA
Telecommunication devices ~ EFEE 17,953 34,580 (48.1) 13.6 18.8 (5.2)
loT products W AR EE 4,294 15,532 (72.4) 4.8 10.9 6.1)
Automotive related devices ~ TEMHEEE 5,444 1,483 267.1 17.3 16.1 1.2
Others Hi 427 2,385 (82.1) 5.3 12.6 (7.3)
28,118 53,980 47.9 10.8 15.3 (4.5)
Financial Application Platform 4 & FEFEF & &
and Platform Maintenance ~ F A #ER#%
Services 1,265 - 100.0 46.3 - 46.3
Total @it 29,383 53,980 45.6) 11.2 15.3 (4.1)
PCBAs PCBA

The gross profit for PCBAs for telecommunication devices
decreased by approximately 48.1% to approximately
RMB18.0 million for the Reporting Period (2021: approximately
RMB34.6million). The gross profit margin decreased to
approximately 13.6% for the Reporting Period (2021:
approximately 18.8%), which was primarily due to the decrease
in sales of telecommunication devices, while certain cost of sales
was fixed.

The gross profit for PCBAs for 10T products decreased by
approximately 72.4% to approximately RMB4.3 million for
the Reporting Period (2021: approximately RMB15.5 million).
The gross profit margin decreased to approximately 4.8%
for the Reporting Period (2021: approximately 10.9%), which
was primarily due to the decreased orders from our major
loT products customers and increase in cost of sales which
is attributable to the provision provided for the slow moving
inventory.

AR EMEENPCBANERN R L 448.1% =
MERBODARK180RET(ZE-—F:
PAREES46EET) - EFENRE R
DEMDI1B6% (T —F  £9188%) =+ B
EHEREMNESHEHERL  MAETHEKRA
EE °

PR Wy Bst 48 Gm #) PCBAR) ERRL A 41 72.4%
EREHENOARBI3BET (T - —
FOARK155FET) - EMERBFSH
B ELDH48% (ZF - —F :£10.9%) -
TERHRYBEBERTIEEP TENTE
BMAORBRBEENEFREEESEDS ABE
ERAIE N o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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The gross profit for PCBAs for automotive related devices
increased by approximately 2.7 times to approximately RMB5.4
million for the Reporting Period (2021: approximately RMB1.5
million). The gross profit margin increased to approximately
17.3% for the Reporting Period (2021: approximately 16.1%),
which was mainly due to the increased sales orders from the
automotive related devices customers with the maturity of
production technology.

The gross profit margin for application platform services was
46.3% for the Reporting Period (2021: Nil).

Other Income

Other income of the Group for the Reporting Period of
approximately RMB7.0 million (2021: approximately RMB6.4
million) mainly represented government grants and bank interest
income.

Other Losses, Net

Other losses, net mainly represented (i) net gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment; (i) interest income
from unlisted corporate bonds; (iii) dividend income; and (iv)
exchange difference. For the Reporting Period, other losses
increased from approximately RMBO0.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB2.0 million for
the Reporting Period, which was mainly due to the increased
exchange loss as a result of the depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”)
against Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), net off against increase in
interest income from unlisted corporate bonds and dividend
income for the Reporting Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised (i) relevant
employee benefit expenses; (ii) transportation costs; (iii)
depreciation; (iv) entertainment expenses and other expenses.
For the Reporting Period, selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB3.0 million (2021: approximately
RMB3.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately 11.0%
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2021. Selling
and distribution expense ratio remained stable at approximately
1.0% against revenue for both the Reporting Period and the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEET MmN @)

Administrative and Other Expenses

Administrative and other expenses mainly represented (i)
employment benefit expenses, (i) depreciation, (jii) professional
fee, (iv) rental expenses, (v) travelling expenses, (vi) utilities, (vii)
telecommunication; (viii) office expenses and other expenses.
For the Reporting Period, administrative expenses amounted to
approximately RMB39.6 million (2021: approximately RMB42.3
million), representing a decrease of approximately 6.4% as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease
in administrative and other expenses was mainly because of the
decreased bonus due to the unsatisfying results for the Reporting
Period.

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets and
Contract Assets

For the Reporting Period, impairment losses of approximately
RMBO0.3 million (2021: approximately RMBO0.2 million) was
made against the financial asset at amortised cost and the trade
receivables for customers who probably have credit risk.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs mainly comprised interest expenses on bank
borrowings and leases liabilities. For the Reporting Period, the
finance costs of the Group were approximately RMB1.2 million
(2021: approximately RMB1.2 million).

Income Tax Credit (Expense)

Income tax credits of approximately RMBO.5 million was
recognised for the Reporting Period, as compared to the income
tax expenses of approximately RMB2.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEET MmN @)

(Loss) Profit for the Year

As a result of the facts discussed above, the Group recorded a
net loss of approximately RMB7.1 million for the Reporting Period
as compared to net profit of approximately RMB10.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Non-controlling
Interest

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interest
decreased to approximately RMB2.0 million for the Reporting
Period (2021: approximately RMB2.8 million), which was due
to the decrease in net profit of the subsidiary of the Group in
ChongQing City for the Reporting Period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net Current Assets

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB144.3
million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: approximately
RMB130.5). The current ratio of the Group was stable at
approximately 2.7 as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2022.

Borrowing and the Pledge of Assets

The bank borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB8.0 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: approximately
RMB12.6 million). As at 31 December 2022, the above bank
borrowings were secured by bank deposits of approximately
RMB1.7 million (2021: RMB1.7 million); property, plant and
equipment with carrying amounts approximately RMB23.0 million
(2021: RMB25.0 million) and a corporate guarantee provided by
the Company.

Gearing Ratio

QOur gearing ratio, which is calculated by total borrowings and
lease liabilities divided by total equity, was approximately 5.8%
and 8.5% as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
respectively. During the Reporting Period, our bank borrowings
and lease liabilities decreased by approximately RMB7.6 million.
The gearing ratio remained low due to our low level of bank
borrowings and lease liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Capital Structure

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 October 2019. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company since then. As at 31 December 2022,
the number of issued shares of the Company was 250,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Foreign Exchange Exposure and Exchange Rate
Risk

The Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in RMB, US$ and HKS$. There are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies.
Management considers that the Group is not exposed to any
significant foreign exchange risk as at 31 December 2022
as there are no significant financial assets or liabilities of the
Group denominated in the currencies other than the respective
functional currencies of the Group’s entities.

Capital Expenditure

For the Reporting Period, the Group had capital expenditure of
approximately RMB12.3 million (2021: approximately RMB67.7
million). The capital expenditure was mainly related to the
additions of office equipment, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

Dividend
The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Employees, Emoluments Policy and Training

The key components of the Group’s remuneration package
include basic salary, and where appropriate, other allowances,
bonuses and the Group’s contribution to mandatory provident
funds or state-managed retirement benefits scheme. Other
benefits include share options to be granted under the
Share Option Schemes. The Group provides comprehensive
training and development opportunities to its employees on a
regular basis. The trainings are arranged according to needs
to employees, which are identified annually by individual
departments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EREF WM DN @)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 754 employees (2021:
891 employees) with a total remuneration of approximately
RMB74.9 million during the Reporting Period (2021:
approximately RMB88.8 million). The salaries of the employees
were determined with reference to individual performance, work
experience, qualification and current industry practices.

Pension Scheme

Pursuant to the relevant labor laws and regulations of the PRC,
the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are required to participate in a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”) operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of basic payroll costs to the Defined Contribution
Scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly,
(i) during the Reporting Period, there was no forfeiture of
contributions under the Defined Contribution Scheme; and (ii)
there were no forfeited contributions available for the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions to the Defined
Contribution Scheme as at 31 December 2022. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Defined Contribution Scheme.

Use of Proceeds

Our business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated
in the Prospectus of the Company date 28 September 2019
(the “Prospectus”) were based on the best estimation of future
market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing
the Prospectus. The actual use of proceeds was based on
the actual market development. The net proceeds from the
Share Offer received by the Company, after deducting related
underwriting fees and estimated expenses payable by the
Company in connection with the Share Offer were approximately
HK$91.9 million. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 26 November 2021 (the “Change of Use of Proceeds
Announcement”), having carefully considered the latest business
environment and development needs of the Group, the Board
had resolved to change the proposed use of part of the unutilised
Net Proceeds in the amount of approximately HK$7.2 million
originally allocated for (i) strengthening the Group’s product
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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design and enhancement capabilities in respect of the Group’s
PCBAs applicable to telecommunication devices and loT devices
PCBA; (i) upgrading the Group’s MES system and enhancing the
Group’s capabilities in information technology; and (i) upgrading

the Group’s existing intelligent warehouse, to working capital.
The following table sets forth the status of the use of revised

allocation of the Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2022 and the
date of the change of Use of Proceeds Announcement:

Actual use of

BEMEREREE EXRALEES - TR
R —F+_A=+—BNEXAERK
HRZAS BHEET RN
ERIBMR

BREFE

proceeds from
the Listing Date
to the date of Amount
change of use utilized
Actual net of proceeds after Remaining
Business objectives as stated in the Prospectus proceeds  announcement Reallocation reallocation balance
HETRBZEN
FrERERE
BBFE DERBNER ENARE
ARERFEEHRE FEFE  FRjERZ EfsE  CBANGE 23]
HKS milion HKS million HKS million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
Enhance our production capacty and efficiency 27 & R R 499 499 - - -
Enhance the level of automation nour qually R &S24 R R E 254
control and packaging system BELKT 76 76 - - -
Strengthen our product design and RARMERNEAEER
enhancement capabilfes in respect of our M E%ENAEPCBAY
PCBAs applcable to telecommunication EmfitRE%E
devices and loT devices 59 08 (1) - -
Further strengthen our research and E-SMAEMOTELN
Oevelopment capabilties 31 31 - - -
Strengthen our product testing capabilies for ~ BBEVEARNENHERTA -
loT products by setting up a cloud-hased EEANaMRBERN
simulation platform [ EE) 21 21 - - -
Upgrade our MES systemand enhance our 4R 5 EIMES R Jnzé % 369
capabilties In information technology [EERITEN 31 20 (1.1) - -
Upgrade our existing inteligent warehouse AREMEENBEEE 25 15 (1.0 - -
Repayment of bank loan and other borowings ~ EEFTEFRELIER 86 86 - - -
Working capital =6 9.1 9.1 72 72 -
91.9 4.7 - 72 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s capital commitment
amounted to approximately RMB3.2 million (2021: approximately
RMB3.2 million). The capital commitment was mainly related
to the acquisition of machinery and equipment to enhance our
production efficiency.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
and Significant Investment

On 25 July 2022, Wanhai Big Data Technology (Shanghai)
Limited* (B8 X 8B R (£)8) R A F)) (the “Waihai Big
Data”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an equity transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) with Regan Shiye
Group Co., Ltd.* (BIRE X EE AR A F]) (the “Regan Shiye”),
an independent third party, to acquire 60% of the registered
capital of Regan Financial Information for cash consideration of
approximately RMB7.0 million. And subsequently on 14 October
2022, Regan Shiye, Wanhai Big Data, Shanghai Wanhai Jinyuan
Business Management Company Limited* (L8 & &8 & K
¥EBHRA A (“Wanhai Jinyuan”) (being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Wanhai Big Data) and Regan Financial Information
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”), where the parties agreed to (i) amend the purchaser
as Wanhai Jinyuan instead of Wanhai Big Data; and (i) to extend
the long stop date to 31 December 2022. After the completion
of the acquisition pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Agreement and Supplemental Agreement in November 2022,
Regan Financial Information is owned as to 60% by Wanhai
Jinyuan and therefore Regan Financial Information has become a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Group also acquired an unlisted corporate bond with
principal amount of HK$20.0 million (approximately RMB17.9
million) for 1 year maturity at fixed interest rate of 8.0% per
annum and it was classified as financial asset at amortised cost
(2021: approximately RMB16.4 million).

* For identification propose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Proposed Change of Company Name

As part of the Group’s development strategies, the Group plans
to develop financial technology business. And thus, the Company
proposes to change the English name of the Company from
“Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited” to “Finance E Family
Holding Limited” and to change the dual foreign name in Chinese
of the Company from “iZ B B ZERER A 7l" to “EFle R
R BRR AR (the “Proposed Change of Company Name”);
which is subject to (i) the shareholders approving the Proposed
Change of Company Name by way of a special resolution at the
Annual General Meeting; and(ii) the registrar of Companies in the
Cayman lIslands approving the Proposed Change of Company
Name.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as of 31
December 2022 (2021: nil).

Event after Reporting Period

The Group does not have any important events after the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

ERERARERE
ERAEEBERERN —Ho  AEEHE
REBBHEREL - Bl - ARAAIEBEHEARQA]
% X % 78 /@ [ Confidence Intelligence Holdings
Limited ] ¥ 2 & [ Finance E Family Holding
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEEREREEENERIE

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hao (Z%) (“Mr. Li”), aged 51, is an executive Director,
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of our Group
and the cousin of Mr. Xu Shizhen. Mr. Li joined our Group
in March 2000 and has over 23 years of experience in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry. He is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development and overseeing the daily operation of our Group.

Mr. Li obtained his diploma in industrial electrical automation
from Wuhan University of Science and Technology (formerly
known as Wuhan Institute of Metallurgy) in July 1993. He
further completed a top-up degree in electronic and information
technology from University of Electronic Science and Technology
of China in January 2019 through online studies. From July 1993
to March 1996, Mr. Li worked as a sales manager in Shenzhen
International Business Data Co., Ltd* (R B X B AR
x A]). From April 1996 to July 1998, Mr. Li Hao worked as a
sales manager in Shenzhen Tefa Songli Electronic Industry Co.,
Ltd.* ORINFF LB FEZE B A F]), an electronic products
manufacturer. He then worked in Shenzhen Bolinshijia Modern
Households Co., Ltd.* (RIITIHEMERBRREARBRAA)
(formerly known as Shenzhen Xinwei Industry Co., Ltd.* (FIIITH
ZHEE AR A [)), a household products trader, as a deputy
general manager from August 1998 to February 2000. He has
been the director and general manager of Shenzhen Confidence
and Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic co., Ltd.* (B2 CGRII) BF4F
fR A A]) (the “Xinzhi Shenzhen”) since March 2000 and March
2019, respectively. From April 2017 to September 2021, he has
been the director of Confidence Intelligence, Inc. He also been
the director of New Trive Limited and New Trive (HK) Limited (T
i (BFB) BR A A) since January 2019 and January 2019,
respectively.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. Zhang Bizhong (5& £ #&) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 57, is an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Zhang joined our Group
in February 2002 and has over 28 years of experience in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing sales and operations of our Group.

Mr. Zhang obtained his diploma in physics from Zhejiang Normal
University in July 1988. From February 1990 to August 1992, Mr.
Zhang worked as a production engineer in Lianguang Electronics
and Plastics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* (Bt B F 8RB CRII) &
B2 7~ |]), an electronic products manufacturer. He then joined
Shenzhen Dinghan Electronics Technology Co., Ltd.* (F3I| & &
T T H T AR A 7)), an electronic technology service provider,
as a production manager from September 1992 to October 1995.
He then worked in Shenzhen Bao’an Tongbang Electronics Co.,
Ltd.* ORI E =M EFH R AQA]), a PCBA manufacturer,
as a factory head from November 1995 to February 2002. He
has been the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Confidence
since February 2002 and has been appointed as a director since
December 2015. He also has been the manager of Chongqging
Xinken Technology Company Limited* (EEZHB R AR A
A]), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October
2020.

Mr. Xu Shizhen (3 tt E) (“Mr. Xu”), aged 49, is an executive
Director and the chief financial officer of our Company and the
cousin of Mr. Li. Mr. Xu joined our Group in March 2000 and
is primarily responsible for the overall financial, accounting and
secretarial affairs of our Group.

Mr. Xu obtained his diploma in finance and accounting from
Wuhan University of Technology (formerly known as Wuhan
Automotive Polytechnic University) in July 1996. From September
1996 to December 1998, Mr. Xu worked as a sales manager in
Shenzhen Tefa Songli Electronic Industry Co., Ltd* (&3I4 2%
MY EFEZEHBR AR, an electronic products manufacturer.
He then joined Shenzhen Suzhu Co., Ltd.* (EIITTBEBR A F)
as a purchasing manager from January 1999 to January 2000.
He has been the chief financial officer of Shenzhen Confidence
since March 2000 and has been appointed as a director, financial
controller and secretary of the board since December 2015. He
also been the supervisor of Xinzhi Shenzhen since March 2019.
He also has been the executive director of Chongging Xinken
Technology Company Limited* (£ E {28 BB A 7)), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October 2020. He
also has been the executive director of Anhui Xinken Information
Technology Company Limited* (Z #5285 BB BR A F), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October 2022.

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Li Bigiong (Z £ IR) (“Ms. Li”), aged 50, is an executive
director of the Company and the human resource director of
the Group. She jointed our Group since November 2009 and
has above 20 years of experience in the electronic engineering
and manufacturing industry. She is mainly responsible for the
administration and human resources affairs of the Group.

Ms. Li graduated from Sichuan Xichong Yixing High School* (4
JIPEFE %2 B E2) in 1991, From February 1991 to September
2003, Ms. Li had worked at Huagao Wangshi Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (=& £ KR ORII) BBR A ) as the
supervisor of the Quality Control Department, mainly responsible
for overall quality control management. From October 20083 to
June 2004, Ms. Li had worked at Shenzhen Yudafu Electronics
Co., Ltd.* (RIYI T #H#E E E 7B BR A F]) as the supervisor
of the Manufacturing Department, mainly responsible for the
overall management and planning of production activities.
From July 2004 to May 2007, she had worked at Shenzhen
Jinyuantong Electronics Co., Ltd.* (ZII T & RBEFHR
‘A A]) as the supervisor of the Quality Control Department,
mainly responsible for overall quality control management. She
subsequently joined Shenzhen Juji Electronics Co., Ltd.* (3%
NHTEESBFBERRADA) from June 2007 to May 2008 as a
manager of the Manufacturing Department, mainly responsible
for the overall management and planning of production activities.
After that, from June 2008 to October 2009, Ms. Li had worked
at Dongguan Ruiping Electronics Co., Ltd.* (R i F &
A BR /A B]) as the supervisor of the Sales Department, mainly
responsible for handling customer orders and sales matters.
Since November 2009, Ms. Li has joined our Group and served
in various positions, including as manager of the Administration
Department, mainly responsible for administration and human
resources affairs. She is also the chairman of the board of
supervisors of Shenzhen Confidence Intelligence Electronic
Co., Ltd.* OFRIIMEREREE T HER A 7)) and the supervisor of
Chonggain Xinken Technology Limited* (EEZ 2R EH AR A 7))
and Anhui Xinken Information Technology Company Limited*( %
B2z B R EBR A A), our subsidiaries.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Hao Xiangjun (# #8 &) (“Mr. Hao”), aged 63, is an
executive director of the Company. He joined our Group since
April 2022 and has more than 26 years of experience in the fields
of economics and finance. He is mainly responsible for business
development strategy and operations of our Group.

Mr. Hao obtained a Bachelor’s Degree from the Northeastern
School of Heavy Machinery* (5 1t & A # 4% £ [ ) majoring
in mechanical engineering in 1982 and a Master’s Degree of
Mechanical Engineering from the Harbin Institute of Technology*
(%5 BB T % K ) in 2001. He also obtained a Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from the United Business
Institutes in 2016 in the United States of America and Executive
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from Lincoln University
in the United States of America in the same year. From March
1987 to August 1989, he was a deputy director of the Information
Center Editorial Office at the Harbin Economic Commission* (#&
BT % Z 8 9). He subsequently joined Harbin Planning
Commission* (M BB ™ 51 81 Z& B €) as a director of the
Dispatch Office in the same month and left in October 1991.
From October 1991 to December 1994, he was a deputy director
of the General Affairs Department at the Harbin Economic
Committee of the Communist Party of China* (F £ B & ™
&% & 8 9). He then joined the Communist Party of China’s
Policy Research Office of the Harbin Municipal Committee*
(RHEMBBBETEZ KM EZE) as a director of the second
division in December 1994 and was promoted as an assistant
inspector and subsequently as deputy director, before he left in
December 2000. In January 2001, he joined Shanghai Shenyin
Wanguo Securities Research Institute Limited* (£ /8 B R &
FEEM AT AR A 7)) as a director of the General Office and
left in November 2004. From December 2004 to April 2009, he
joined Shanghai Financial Working Committee of the Communist
Party of China* (£ E/8M & R T{FZ E ) and his last held
position was deputy director of the office of the committee, after
which he joined the Shanghai Financial Industry Federation* (_t
BRI ER A 2) as the secretary general in April 2009 until April
2019. He has also been a deputy director at Shanghai Institute of
Technology and Finance of Shanghai University* (_ /& K& i
IR 2 AT IE ) since December 2013. He has also been the
supervisors of Wanhai Jinyuan since September 2022.

* For identification purpose only
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Yuan Shuntang (RJEE) (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 50, is a non-
executive Director of our Group. He is primarily responsible for
providing strategic advice to the business development of our
Group. Mr. Yuan obtained his diploma in industrial electrical
automation from Wuhan University of Science and Technology
(formerly known as Wuhan Institute of Metallurgy) in July 1993.
Mr. Yuan worked as a sales engineer in Shenzhen Tianyuan
Finance Electronics Co., Ltd* (FI K TE R E T B R R 7)),
an electronic products wholesaler, from September 1993 to
June 1995 and joined Yantian International Container Terminals
Limited* (& [ B9 BR £ S 46 15 88 B BR 2 A1), a logistic company,
as an operation manager from August 1995 to October 2002. He
then worked in Shenzhen Haoyang Logistics Co., Ltd.* (&I
YEEEIEARMR A R]), alogistics company, as a sales manager
from November 2002 to August 2005. Since September 2005,
Mr. Yuan served as the general manager of Shenzhen Highway
Sender International Transport Co., Ltd.* (& JIl 1 /& & JIE 32
R EBRIEE R A A, alogistics agency, where he was
responsible for strategic planning and overseeing the overall
operation management of the company.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Huang Jianfei (Z &l 3F) (“Mr. Huang”), aged 53, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
our Group on 19 October 2022. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of our Group. Mr. Huang graduated
in July 1991 from the Tiangong University (X2 T ¥ KX &)
in the PRC majoring in chemistry. He later obtained a Master
of Business Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in April 1994. He has more than 10 years of experience
in the technology industry and business management. From
January 2000 to July 2005, Mr. Huang worked as a marketing
manager at Shenzhen Hengpeng Technology Development
Company Limited* (&Y 1E AR FHZE AR 2 F]) (“Shenzhen
Hengpeng”). In April 2015, Mr. Huang rejoined Shenzhen
Hengpeng as a vice general manager responsible for business
planning and marketing management. He subsequently left
the company in July 2018. Since November 2019, Mr. Huang
took the position of director of GuangDong BeiDou Mobile IOT
Industry Institute (&5 & 1t -7 ) ¥ 5k 40 = £ 556 ).

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund (& & &) (“Mr. Wong”), aged
38, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of our Group on 20 September 2019. He is the chairman of the
Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of our Group. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board. Mr. Wong obtained
his Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from Hong Kong Baptist
University in November 2007, Master of Science in Applied
Accounting and Finance from Hong Kong Baptist University in
November 2013, and Master of Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong in October 2016 and Master
of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong in August 2017. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). Mr. Wong has more
than 14 years of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing.
He joined Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an audit associate
in September 2007 and left as an audit senior in November
2011. Mr. Wong joined Patrick Wong C.P.A. Limited as an
audit manager in February 2012 and has been its practicing
director since March 2013. From June 2017 to May 2021, Mr.
Wong was the independent non-executive director of InvesTech
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1087) which is principally engaged
in the provision of network system integration. Mr. Wong is also
the independent non-executive director of Deyun Holding Ltd., a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1440) which is principally engaged in lace manufacturing
and dyeing service from December 2020 to September 2022.
Mr. Wong is currently a member of the Legislative Council of
Hong Kong.
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Ms. Mu Lingxia (£% &) (“Ms. Mu”), aged 52, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
18 October 2021. She is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee of the Group. She is responsible for providing
independent advice to the Board. She has above 20 years of
experience in corporate governance and management and
securities affairs. From June 1992 to April 2003, Ms. Mu had
served in different positions at Shenzhen Overglobe Development
Company Limited* (& Y1l i1 1 18 3 & i 2 B BR A &), including
secretary of the board of directors and representative of
securities affairs. Starting from 2003, she had served at
Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Company Limited* (3% 3|
mAETEY IR M AR QAR (Shenzhen Stock Exchange:
000078) as manager of the office of the board and representative
of securities affairs, until April 2016. During the period from April
2016 to September 2021, Ms. Mu (i) joined Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited* (& Il 1 /8 £ 22 45 &

A W E TR 1D B R A A)) (Stock Exchange: 8329) and served
in various offices, such as vice general manager, company
secretary, board secretary, financial controller and authorized
representative, and (ii) subsequently worked at the company’s
subsidiary, Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited* (88 T B 82 & 82 F R A7), as an executive
director and vice general manager. In October 2021, Ms. Mu
commenced her position as a partner at Shenzhen Value Online
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (RN B EEEFEEABEREER A A). Ms.
Mu graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong university in the PRC majoring
in Applied Economics and obtained therefrom a Master Degree
in Economics. She subsequently obtained a Master’s Degree
of Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Metropolitan
University (formerly known as the Open University of Hong Kong).
Ms. Mu is an associate of the Chartered Governance Institute and
an associate of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
She has also obtained the Certificate of Qualification of Board
Secretary” (B R @MW EEKFZE) issued by the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, the Qualification of Securities Practice* (3 % % #t %
A B &%) issued by the Securities Association of China, and the
Certificate of Accounting Professional issued by the Bureau of
Finance of Nanshan District, Shenzhen* (7 LU [& B/ UB).

* For identification purpose only
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Company Secretary

Ms. Jian Xuegen (f§Z R) (“Ms. Jian”), aged 37, was
appointed as the company secretary of our Group on 21
February 2019.

Ms. Jian obtained her Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from
the South China University of Technology in July 2008. She has
been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2019. She has also been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
December 2010.

Ms. Jian joined Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP Guangzhou Branch
in November 2008 and left with her last position as manager in
the assurance department in December 2016. From December
2016 to June 2021 and from January 2020 to June 2021,
she worked as financial controller and company secretary,
respectively, in the group of Hong Kong Aerospace Technology
Group Limited (formerly known as Eternity Technology Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1725). Since September 2019, she has been the company
secretary of Sprocomm Intelligence Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange in November 2019 (stock code: 1401). Since
September 2022, she is also the executive director of Deyun
Holding Ltd. (Stock code:1440). She has also been the financial
controller of Hope Faith Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Deyun Holding Ltd since November 2022.
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Senior Management

Mr. Yang Zougao (% £ &) (“Mr. Yang”), aged 46, is the
general manager of production of our Group and is responsible
for overseeing productions and quality control of our Group. He
has over 21 years of experience in the electronic engineering and
manufacturing industry.

Mr. Yang obtained his diploma in electrical engineering from
Hunan Industry Polytechnic in July 1998. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Yang worked as a technician in Dongguan Jinzheng
Digital Technology Co., Ltd.* (R 5= & I[E IS R H R A 7))
from February 1998 to August 2000. He worked in Dongguan
Jinzhong Electronics Co., Ltd.* (REEm & R EFTER A
Al) as an equipment officer from August 2000 to December
2000. He then worked as a production line engineer in BBK
Educational Electronics Co., Ltd* (3 £ 5% EEFER 2
A]), a company principally engaged in the sales and supply of
electronic products, from January 2001 to July 2001. In August
2001, he joined Shenzhen Confidence as the general manager of
production and became a director since December 2015.

* For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the trust
of shareholders and the public. The Board strives to adhere
to the principles of corporate governance and adopt sound
corporate governance codes to meet the legal and commercial
standards by focusing on areas such as internal control,
adequate disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
during the Reporting Period except the following deviation:

CG Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
of the Board and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Li is the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of our
Group, which was deviated from the CG Code. However, having
considered the nature and extent of our Group’s operations,
Mr. Li's extensive experience in the industry, familiarity with the
operations of our Group since its business operation, that all
major decisions are made in consultation with members of our
Board and relevant Board committees, and that there are three
independent non-executive Directors on our Board offering
independent perspectives, our Board is therefore of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers and authorities between our Board and the
management of our Company and that it is in the best interest
of our Group to have Mr. Li taking up both roles. As such, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of our Group
are not being separated pursuant to the requirement under code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board will also continue to
review and monitor the practices of the Company for the purpose
of complying with the CG Code and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices of the Company.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions
of Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed
that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and
was satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance
policy of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code provisions C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Li currently holds both of the chairman and chief executive
officer positions, as explained in the paragraph headed “Corporate
Governance Practices” above in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance and business. Their
skills, expertise and number in the Board ensure that strong
independent views and judgement are brought in the Board’s
deliberations and that such views and judgement carry weight
in the Board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the Board to maintain high standards
of compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting
requirements and provide adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.
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The Company annually assesses the independence of each
independent non-executive Director during their terms of
appointment. During the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report, the Company received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

The Board

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Hao (chairman and chief executive officer), Mr. Zhang
Bizhong, Mr. Xu Shizhen, Ms. Li Bigiong and Mr. Hao Xiangjun;
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yuan Shuntang; and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Chun Sek Edmund, Mr. Huang Jianfei and Ms. Mu Lingxia. The
number of independent non-executive Directors represents not
less than one third of the Board. The biographical details of and
relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 18 to 27 of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business development of the Group
and for effective leadership as all the executive Directors
and non-executive Director possess extensive experience in
management and professional knowledge in business, while the
three independent non-executive Directors possess professional
knowledge and broad experience in finance and business. The
Directors are of the opinion that the present structure of the
Board can ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board
and provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company and the Company.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 106 to 121. The Board is responsible for leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s business,
strategic decisions and performance and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board shall
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees. Board meetings are structured so as to
encourage open discussion, frank debate and active participation
by Directors in meetings. The Company provides the Board
with information and explanations that are necessary to enable
Directors to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

Each of Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Zhang Bizhong and Mr. Xu Shizhen has
signed a letter of appointment with our Company with a term of
three years commencing from 18 October 2019 and continued
thereafter. Mr. Yuan Shuntang has signed a letter of appointment
with our Company with a term of two years commencing from 18
October 2019 and continued thereafter. Each of Ms. Li Bigiong
and Ms. Mu Lingxia has signed a letter of appointment with our
Company with a term of one year commencing from 18 October
2021 and continued thereafter. Mr. Hao Xiangjun has signed a
letter of appointment with our Company with a term of one year
commencing from 1 April 2022. Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund
has signed a letter of appointment with our Company with a term
of one year commencing from 18 October 2019 and continued
thereafter. Mr. Huang Jianfei has signed a letter of appointment
with our Company with a term of one year commencing from
19 October 2022. These appointments may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.
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According to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation
shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment but as between persons who became or were
last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire will
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot.

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the members in general meeting. Any Director
so appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Any Director so appointed by the Board shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. Xu Shizhen, Mr. Yuan Shuntang, Mr.
Wong Chun Sek Edmund and Mr. Huang Jianfei will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”).

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of a diverse Board with
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives to
enhance the quality of its performance. All Board appointments
will be considered against selection criteria.
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The Company seeks to achieve the diversity of the Board through
the consideration of a number of factors in the Board members’
selection process, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background of the Board, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry experience, ethnicity
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and contribution that the selected candidate will
bring to the Board, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge
and skKills, including knowledge and experience in the areas
of EMS business, transportation and logistics, auditing and
accounting, economics and finance industry, technology industry
and business administration. Furthermore, the Directors range
from 38 years old to 63 years old, and comprise 7 males and 2
female.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity
policy and discusses any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration
and approval.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of
business. An AGM and an extraordinary general meeting called
for the passing of a special resolution shall be called by at least
21 days’ notice in writing, and a meeting of the Company other
than an AGM or an extraordinary general meeting for the passing
of a special resolution shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice
in writing. A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board
may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the
meeting.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a
Board meeting have connected relations, such Director shall not
exercise his/her voting rights on such proposal, nor shall he/she
exercise any voting rights on behalf of other Directors.
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Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board, committee and general meetings of the
Company during the Reporting Period:

UTEIBEEEFHREREMEABITHOAR
RAEFEER ZBEe@RRBERARENH
AAC B -

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HER/ERETRY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
gEzg ENZEE RE#ZEE yMzEe
Name of Directors BEng EE ] EE ] E ] EE ] BRRAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Li Hao iy 5/5* - - - 17
Mr. Zhang Bizhong RUERE 5/5 - - - 1
Mr. Xu Shizhen FEEE 5/5 - - - 1/1
Ms. Li Bigiong EXL Y 5/5 - - - -
Mr. Hao Xiangjun MRERE 4/4 - - - 17
(appointed on 1 April 2022) (R=B==
MA—REZE)
Non-executive Director FUnES
Mr. Yuan Shuntang RIEE LA 5/5 - - - 1N
Independent Non-Executive Directors B E#TES
Mr. Huang Jianfei BHFERE 2/2 11 - - -
(appointed on 19 October 2022) (R=B==
TR+ BEZE)
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund ERBLE 5/5 33 1 il 1
Ms. Mu Lingxia REELT 5/5 3/3 1 K 1N
Mr. Chen Zhong RALE 3/3 2/2 1 17 1N
(resigned on 19 October 2022) (R=B==
TA+ARER)
representing chairman of the board, the committees or the general meeting BEFG ZEQIRRREER
The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit EZ=E@CKV=AZE€  HEZXZEE
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (B EZE8g|) FHZE S ([FMEE
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee &) RIEZEZE € ([IRZZE <€) NE
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing aspects of the AR & EHKH L @ Eﬁ FFEZEgH
Company’s affairs. All committees have been established with R B T EZEBES E - 5 5 T & A B
defined written terms of reference, which were posted on the  FT 44 uk (www.hkex.oom.hk) KA A48 uh
Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company website  (www.szxinken.com)° FiE ZE € BRI EE 2

(www.szxinken.com). All committees should report to the Board
on their decisions or recommendations made.

All committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 20 September 2019
with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code for
the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor, to review the
financial statements and related materials and provide advice
in respect of the financial reporting process, and to oversee
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee comprises three members, all
being independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chun Sek Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Huang Jianfei and Ms. Mu
Lingxia. The Group’s accounting principles and policies, financial
statements and related materials for the year had been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
has held three meetings for discussion on the audit and
financial reporting related matters. At the meetings, the Audit
Committee had recommended to appointed the new auditor
of the Company to fill vacancy of the resignation of the existing
auditor of the Company, reviewed the final results for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and the Group’s internal controls and risk
management for the year ended 31 December 2021. Full minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are kept by the company
secretary. Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Audit
Committee meetings are circulated to all members of the Audit
Committee for comments and approval and all decisions of the
Audit Committee are reported to the Board subject to applicable
restriction.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor was invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings to discuss with the Audit Committee members on the
audit and financial reporting related matters. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee provided the Board with a briefing on the
significant issues after each Audit Committee meeting.
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The Group’s final results for the Reporting Period had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board
for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report is completed and
accurate, and has complied with the Listing Rules. There is no
disagreement between the Directors and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to the
Directors and senior management of the Group, to review and
evaluate their performance in order to make recommendations
on the remuneration package of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three members, all being independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Mu Lingxia (Chairman), Mr. Huang Jianfei
and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
has held one meeting. Full minutes of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are kept by the company secretary. At the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policies
of the Directors and the senior management as well as the
remuneration packages for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the year ending 31 December 2022 and the performance
of the Directors. Draft and final versions of the minutes of the
Remuneration Committee meetings are circulated to all members
of the Remuneration Committee for comments and approval and
all decisions of the Remuneration Committee are reported to the
Board subject to applicable restriction. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the website of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

EREERBRAT Fif 2022

AEERREPHNEFXERNRRESS
HWENEREZZESEEN EEXZZEEN
EEMHAFR  UERBNFRDTERERE -
VBT EMMRA -EFEEZZ RGN
BRZEINEZHBE T AL EE R DU

YWEES
FWEZEE@RN T NAFALA-THKIL
HBREETACEXEATANRE §H
HREREBEZNSREEEHENBEH
MERERBAZESSRHEEBER T
EABERBARARAZEZTNSRERE
ENFMASRHEBER FHZBE e
—HEKEER  ERBUFNTES  BIRE
Brt(ER)  BRBETERERELE -

REEHE FHEZESCRT - REH -
A

BE-HMEEE
EEECHFHBREUAREE TS -_—F+=
A=1+—HLtFEREBE_T-__F+=H
=T —HILFEHNFEEEERIE - WM
EEeRfEERER 2RBFWNEZESKE
HEBEHNE e e Ry R EREE -
DABIRE = B R - BRIEX B BEARS - &
AlFNE B e 2 MTEREHBRNESSMER -
FTHZE B ESE RN AR A KA
WuhER] -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TEERRE @)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Group has paid and accrued the amounts of approximately
RMB1.9 million, RBMB1.4 million, RMB1.0 million, RMBO0.3 million,
RMBO.1 million, BMBO0.1 million, RMBO.1 million, RMBO0.1 million,
RMBO0.1 million and RMBO0.02 million to Mr. Li, Mr. Zhang, Mr.
Xu, Ms. Li, Mr. Hao, Mr. Yuan, Mr. Wong, Mr. Chen, Ms. Mu and
Mr. Huang respectively, as Directors’ remuneration, for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Directors’ remuneration is determined based on a variety of
factors such as market conditions and responsibilities assumed
by each Director. As at 31 December 2022, there was no
arrangement in which the Directors waived their remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Board would follow a set of formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new directors
to the Board. The appointment of a new director has been
a collective decision of the Board, taking into consideration
the candidate’s qualification, expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment to his/her responsibilities within the Group.
In addition, all candidates to be selected and appointed as a
director must be able to meet the standards set out in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee was established on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, all being independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Huang Jianfei (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund and
Ms. Mu Lingxia.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has
held one meeting. At the meeting, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, reviewed the board diversity policy and other matters
of the Company. Full minutes of the Nomination Committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of the Nomination Committee meetings
are circulated to all members of the Nomination Committee for
comments and approval and all decisions of the Nomination
Committee are reported to the Board subject to applicable
restriction. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the website of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations
to shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

—
—

) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which
the Group is engaged in;

(8) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background and length of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,

knowledge and industry experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;
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(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7) requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for
achieving diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management,
the following procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out in the
selection criteria, possibly with assistance from external
agencies and/or advisors;

(2) The Nomination Committee and/or the Company
Secretary of the Company will then provide the Board
with the biographical details and details of the relationship
between the candidate and the Company and/or Directors,
directorships held, skills and experience, other positions
which involve significant time commitment and any other
particulars required by the Listing Rules, the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and other regulatory requirements for
any candidate for appointment to the Board;

8 The Nomination Committee would then make
recommendation to the Board on the proposed candidate(s)
and the terms and conditions of the appointment;

(4) The Nomination Committee should ensure that the
proposed candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the
Board, being particularly mindful of gender balance;
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(5) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess
the independence of the Director in accordance with the
factors set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Nomination Policy and report to the Board annually.

Whistleblowing policy

In compliance with the CG Code, the Group has implemented
whistleblowing policy to provide a well-defined and accessible
channel for reporting fraud, corruption, dishonest practices,
or other similar matters and guidance on how an investigation
would be initiated upon receiving a complaint. The policy also
protects employees who report fraudulent activities in good faith
and reasonable belief. The Board will monitor and review the
effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy from time to time.

Anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy

In compliance with the CG Code, the Group has implemented
anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. According to the Group’s
anti-corruption policy, all employees shall abide by the laws
and regulations of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal
activities. Employees shall uphold the code of ethics, advocate
fair competition and act against bribery. Any bribery, fraud,
money laundering and embezzlement are prohibited. Employees
must not accept or request any improper benefits including
banquets, gifts, securities, valuables and high-expenditure
entertainment activities from business partners, suppliers and
merchants, etc. When there is any alleged case in violation of
laws, regulations, code of conduct or Group’s policies, the Group
will investigate and impose disciplinary actions upon offenders
after verification. The Group also provides trainings to directors
and employees from time to time to ensure that they comply
and familiar with the anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy of the
Group. The Board will monitor and review the effectiveness of the
anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
the Group’s operations with applicable laws and regulations.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the CG Code provision C.1.4, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company had arranged to provide trainings
to all the Directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors participated
in the following continuous professional development:

HE—_Z2-_—"F#+-_A=+—B1LtFE &
ELRHETHFEHERRE

Training on corporate governance,
director’s duties, environment, social
and governance, and/or
regulatory update

FHLXER ESHE -

Big - #HBREBRR D

Name of Directors EENR ER BRI IEI
Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Li Hao LS v
Mr. Zhang Bizhong R WA EE S A v/
Mr. Xu Shizhen FFEESLAE v
Ms. Li Bigiong FERRKL v
Mr. Hao Xiangjun MAEE L4 4
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Yuan Shuntang RIEE LA v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Huang Jianfei =RFELAE v
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund EERBELE 4
Ms. Mu Lingxia REBRLT v

External Auditor’s Remuneration

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 28 October 2022 and the
Company appointed Mazars CPA Limited as the external auditor
of the Company with effect from 28 October 2022 to fill the
vacancy following the resignation of PwC and to hold office
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company. There was no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditor. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the fee paid/payable to Mazars CPA Limited,
in respect of its audit services provided to the Company was
approximately RMB1.3 million, and the fee paid to PWC, in
respect of its non-audit services provided to the Company was
approximately RMBO.4 million.
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Internal Control

The Company does not have an internal audit department and
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business and structure. The
Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system and risk management to safeguard the investments
of the shareholders and Group’s assets and reviewing the
effectiveness of such through Audit Committee on an annual
basis. The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system
and risk management of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations. An annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group will be conducted.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also engaged an
independent internal control adviser to carry out review on the
internal control system and risk management system of the
Group. The review involves all material monitoring aspects,
including but not limited to finance, operation, compliance and
risk management. The adviser has conducted analysis and
independent assessment on the adequacy and the effectiveness
of the internal control system and risk management of the Group,
and has submitted the findings and recommendations to the
Audit Committee and the Board. The Board is of the view that
the internal control measures and risk management in place are
adequate and effective to safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Group’s assets.

Delegation by the Board

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and
policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance and sets appropriate
policies for risk management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic
objectives. The Board delegates the implementation of strategies
and day-to-day operation of the Group to the management.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Jian has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company since February 2019 and is responsible for overseeing
all the company secretarial matters of the Group. In the opinion
of the Board, Ms. Jian possesses the necessary qualification and
experience, and is capable of performing the functions of the
company secretary. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
Ms. Jian confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training. The Company will provide fund for
Ms. Jian to take no less than 15 hours of appropriate professional
training in each financial year as required under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meetings
Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article
72 of the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set
out above in the paragraph headed “Proceedings at general
meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by that person (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and
that (if then notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders of the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.
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Investors Relations

The Company believes that effective communication with the
investors is essential for enhancing investors’ knowledge and
understanding of the Company. Information of the Company is
disseminated to the shareholders in the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

e  Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and Stock
Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principle place
of business in Hong Kong.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
the guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends
are to be declared and paid to the Shareholders and the level
of dividend to be paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board shall take into account, among others,

—
—

) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

(2) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(8) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(4) the Group’s liquidity position;
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(5) interest of shareholder;
(6) taxation consideration;
(7) potential effect on creditworthiness;

(8) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

(9) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong
and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Company
does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The
Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be
used as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and
the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Constitutional Documents

On 20 September 2019, the Company has adopted an amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association which
had been uploaded to the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. On 8 December 2022, the Company proposes
to amend the current memorandum and articles of association
for the purpose of (i) conforming with the core shareholder
protection standards set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules
which took effect on 1 January 2022; and (ii) incorporating
other consequential and housekeeping amendments (the
“Amendments”). These Amendments are subject to the approval
by the shareholders of the Company by way of a special
resolution at the AGM.
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Scope and Reporting Period

The Board is pleased to present its first Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) report, which highlights its ESG
performance from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”).

This ESG report was prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by the Stock Exchange.

The Group is mainly engaged in provision of electronic
manufacturing service and over 90% of its revenue derived
from the PRC market. The scope of this ESG report covers
the Group’s business in the PRC, where the Group’s principal
operations and manufacturing plant are located (the “Factory”),
and its major revenue is derived. The Group’s operations outside
the PRC are not included in the scope as they do not have
significant environmental and social impacts.

Reporting Principles

The reporting principles of this ESG report emphasise the
following areas:

° Materiality: The threshold at which environmental, social
and governance issues become sufficiently important to
investors and other stakeholders is the core content of this
ESG report.

e  Measurability: The key performance indicators used to
assess the effectiveness of ESG policies.

e  Consistency: Information in this ESG report is consistently
presented. If there are any changes in methods or key
performance indicators used or other factors affecting a
meaningful comparison, these changes will be disclosed in
this ESG report.

° Balance: The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by
the reader.
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The Group applied the principle of materiality to determine the
scope of this ESG report. The scope of this ESG report covers
the Group’s business and all entities in the PRC. The Group’s
operations outside the PRC were not included in the scope as
they do not have significant environmental and social impacts.

ESG Governance

The Group strictly follows its established ESG policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives in order to ensure
a sustainable business development. The structure of ESG
governance mainly comprised of two components, namely the
board of directors (the “Board”) and the management team.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting by overseeing the overall governance and
progress of the Group’s ESG management system, policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives.

Management of the Group is responsible for the collection and
analysis of ESG data, implementation of appropriate strategies
to improve the Group’s ESG performance, assessment of
whether current ESG policies and improvement measures are
effective, compliance with relevant ESG laws and regulations
and the reporting of major issues to the Board. To assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies, management sets
key performance indicators and compares the indicators of
current year with those of prior year. Based on the results of this
comparison, ESG reports and the feedback from stakeholders,
the Board reviews the progress made by the Group against its
ESG-related goals and targets. The relevance of ESG-related
goals and targets to the Group’s business operations are
determined by regular communications with stakeholders.

The data and information in this ESG report are sourced from
the relevant documents, reports, statistical data, management
and operation information collected by the Group. The Board has
reviewed the contents of this ESG report.
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ESG Strategies
Key ESG strategies adopted by the Group are set out below:

e |dentify material and relevant ESG issues through regular
communications with stakeholders

° Perform materiality assessment on the identified ESG issues
by considering their potential impact on the environment,
society as well as the business operations, financial
performance and stakeholders of the Group

e Prioritise the identified ESG issues and design effective
strategies to mitigate these issues

e Review the effectiveness of ESG strategies on an annual
basis

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group fully understands that balancing the expectations
and needs of different stakeholders is the focus of corporate
sustainable development. Through listening to the interests of our
stakeholders, we understand the sustainable development risks
and opportunities confronting the Group from different aspects,
and develop corresponding policies and implement various
environmental, social and governance measures. The Group
maintains an open and transparent dialogue with its stakeholders
through various channels including meetings, trade exhibitions,
surveys, seminars and workshops and reflect their opinions
in the report. The data and information in this ESG report are
sourced from the relevant documents, reports, statistical data,
management and operation information collected by the Group.
The Board has reviewed the contents of this ESG report.
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The following table summarises the main expectations and TR ANEEMZHF O EZFIZAEE D
concerns of the key stakeholders identified by the Group, and the ZHEMETFNEZRULEENEIEE

corresponding management responses. E
Stakeholders Communication Channel Management responses/Key Concerns
Mz EEE BERE ERELOE TERE
Governments and e Compliance with laws and regulations e Tax compliance
regulatory bodies [EAS D7 NE Drrgs ) BMBEH
BT R EEE g e Corresponding government policies ~ ® Regulatory compliance
AP U SR EEaR
e Business ethics
HESE )
Shareholders e Financial results e Financial performance
&S YR i BERIR
e Corporate report and announcement e  Corporate governance
TERERAE TEER
e (General meeting e Risk management and internal control
N [ ez B 2R J% A B EL
Employees e Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
EE BEERTA BT
e Salary and benefits e Competitive salary and employee
FremEf benefits
e Safe working environment BRFNNG S REERF
ZR2TERIR e To provide trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
REBRBFIREAZZEH
Customers e Customer compliant mechanism e Product liability
LN B P A% e EmAE
e (Customer rights and interests e (Customer privacy protection
protection EPRBALIRE
BEFERRE
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation e To build a responsible supply chain
HrEry BEHEE BEuBEAaHERE
e Business ethics and credibility e To perform the contract according to
PR T RESR law
BERBITEH
Community and the public e Environmental protection e Community investment
& AR RRRE NECE ]
e Public donation
EEZEA
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Materiality Assessment

With reference to the scopes as required under the ESG
Reporting Guide and taking into consideration of the Group’s
business operations, the Group identified the following
environmental, social and operating issues that are material
and relevant to the Group’s business operations during the year
ended 31 December 2022. If the Group does not implement
effective strategies to monitor and solve these issues, these
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issues may affect the Group’s financial condition or operating
performance. Further, the Group made a materiality assessment

on these environmental, social and operating issues by

conducting interviews with its stakeholders.

Environmental issues

Social issues

HekELREETER MG -

Operating issues

RIGHE HEME EEME
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement  15. Economic value generated
2. Energy consumption 9.  Community investment 16. Corporate governance
3. Water consumption 10. Occupational health and safety 17. Anti-corruption
4,  Waste 11. Labour standards in supply 18. Supply chain management
5.  Saving energy measures chain 19. Customer satisfaction
6. Use of raw materials and 12. Training and development 20. Customer privacy
packaging materials 13. Employee welfare
7. Compliance with laws 14. Inclusion and equal
and regulations relating to opportunities
environmental protection
1. RERBHN 8. EiitELH 15. PREAKEEE
2. BERERE 9. HEKE 16. REER
3. FK 10. BEREERZE 17. RES
4. FBEY 1. HEES TIRE 18. fEREER
5. EigLIEIE 12, FIl R ER 19. BEPWEE
6. FEARMHKBEDH 13. EEEH 20. EFPME
7. BTRBEREEBEERER 14, HERTFERS
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The Group prioritised the above-mentioned environmental, social AEEBELEE FMIRE LR EEMN
and operating issues in terms of their importance to the Group’s ¥ ARE B FIZFEHAREE R EKELHNE BN -
stakeholders and business operations.

Importance to the Group’s stakeholders

and business operations ESG risks
HASBEFZHAEREBEELNEEMS BE - HERERER

High = 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,14,15,16, 17,18, 19, 20
Medium H 10, 11, 12,13

Low 1K 8,9

Based on the results of the Group’s materiality assessment, the RIEAREEFBNEEHT(HER  KEFBE
Group would formulate and implement appropriate strategies to & & B i i & 5 B A B8 8l & R R B 3 1 [
monitor and solve the identified issues and to achieve sustainable B FIH A[FHEHEKEE

business development.

Contact us Bt 4% 3R 1M

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and  AR&EBEEDNIFERMES R LiESE B gt A
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of this #H{HEFANEFMFERENRKIR B AR A
Report or the Group’s performances in sustainable development T E&L ¥ mBHIBHESER o

to our principal place of business.
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Environment

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect
the environment and it has implemented policies to
reduce emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of
resources. In addition, we regularly hold training activities to
raise employees’ awareness of environmental protection.
The contents of training include environmental pollution and
management conditions of the company, environmental
policies and guidelines, environmental laws and regulations
and other requirements, the company’s environmental
factors and management systems, and energy conservation
and emission reduction.

The Group’s operations are subject to certain environmental
requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC, such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (FF 2 A R0
IRIBIREE), the Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact
Assessment (2 A R EFB IR I% & £ 51E %), the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(AR EMBE KIS BT AE), the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (# 2
AR FEFEKRFSEFHEE), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Pollution From Environmental
Noise (# #E A R MBI IR TR E )5 2 0778)%) and the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste (H 2= A R 2 [0 & 88 B2 ¥7))5 1R
BHRE).

These laws and regulations govern a broad range of
environmental matters, including air pollution, noise
emissions and water and waste discharge. The Group’s
business operations in the PRC should comply with laws
and regulations concerning the environment protection.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group did not record any non-compliance with applicable
environmental requirements that resulted in prosecution,
penalty, administrative fine or sanction being imposed
against the Group.

EREERBRAT Fif 2022

7 15
AEBRAREERORE  LERH
SRUNBLE (A RBIL AR <o)
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A.1 Emissions A1 BER
In order to comply with the applicable environmental AETHRARRZEZZ A5EHCE
protection laws, the Group has implemented e 3R AR BUER LA > 22 ﬁ&*ﬁm‘

environmental protection policies, reducing air and
water pollution, paper consumption, and electricity
consumption. During the year ended 31 December
2022, sources of the Group’s emissions mainly
included consumption of petrol and electricity
consumption.

(i)  Air pollutant emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
air pollutant emissions were mainly related to
petrol consumption for the use of the Group’s
self-owned vehicles, which contributed to the
emission of 370.3 kg (2021: 296.73 kg) of
nitrogen oxides (NOx), 0.49 kg (2021: 0.39 kg) of
sulphur oxides (SOx) and 35.51 kg (2021: 28.45
kg) of respiratory suspended particles (PM).

(i) Greenhouse gas emissions

MEEEALRESE - HE_Z
T+ A=+—HILFE K
EBERYHRIREBBIE MY
BEREN YR -

() Z=R5EDEERR
HE-_Z_-_—_F+-_A=+-—
HIEFE Z=RS5FEWHPER
BREZHFEAAEEEEAE
FTBFEM A AR BEHN
REL¥(NOx) 370.3F 72 (=
T~ — 4 :206.73FR) W
fE¥(SOx) 049 F R (=T = —
F:089FR) RA]RALF
BRL(PM) 3551 F R (T = —
F:2845F ;) °

(i) AERIBBHEMN

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—RHLEE

2022 2021
—=E—-= —EZ—F
Emission (in tCO_e)
HEHE
Scope of greenhouse gas emissions REREHHEER (H-—FthEZ)
Scope 1 Direct emission EE1EEHER
Combustion of petrol for mobile vehicles 758 7 i 1P 15 75.1 64.7
Scope 2 Indirect emission EE 2B EHEN
Purchased electricity INEEE 658.0 522.5
Total wat 733.1 587.2

Note:

(1) Emission factors were made by reference to Appendix
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred
documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless
stated otherwise.

Wi

() BFEZFER DRFRAER
SER TR _E AR B 827
RESEXFmESL -
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group’s activities contributed to 733.1 tonnes
(2021: 587.2 tonnes) (0.01 tCO,/m?) of carbon
dioxide equivalent (carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide and hydrofluorocarbons) emission.
Details of the Group’s measures to reduce
the consumption of resources and the related
emissions are set out below. As a result of
these measures, the employees’ awareness of
reducing the consumption of resources and the
related emissions has been increased. Same as
the previous years, the Group did not receive
any complaints or warnings on greenhouse gas
emissions during the year ended 31 December
2022, and targets to achieve the same
performance in 2022.

Petrol consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group’s motor vehicles travelled approximately
222,498 km (2021: 184,583 km), which
consumed 32,574 litres (2021: 28,099 litres) of
petrol and contributed to 75.1 tonnes (2021:
64.7 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising from
petrol consumption, the Group encourages its
employees to use public transport when they
attend business activities. For business activities
that take place within walking distance, the Group
encourages its employees to walk or cycle to
the destination. The Group targets that its petrol
consumption in 2022 will not exceed the level
consumed during the year ended 31 December
2022.

EREERBRAT Fif 2022

HE_Z-_—_F+=-RA=14—
HEFE AEEMNETBHEE
e (—&abiE - Bk — &
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ftHEE -AEBARIER
SH R K A8 B8 Bk AR i £R EX 89 15 ite
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HEBERENEREATIES °
HEF—HF AEEEHZE-
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BRI —FEMRRKRR -

U E FE
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HIEFE AEEHKES
TR 42224980 B (= F
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(i)

Electricity consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group consumed 805,549 kWh (2021: 649,636
kWh) of electricity (1,068 kWh (2021: 1,003
kWh) per employee) in connection with its daily
business operations, which contributed to 658.0
tonnes (2021: 522.6 tonnes) of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions. To reduce the emissions
arising from electricity consumption, the Group
encourages its employees to switch off the lights
and other electricity appliances when they leave
the office and production premises. The Group
targets that its electricity consumption in 2022 will
not exceed the level consumed during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group generated nil hazardous waste. The Group
has engaged a qualified waste collector to control
the generation of hazardous waste. The Group
will strive to maintain generation of hazardous
waste through upgrading technologies whenever
possible. Same as the previous years, the Group
did not receive any complaints or warnings on
disposal of its hazardous waste during the year
ended 31 December 2022, and targets to achieve
the same performance in 2022.

Non-hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group generated a total of 11.8 tonnes (2021:
10.1 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste (0.01
tonnes (2021: 0.01 tonnes) per employee). The
major non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group were packaging materials, metal scraps,
paper waste, and sawdust, will be collected
and weighed before being recycled or sold to
recycling company. The Group regularly reminds
its employees to use resources efficiently and try
to avoid the generation of waste. As a result, the
employees’ awareness of waste management
has been increased. Same as the previous two
years, the Group did not receive any complaints
or warnings on disposal of its non-hazardous
waste during the year ended 31 December 2022,
and targets to achieve the same performance in
2022.

(i)

&) EFE
HE-Z-_—F+=-A=+—
HIEFE AEBMNAEER
EIE S 51805,549 T LB
—Z— —1F : 649,636 T FLEF)
(B4R E1,068T E B (: Z
——%F :1,08FRE)) -
mm%%wWﬂ_Y_fi
5226W8) —E{tmEE - B
LABEEENERD A5
EEEEEHARAERAEE
GAEEMAEREREMABER
H-ALEBEFTEHEZ R=2Z
T FEMENEET S BEE
22— F#+=-_HA=+—H
LEFERHEFEKTE -

BEREEY
HE-_T-_—_F+=-A=+—
HBEFE AEETEHELS
EEEY - AEBECBELRE
B E R T EREDT
Ef -AEEBBBRTE
ﬁ&ﬁi#%ﬁiﬁ%mﬁio
HEF—HF AEEEHZE
%::¢+:HE+—E¢¢
BV EEZEENEEEEEZEDD
TR FHRESE - T FETEIZ
R-ZE-——FEKRERR -

WmEREEY)
HE-T-_—_F+=ZA=*+—
HIEFE AEBEHEE11S8
W (ZZT——4F :10.10f) B=
EEEY (BX%EB00IH(ZF
Z—4 :0.0108)) - REEFT
EENTEEZTREEYVABRE
MK SBER - BEREARE
BHerlERBEZB KN
EFEU AT - $EIE%%
BEEEIFNBER B2
REEEEY AL Eaﬂ
BEEMEENEHEAMRES -
HATME— AEEEHZE
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v)

Water consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group consumed 88,892 m?® (2021: 58,973 m?3)
of water (117.9 m® (2021: 91.0 m?®) per employee)
in connection with its daily business operations.
To reduce the emissions arising from water
usage, the Group encourages its employees to
conserve water and remember to turn off the
water tap after use. As a result, the employees
has increased their awareness to consume water
usage. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group did not encounter any problems
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. Further,
the Group did not consume a significant amount
of water that was and disproportional to the scale
of its business operations. The Group targets that
its water consumption in 2022 will not exceed
the level consumed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

A.2 Use of resources

In order to reduce use of resources in our daily
operations, the Factory maintains its operations
in accordance with the guidelines set forth
under the “Environment Management Policy
and Objectives” and “Administrative Measures
for Energy Consumption”. In addition, the
“2017 Working Plan for Energy Conservation
and Emission Reduction” was formulated and
publicity and education activities were carried
out for the purposes of enhancing the awareness
of energy conservation and emission reduction
among our employees. At the same time, the
Factory streamlined energy-saving and emission
reduction measures and strived to reduce
energy consumption and costs. To improve work
efficiency, the Factory established an energy
saving and emission reduction working group to
monitor the use of resources in the Factory and
implemented the policies of appropriate incentives
and penalties.

BEIERBRR AR Fik 2022
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group’s business activities did not cause significant
adverse impact on the environment and natural
resources. The Group’s total consumption of electricity,
water and packaging materials during the year
ended 31 December 2022 together with the relevant
conservation measures adopted by the Group are
detailed in the section headed “A.1 Emissions” above.

To further improve the use of resources, the Group

HE_Z-_—_F+=-HA=+—HI1E
FE - ASENERIHITEBEY
HIRELRBABEREEATHFE -
rEEBRBEE_T-__F+=A
—+—HALEFENE KEBEWM
B E  ERASEMFERY
HEAEAERE  HER EXXTATHE
W —EnEfa -

RE-—FTREERER ~A5EE

takes the following actions on an ongoing basis: BEFEEIATITE -

Item Measures

EE #it

Electricity saving (1) Minimize use of air conditioners by maintaining a minimum air
BEEN conditioning temperature of 26°C in the office area

Water saving
i K

Vehicle management

BWEIE

BARAERBRERFREZARERR26EUNRARERDEH
£/

Reduce the lighting time by tumning off all lighting equipment before
leaving office

BEFI A= RIRARAFT A MRAA SR - AR AR AR A )

Turn off the power of all devices before leaving office to reduce the
standby time of such devices

BN AZERMAAMBRENER  UWEHIZERENFERER

Turn off the faucet immediately after washing hands
W12 LRV BA K BE B

Improve daily maintenance of water and heating pipelines to prevent
leakage of water

HEFKMERE BN HBHEE - AR IERK

Use recycled water for the spray-work painting booth located within
the Factory

TR A H R 5 A B AKX

Turn off air-conditioning and engine of vehicles when parked for a
long period to reduce oil consumption

= 5 ] {5 BB (B BT B2 0 9 22 SR RN 38 B DR D i
Formulate maintenance plans and regularly inspect vehicles

T 4S5 BN TE B iR S Il
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Item Measures

HH ¥t

Office supplies management (1)  Use recycled paper

mARmERE {5 A3 B e A 5

(2) Use double-sided paper

PR EmTE

(8) Promote paperless office by using electronic communications to

reduce paper

RREFRENIAREAE  REELA D
(4) Encourage personal use of drinking cups for less use of disposable

cups

SRRV AR A KR - Rl A — IR M KRB 5
(5) Improve the purchase and distribution policies of office supplies by
prioritizing use of energy-saving and environmental products

BREBEEATHERRERAEN L AAMNBE RS RBER

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of
the importance of using resources efficiently.

A.3 The environment and natural resources

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
business activities did not cause significant adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources. To
further improve the use of resources, the Group takes
the following actions on an ongoing basis:

e keep track of its consumption level of resources;

° review the effectiveness of its conservation
measures; and

e design improvement measures

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of
the importance of using resources efficiently.

A.4 Climate change

The Group manages the climate change risk with
reference to the recommendations of the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), which
are structured around four core elements: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and Targets.
The Board overseas the governance and reporting of
the Group’s climate change risk. Management of the
Group regularly monitors and identifies climate change
risk that is relevant to the Group’s business operations.
Strategies will be implemented on a timely manner to
mitigate such risk.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
identified the following climate-related risks that
may have material impacts on the Group’s business
operations:

Physical risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme
weather such as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can
disrupt the Group’s operations by damaging the power
grid, and communication infrastructures, and injuring
its employees during their work, leading to reduced
capacity and decreased in productivity, or expose
the Group to risks associated with non-performance
and delayed performance. To minimise the potential
risks and hazards, the Group has flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad
or extreme weather conditions.

Transition risks

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent
climate legislations and regulations to support the
global vision of carbon neutrality. We acknowledge
the requirements to enhance the climate-related
information disclosures as a result of the recent update
of the ESG Reporting Guide in respect to significant
climate-related impact disclosures of an issuer. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose
enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also be adversely affected
by the failure to meet the compliance requirements for
climate change. The Group’s related capital investment
and compliance costs may increase. In response to
the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks,
the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging
trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate and
be prepared to alert the Board where necessary to
avoid cost increments, penalties for non-compliance
and/or reputational risks due to delayed response.
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B. Social B.

B.1 Employment and labour practices
()  Employment
Total employees and turnover

The Group had a total number of 754 (2021: 648) full-
time employees located in China as at 31 December
2022. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group closely monitored the number of employees
that were required to run its business operations.

Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s
employees as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 by
gender and age group:

As at 31 December 2022:

e

Bl ERBRZEIER

0 1E1E
/Eﬁ/uyfﬁ///b%g—?
RZEZ_ZF+_HA=+—H K
EEAEEET4(ZF=—F : 648)
HrBEESRYTE -HEZT
T+ -A=Z+—HIEFE K
EBEEBYEREBEBHAENES
NEL o

AEERERZ-_ZE-__FR_F
T+ -_A=+—HEMRREE
BB DM MHIEREN T

R-E-__F+-A=1+—H8:

Distribution of employees by gender
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Distribution of employees by age group
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As at 31 December 2021: R-E-——E+—-A=+—8§:

Distribution of employees by gender

BEURB S NES S MTER

Female
pegis
36%

.

Female Z1t @ Male 1%

Distribution of employees by age group

BERBRBESNEE D MIER

41-50
41-508% Above 50
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W

30 or below

31-4073% 30BREIA T
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According to the “Anti-Discrimination Policy” of the
Factory, the expertise of job applicants will determine
their employment status. The remuneration, bonus,
allowances and other forms of subsidies payable by
the Factory to our employees are subject to their work
performance, expertise, and competence, regardless
of their sex, race, religious beliefs, age, disability,
sexual orientation, nationality, political views, social
status, social and racial backgrounds, and other
factors. The “Anti-Discrimination Policy” also protects
the rights and interests of female employees, under
which, marriage or pregnancy discrimination is not
permitted for employment of women, and therefore no
pregnancy test shall be performed on any female job
applicant. The Factory shall make proper arrangements
to prevent the well-being of pregnant women from
being affected by work. In case that the management
or external service providers are in violation of the
“Anti-Discrimination Policy”, they shall be subject
to penalties. Our employees may lodge complaints
with our administrative department via a complaint
hotline or the suggestion box, and the administrative
department will conduct a regular review each week,
launch investigation, and address any violation if
identified. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not identify any complaint case from our employees.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any complaint case from our employees.

Set forth below is the Group’s employee turnover rate
by gender and age group:
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Category 2022 2021
HHl —E-= —E-—4
By gender &1 B &l 5

Male B 86% 133%
Female ks 93% 118%
By age group BRERARE D

30 or below 30K AT 122% 191%
31-40 31-40 5% 59% 79%
41-50 41-50 5% 37% 27%
51 or above 5153 A £ 19% 36%
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During the Reporting Period, the Group understood
that the turnover rate remained high. In the future, we
will step up the implementation of measures to lower
the employee turnover rate, including reviewing the
remuneration packages within the industry, improving
the respective treatment and talent development
mechanism, and providing more training and assisting
our employees in preparing their career plan. In
addition, we will commit ourselves to improving
the management mechanism of the Group, while
cultivating the teamwork culture.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any non-compliance case related to employment.

Employee benefits and welfare

The Group enters into employment contracts with
its employees and the employment contract terms
were stipulated under the principles of fairness,
voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity and credibility.
The remuneration package offered to employees
includes salary, bonuses and other subsidies. In
general, the remuneration package is based on each
employee’s qualifications, position, seniority and work
performance. The Group carries out an annual review
system to assess the performance of its employees,
which forms the basis of decisions with respect to
salary raises, bonuses and promotions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
maintains social insurance for its employees pursuant
to the applicable PRC laws and regulations by making
contributions to the mandatory social insurance
and housing provident funds which provide basic
retirement, medical, work-related injury, maternity and
unemployment benefits.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
complies with the Labour Law of the PRC and did not
experience any significant disputes with its employees
or any disruption to business operations due to labour
disputes. In addition, the Group did not experience
any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced core staff or skilled personnel.

Labour standards

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
was no child labour nor forced labour working in the
Group. The job application requirement specifies that
job applicants must be at least 18 years old. To ensure
that job applicants can meet the age requirement,
identities of job applicants are verified against their valid
identity documents, relevant permits and certificates.

The human resources department is required to carry
out background checks to authenticate information
provided by job applicants and is required to fill in
forms that confirm hired employees have met the
age requirement. If child labour or forced labour is
discovered, such matter will be reported to the human
resources department and senior management. The
Group will enhance the relevant internal controls to
eliminate such matter. No material non-compliance in
relation to laws and regulations regarding prevention of
child and forced labour was recorded during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for employees
in respect of recruitment, job advancement,
training and development, etc. Employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities
on the basis of race, nationality, religion, physical
condition, disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual
orientation, political status, age and any other
discrimination prohibited by applicable law. Employees
shall not act in discriminatory manner or they can be
subject to disciplinary actions.
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Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to maintain
good relationship with employees. The Group
maintains regular communications with its employees
by arranging gatherings, celebration activities
and trainings. Through these activities, the Group
would collect feedback from its employees on job
satisfactions and their expectations on the Group and
would implement appropriate strategies to improve
the work environment and its relationship with the
employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group places emphasis on occupational
health and work safety. It provides a safe working
environment and training sessions for its employees
to ensure that they can work safely. It has also
implemented a system of recording and handling
accidents. Further, the Group also has dedicated
personnel responsible for administering the internal
worker safety policies, providing relevant training and
education, and conducting regular inspections. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
not experienced any material safety accidents or been
penalised for any non-compliance relating to work
safety laws and regulations.

(i)

1 B B %
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FY2022 & FY2021

“ECBRBREER

Occupational health and safety data HERREZZHE —EC-BREE
Work related fatality THERTE -
Work injury cases >3 days —RUEMTESH -
Work injury cases <=3 days ZRAEUAAHIESR -
Lost days due to work injury TEEIXRE -
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(iv) Development and Training

The Group’s various types of employee training not
only help employees improve their skills sets and
operational efficiency, but also provide an opportunity
for their personal development. According to the
“Human Resources Management Procedure” for the
Factory, the administrative department shall formulate
training programs, under which, each employee is
required to receive position-related training, including
in-house and external training. Training effectiveness
will be assessed by written or oral tests, hand-
on operations, spot check and other measures.
Employees whose specific work has significant
impacts on the environmental and occupational safety
and health will be assessed by the administrative
department for their qualifications, and the assessment
scope will cover their academic background,
competence, training, and/or qualifications. Such
employees, only if determined as eligible, will be
permitted to take up the position.

During the Reporting Period, the Factory focused on
training related to production safety, hygienic practices
and personal health, medical treatment and first aid,
and environmental protection.
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Set forth below is the number and percentage of
training hours completed by the Group’s employees by

)

gender and employee category:

NTRAEEEE (Rt LEER
RIS ERIEFIR B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-E-_-Ff+-A=t-BHLFE

% of training

Male Female Total hours by

training training training employee

Employee category hours hours hours category

ZES

k= E o)

S prgid B

EEER 1S BIE  AEIREY MBI

Senior management BiRERE 77 29 106 3%

Middle Management RRER 262 50 312 8%

Other employees HiES 2,247 1,495 3,742 89%

Total st 2,586 1,574 4,160 100%
% of training hours by gender &£ Bl & 5 153l

REHE DL 62% 38%
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT-—F+-A=+—HILFE

% of training

Male Female Total hours by

training training training employee

Employee category hours hours hours category

RES

hE 5

E2)id peqi:d 22 B

EEER B 5B 25 BIRFE RTINS BB

Senior management mRER 40 12 52 4%

Middle Management HRERE 98 22 120 9%

Other employees HifE S 702 428 1,130 87%

Total st 840 462 1,302 100%
% of training hours by gender & 14 Bl &l 7 153l

53 GONERs g 64% 36%
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Training Focuses During the Reporting Period

& A 415 5| E

Trainees Training Program Description

FIHR BFIRE

Entry-level employees Various systems related to working hours, remuneration calculation, and
FriEB T remuneration package and fringe benefits

All-level employees
2EET

First-line managers
AEEEET

Employees who have access to
chemicals and warehousing staff
FRIEEmNEIREESR

Employees who have access dangerous
equipment

RLEREZE

Security personnel and emergency staff

ERERRENET

Manufacturing department
B

70 posesRaRAT F% 2022

TAERFfE - TEFHE IR - B8 KM e F &l E
Employee Manual, and factory-wide rules and regulations
BT FM - BmRmA

Occupational health and safety, and environmental awareness
BERRLZE RREH

Knowledge related to fire safety and counter-terrorism
EZEE - RBL 2

Hygienic practices and personal health, and medical treatment and

first aid
HEBEMEARERBESNK

Pre-employment skills, on-the-job operations, product quality control

RIBTIRAE - BRIIRYE - EREE L

Workplace hygienic practices and personal health and safety
EEREET

Fire safety knowledge and emergency escape drills

B % & R SO R SOR AR

Counter-terrorism knowledge

R R % 2 M

Medical treatment and first aid

BEESN

ISO9001 certification knowledge and product quality control
ISO9001 K13 I £ im B E 2 1

Know-how on quality control

mn 2 AN 3

On-site management practices and 5S management system
RS ERBENGSERER

Standards for Safe Access to Chemicals and Personal Protective

Equipment
t2m AAREXRFELREERRIERE

Safe Use of Dangerous Equipment

H SR E B RS

Emergency Know-how for Firefighters and Emergency Staff
fEhRELEER

On-site management practices and 5S management system
RS ERBENRSSERER
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B.2 Operating practices

U)

Supply chain management

The Group purchases raw materials and
equipment based on its own needs,
specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, reputation, after-sales service and
delivery time of the supplier. The Group compares
different suppliers to select qualified suppliers
(based on their product specifications, product
compliances, production management, quality
management, environmental friendliness and
also corporate social responsibility performances)
before the Group enters into contract with the
qualified suppliers.

When selecting equipment, the Group would
also consider whether the equipment is energy
efficient and environmental friendly. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, all of the Group’s
390 suppliers were situated in the PRC.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
ESG principles that the Group has adopted into
the management of its business operations.
In order to ensure that the components and
raw materials meet the requisite safety and
quality standards, the Group adopts stringent
criteria in supplier selection (including but not
limited to whether they provide high quality raw
materials, whether they maintain a high standard
on environmental protection and comply with
relevant laws on environmental issues, whether
price is comparable to market rate and location of
their factories) and continuously monitors existing
suppliers on an annual basis, based on criteria
such as product quality, product defect ratio,
delivery punctuality ratio and responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is one
of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the
suppliers.

B.2 %

i

CEER
) fEsEEE

AEEREEHRFHK  RE
mERBREBOREIER  HE
BiEE ERRENIERMH
KERBRMHM KM - KEE
HEEREEERI LA QA
AEEeH TRERARER
EmRB EmAR L£EE
B mEEH BRAREE
HEREERBFEHLER  EE
BREHRER -

FRERER AEET2E
BB EEGEEMERIR &
E-ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—H
EFE - AEEBER/390H HE
e AR E o

AEEFEHEBRRTASKHE
EEBLEEEAMKANER
Bt RERRA - SR
TZHMHEMNRTHTEBANR
EMmERE REEETE
HEmERAREER (BHEE
TEREGRERHTRE EROR
MHE ERHREREERS
R WETHEBREREDN
AR BRESEMSKEE
EEBMELE) - WREBE MG
B EmBELER - REMNE
RO ERE N FRE  8F
MIRAHERERES -

HEEEDRERAALEE
RUMEEAEE RTESF
EFGEREGNS Y BEE
507 1 L 48 R 0 B R
m s — o

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022 71



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERHE @)

72

ERE

(i)

Product responsibility

Attaching great importance to product quality and
safety, the Group continues to monitor quality
and implement safety standards. The Group
strictly monitors the entire production process
from receipt of materials, production to product
shipment.

Materials required by the Factory for production
purposes include accessories, steel, etc., 95%
of which are raw materials that have received
the 1ISO 9001 quality management system
certification. To manage materials, the Factory has
formulated the “Materials Inspection Instruction”
to regulate the quality inspection standards for
materials so as to ensure that no non-compliant
materials will enter the production processes.
According to purchase contracts, the inspectors
will verify whether the orders, subject matters,
specifications, quality compliance, and others as
set forth in purchase contracts are consistent.
If identified as compliant, such materials may
be warehoused. Any material identified as non-
compliant is required to be separated with a
label, which will not be warehoused or used for
production processes.
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Upon completion of products, the manufacturing
department is required to carry out inspection
work in accordance with the “PQC Operation
Instruction” and “Inspection and Test
Management Procedures”. The inspection scope
shall cover parts pending production, semi-
finished products, finished products not yet

stored and production samples.

Preparation Before Inspection

WA K B T

In-progress Inspection

BB THEHEST
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EmEKE HEMARE
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Treatment upon Inspection

WERE KR IE

Ensure documents and inspection
instruments related to products
are all in place

HER ZE mn AR S Rt BR T B

g

Arrange inspection orders based
on the production processes,

delivery schedule, and production

progress
BEIF RUGEERREEEE
ZHEAR R IR T

Verify whether products are
consistent with those set
forth in orders

BHERESHETBENE—
B

Check items required for
inspection under the
standards

ZEHRAERT AR T ) 18 B

Use proper equipment to
conduct various inspections
TREEESETEERR

The Factory emphasizes the disposal of non-
compliant products, in which case, products
identified as non-compliant will be disposed in
accordance with the “Non-compliant Product
Control Procedures”. The Factory has also
developed the “Product Recall Procedures”.
In case of any product sold to the market but
identified as having safety hazards, the Factory
will recall and deal with the same according to the
established procedures, ensuring product quality
and public safety. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any case related to
product recall.

Separate and isolate compliant
products and non-compliant
products

KERmAMTE B Mmoo R

B B

Box finished products and
complete the warehousing
procedures with labels and
QC marks attached

KRG TRAERF -
Wk E &M QCIER

Prepare quality inspection
reports and arrange disposal
of non-compliant products
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The Factory has prepared the “Procedures to
Use, Manage, and Control Product Certification
Labels”, under which, all certified products
must be attached with the certification labels
prior to their shipments. Use of compulsory
certification marks shall be in compliance with the
requirements under the Management Measures
on Compulsory Product Certification Mark. Use
of compulsory certification marks is not permitted
for uncertified products, non-compliant products,
and certified products that are modified without
certification by any certification body, none of
which therefore is permitted for shipment.

The Group places a high value on smooth
communications channels with our customers to
fulfil customer demands. Our complaint channel
enables our customers to submit complaints
and suggestions regarding service or commodity
quality. According to our “Customer Complaint
Handling Procedures”, upon receiving customer
complaints, our sales department will e-mail
the relevant complaints to the quality control
department, while the quality control manager
will review such customer complaints before
appointing our quality engineers to launch
investigation into the said customer complaints.
The quality engineers will analyze the causes
and determine which department shall be held
accountable before the follow-up procedures
take place. The sales department will respond to
the customers in connection with the merits of
the complaint and corrective actions to be taken
or precautions to be implemented. In addition,
customer satisfaction in settlement results will
be surveyed until the relevant complaint is fully
resolved. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not identify any customer complaint.
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As part of good corporate governance maintained
by the Group, security of customer data is also
the key to cultivating a long standing trusted
relationship with our customers. To avert
information risk, effectively secure information,
and enhance the responsiveness of processing
information, the Factory has formulated the
“Corporate Information Management Measures”,
pursuant to which, in-house information regarding
our operations will be managed under various
security levels. In addition, publication guidelines
and directories for confidential information will be
established to ensure information is published
and communicated in a correct and controllable
manner.

In connection with advertising, the Group has
appointed legal advisors to provide legal opinions
and perform their duty of oversight. In case that
any advertisement is found false or exaggerating,
we will immediately cease to circulate such
false advertisement and eliminate the negative
effects by issuing a clarification announcement
accordingly. In the future, the Group will establish
advertisement management policies to enhance
our management of product responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any non-compliance case related to
product responsibility.
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Intellectual Property Rights and Information
Security

The Group registered various trademarks for the
Group itself and its products in the PRC, to foster
its corporate image. The Group relies on the
relevant laws and regulations to protect its brand
names, trademarks and other intellectual property
rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties. Further, there were
no pending or threatened material claims made
against the Group with respect to the infringement
of intellectual property rights owned by the Group.

Intellectual Property Rights and Information
Security

The Group registered various trademarks for the
Group itself and its products in the PRC, Germany
and Hong Kong to foster its corporate image. The
Group relies on the relevant laws and regulations
to protect its brand names, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
(i) by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties; or (i) by any third
party of any intellectual property rights owned
by the Group. Further, there were no pending
or threatened material claims made against the
Group, nor had there been any material claims
made by the Group against third parties, with
respect to the infringement of intellectual property
rights owned by the Group.
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(iiy  Anti-corruption

(i) RES

Anti-corruption is already one of the basic
principles for the international community to
define corporate social responsibility. The Chinese
government has been playing an active role in
carrying out anti-corruption campaigns in recent
years. The Group adopts a zero-tolerance policy
on acts of corruption in any form, including bribery
and extortion, fraud and money laundering, by
undertaking that it conducts its business in an
honest, ethical and good faith manner. The “Anti-
corruption and Anti-bribery Control Procedures”
of the Group clearly stipulates that our employees
are prohibited from providing special treatments
and seeking any form of benefits from our
customers, suppliers or any business associates.
The Factory encourages our employees and
external stakeholders to report corruption
incidents, in which case, whistle-blowers will
be properly rewarded with their identities kept
confidential, and they will be provided with
personal protection and job security.

The Factory has specified the code of conduct
for our employees in its “Business Ethics and
Integrity Control Procedures” to demonstrate
the Group’s determination against employees
seeking personal gains by abusing their powers
or by taking advantage of their positions. All
employees at the Factory shall be required to
enter into the “Employee Undertaking”, and our
employee training also emphasizes the business
integrity policy and anti-corruption contents.
Any employee in violation of the business ethics
and integrity control procedures will be subject
to corporate penalties. To enhance cooperation
with suppliers on integrity, the Factory and our
suppliers have entered into the “Business Integrity
Cooperation Agreement” to clarify the rules to
prevent either side from committing bribery, as
well as establishing whistle-blowing procedures
for corruptive actions. Directors and employees
received training from time to time to ensure that
they comply and familiar with the anti-corruption
guides, policies and procedures of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

(iv) Data protection and privacy policy

The Group is committed to protecting the
privacy of its customers, employees, business
partners and suppliers by maintaining a safe
and secure data environment. The Group has
implemented appropriate policies to ensure that
all personal and business data collected during
the Group’s business activities are organised and
secured properly. Computers and servers are
protected from access passwords, Employees
are instructed of their responsibility to follow the
confidentiality code on the access to information
and to ensure the safekeeping of all personal,
customer and business data, trade secrets and
proprietary information. Employees are prohibited
from disclosing the information to unauthorised
parties.

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social
responsibility and allocates resources to satisfy the
needs of the community. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group focused on environmental
protection as well as cultural and sport promotion.
The Group encouraged its employees to participate
charitable events. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on community needs and increase
its investment in community.

EREERBRAT Fif 2022

HE_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—
HEFE AEEBEETHEH
FTEBARZEILESZENER
FE BAEENEREETE
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o
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ERBESXZMAERABRE -
HERERBEESIRNETRSI

The ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEHE - EH- Description R - HEREARREEE
—REBERBRERES it B, B

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEIRERE

Governance Structure A statement from the board containing ESG GOVERNANCE
ERRE the following elements: ESG STRATEGIES

HEFSHLNER  BhEF T

A

()  adisclosure of the board’s
oversight of ESG issues;

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

RE g kER
R - e REAKE
EERNE

HREFGLRSE  HEREA
FHMEE

(i)  the board’s ESG management
approach and strategy, including
the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material
ESG-related issues (including risks
to the issuer’s businesses); and

EXenRR HehkERER
T R ERES - BT  EIRHE

FIREBBENRE HERE
SEHEEE (BEHBITAER
BER) BBRE - &

(i) how the board reviews progress
made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

EFESNARERE HEgRER
BB RREE  WREE
W] BAEE 1T A TS B &
REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on,

i 3% R R the application of the reporting principles & ¥ /& B
in the preparation of the
ESG Report.
B MEERERE HEREAR
AR AR FE A ERIER A -
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEHE - EM@ - Description RE - HEREARREEE
—REBRBRENES it 4-i e 3l

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD
I R &6 boundaries of the ESG report and &1 05 I e 3 25

Aspect A1: Emissions
A1ETH : BER
General Disclosure
—iRE

KPIA1.1
BB UEIR AT

describing the process used to identify
which entities or operations are included
in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the
difference and reason for the change.
IR - g NEIRMENE R

C R PR L B BB E A
BRE HERERARSHIBERE - BE
HREEFPNE - BHITAREETR
ZEREHRRA -

Information on:

BRABERIORZREBHR - MKk L

WHHES AEREEEMNEESN

(@ the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste.
BFHETAREAZENHEHA
ERPOERNER -

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BEm R M AARE B IE -
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEHE - EM@ - Description RE - HEREARREEE
—RBREERBERENES it 3. 1]

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in A.1 Emissions — (i) Greenhouse gas
FARERIEEAL2 total (in tonnes) and intensity. emissions

KPIA1.3
RRENIERALS

KPI A1.4
RREBIEIZA1.4

KPIA1.5
RAR A MIEIRALS

KPIA1.6
FARENIERALG

BRI (M) BB -

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FREEBEEYMAE (LEFE) IE
& o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FEXBEEZEYRE CAEHE) kA
J_g o

Description of reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

OB PR e R TS AR -

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEEAERBEEEMN A B
PEVFEIE R PTG AR ©

FER— (i) )& = m B HE AR
A.1 Emissions — (i) Hazardous waste
(Not applicable — Explained)

PEm— (i) B EREEY (T EB -
)

A.1 Emissions — (i) Non-hazardous
waste

PEL— (i) mEEEY

A.1 Emissions

B

A.1 Emissions — (i) Hazardous waste
PR — (i) B EBEEY)
Emissions — (i) Non-hazardous
waste

HER — (i) EEE R )

A1
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - BH -

—BEERBRENER

WmE oA

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
3. 1]

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2EH : EREH
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI A2.1
FASE A B IR A2.1

KPIA2.2
RAR A M IEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3

RSB IR IR A2.3

KPI A2.4
RAR AR RA2.4

KPI A2.5
FAR A MIEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BREAER(BIEER  KEEMER
MR BIBUGR

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.

RENESNEER IHEEEIRE

Water consumption in total and intensity
BEKERFE -

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

R g IR ARk st A B R ARG AR ©

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

fUCSREGE R KR EB B ERHEE -
ARIRFRK ST 8 R PAERR -

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.
XA BEMERESE (ABETHE
MEEERGAE -
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A.2 Use of resources

BIRE

A.1 Emissions

B

A.1 Emissions — (v) Water consumption

HERR— () K H#E

A.1 Emissions

BRI

A.1 Emissions — (v) Water consumption

HERR— () KH#E

Our activities do not create packaging
material in significant quantities
BHANEREHTEELERENEE
gL
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Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBRENES it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
3. 1]

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

ASEMH:  RERBRER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s
— M #E R significant impact on the environment

and natural resources.

BEBETABRERBAREREKE

REEBHBUR o
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of
B IR B 1R AG.1 activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R EBEHHRRERABAERNE
ARENEBBETEMERNITE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

AdfEE : RIREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation

— AR R of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.
BRINEHE RN HEITAE

TENEARGEEBEEENBE -

KPI A4 Description of significant climate-related
B AE BB IR AL issues which have impacted
and/or may impact the issuer and the
actions taken to manage them.
MER LA EHBETAELTE
WERRIGEBEE R ELHTTE -

A.3 The environment and natural
resources

BREMARER

A.3 The environment and natural
resources
RERBARER

A.4 Climate change
IR

A.4 Climate change
IR
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEHE - EM@ - Description RE - HEREARREEE
—REBRBRENES it 4-i e 3l
Aspect B1: Employment
B1EE : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: B.1 Employment and labour practices
—RRBEE ERAHINE R BEERET I BRERESITER
BRE - TEH#E  Zl RERIA
NEMEFE REN
(@ the policies; and
BR K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
BFHBETARERZENHEHA
ERROERONER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by and gender, B.1 Employment and labour practices

A B 45 WUIR IR B1.1

KPIB1.2
RS A 51 B1.2

employment type age group and
geographical region.

BRI ERER - FEAER Kt
EINHESAE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.
BRI Fiedn MRS ER
MR o
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— (i) Employment — Total employees
and turnover
BERMSEIER () ER—EE
BE AR

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment — Total employees
and turnover
BEMSIESR () ERFE—EE
BELRE X



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE B
—REBRBRENES

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
3. 1]

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
B2EH : REHEZ2
General Disclosure

—iRE

KPI B2.1
BB AR B2.1

KPI B2.2
AR A IEIEB2.2

KPIB2.3
FARE M1 B2.3

Information on:

FRRHLZE2TIERERRERS R

RBEBED

(@ the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.
BIFHETAREAZENHEHA
FERPOERNER -

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.
TERTABRLEE-

Lost days due to work injury.
IHEEIRE-

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

AP ERA R R 2
IARAEEHITRERTTE -
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B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
RBIE &2 THE AR — (i) BB 2 RE

ZE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
RN TEMR—(i)EERER
ZE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
ERLRETER—(i)ESRRESR
agea

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
BEMSTER—()EERRESR

o
ZE
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Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBRENES it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
3. 1]

Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3EM : ¥R RKEI

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI B3.1
A AE M 515 B3

KPI B3.2
FASAE M 515 B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BABH : B ITE%E
General Disclosure

—MRIXER

KPI B4.1
RS AR R B4

KPIB4.2
RARENIERB4.2

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
FARAEERITIIEBRENMBKL
FEEHBUR © fdtEzJEH -

Percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.
BRUFIREEEANESNXIEER
L e

Average training hours completed by
gender and employee category.
BURINREEERE D - BT
CELIEE S

Information on:

BRI IEET 5855 ThY

(@ the policies; and
BK K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to

preventing child and forced labour.

BTHETABEATENHEH
ERFOERMER

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

it EREMNEEAEEET
Ksg g T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
HMEERERBEAEREEER
PRERER A 2F 5 o
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B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training

EfR N8 THEAR —(v) & Rl

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training
EBREREIER—(v)EERE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training

EBIERS TEH— (V)RS

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment
BELZIER-)ER

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment
BEISLIER—()ERE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment
BEIBIER—()ERE
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Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBRENES it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
3. 1]

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
B5fEME : ftESEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and
— M #E R social risks of the supply chain.

ERHEENRE LR ERBREE -

KPI B5.1 Geographical locations of major
A NIE1EB5 1 suppliers
TEHEF[MIPLE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to
AR ENIEIEBS.2 engaging suppliers
it AR At R a1E D -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
R B IE1EB5.3 environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
M EREHEERREREZARRE
mRREEIER - LARAEERITRE

R7E
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote
AR WIEIEB5.4 environmentally preferable products

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

G B sk nl H FE 3 B (E IR B0 A 3R 3R
RitgREbaaE R A RBEERITR
ERTE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
KREBHR-—(HEEERE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REER-—(HEREE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REER—()HEEEE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REFHR—()HEEER

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
KREBHR—-(HERER
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RE -HERE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - BH -

—BEERBRENER

WmE oA

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
3. 1]

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6EME : EmER
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B6.1
A2 45 515 B6.1

KPI B6.2
PR AE M 515 B6.2

KPIB6.3
R A 515 B6.3

KPI B6.4
PR AE M 1515 B6.4

KPI B6.5
R IA 1R B6.5

Information on:

BAMMREERMRENERERZ S -

BE BB NALEEE AR ER

(@ the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
BFHBEITARBERZENEHA
FERPIERNER -

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EEHCEXEMBHT AL 2 HE
FRIEBHEmMARKNE DL -

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

BN EmMRIBHRFEE AR
eI 5% o

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

R EE TR BB ERBENER -

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
M ERBRERERBKERF -

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

i E B B ERHRIE RFLRBECGR - A
NABAMITRERT A -
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B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

EEER—(EREE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

REFER-NEREE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
LEER—(EREL

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

REFHR—(NEmEET

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KeEER—(\EMET

B.2 Operating practices - (iii) protection
and privacy policy
K B R — (i) IRIF R AL BB R
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE B
—REBRBRENES

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
3. 1]

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7EE: RES

General Disclosure
—iRE

KPI B7.1
BAREAE M IE1R BT 1

KPI B7.2

BB 48 IR BY .2

KPI B7.3
AR B BUIEIZEBT.3

Information on:

BEM LB PR MEFROEREN

(@ the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BFHBETARERZENEHA
ERRIEROER -

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RIS HEHBETAREERDLE
BRENESFARITHEE LFAER -

Description of preventive measures
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

Ry B e LA RIT RER A

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
HmEERE TRHENRERE

B.2 Operating practices —
(iiiy Anti-corruption
KEBR—(VRES

B.2 Operating practices —
(iiiy Anti-corruption
KREER—(i)RE)5

B.2 Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
BEBR—(VRES

B.2 Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
KEER (i) RE)5
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Wi HEREA

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - BH -
—REERBRERIER

WE @

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
3. 1]

Aspect B8: Community Investment

B8EMH ::  HERE
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B8.1

A B 45 IR 1R B8.1

KPI B8.2
RARANIERB8.2

Policies on community engagement

to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

Bl E2HETRBBETAMELARR
FRWHEREB B E LT E P =8
B -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
X EREE (HE - RIREE - 58
BOEK BE XX 85) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.
EEIBRMBAER(WSELE
fE) o
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B.3 Community investment
HRIKRE

B.3 Community investment

HERE

B.3 Community investment

HERE



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders of
the Company the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in the business of (i) offering
comprehensive assembling and production services of PCBA
in the PRC integrating research and design, selection and
procurement of raw materials, assembling of PCBAs, quality
control, testing, logistics and aftersales services; and (i) Financial
Application Platform and Platform Maintenance Services. Details
of the principal activities of the Company and it’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 and note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year is set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the
paragraphs below. The Group complies with the requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
also complies with the requirements of Employment Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of
employees of the Group. No important event affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the year.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Concentration of customers

The Group has a concentration of customers and any decrease
or loss of business from these major customers could adversely
and substantially affect our operations and financial conditions.

Fluctuations in the price of raw materials
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials may affect our cost
of sales and adversely affect our business operations and
profitability.

EEMABMARBBEREZEHE T -_—F
T A=+ HEFENTRELEZES
B HmK -

FEXR®
AEEEZE(ORFEREFRHEEAHE &K
R #HEE N IREE - PCBAKES - HE4%H
A WREERRENE2EPCBARKE k&
ERY R BERFa kT el#R% -
ARAREMBRARNEZXZHHBERELE
B mRM T KT 12 -

E 3 JC1)
AEBAFENEHBLOEHINEIERS &
EEMNBmEON  RE  HERERRENR
TX#E - AEEETEERAEN - LR
ARBESEMEGRN(EFEMEEN) A
ARBEERRERERANRE AEEE
STREGRD MBELT 2 REERMIOETE - A
REXEEEENED AAFERELE
BAEHAGEAYENEREF -

FTERREREER
TXHIBAEEEGNEERBRRTREAE -

EF T
REBNEP&EF REZZFFETFPNE
o] 2E 75 0B 2 580 2k AT 1 3k P B0 A8 & I B 7S 1K
PUER AR R ERZE -

R # BHE A K B
R EHER KBS ERPIMEEMA - £
MARPIEBE L R BNENEETNFE -
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Fail to anticipate and respond to technology
changes

If our Group does not quickly respond to the rapidly changing
and rigorous needs of our customers or enhance the scope
of our existing EMS that can respond to advanced technology
changes or our customers’ needs, our competitive position,
profitability and business prospects may be adversely affected.

Trade protection measures and trade disputes
between the United States and the PRC

The uncertainties on the trade restriction policies resulting from
the trade disputes between the United States and the PRC may
cause difficulties for our customers to project their purchasing
plans and may cause them to reduce their orders from our
Group.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and regular analyse on customer feedback. The Group also
keep ourselves abreast of the development of latest technology
advancement in the industries.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 122 to 125.

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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AEEBEBTRAEELRREFEMARTL,H
RELRER BREIBABEBFRTHREL,B
ERFE  AEMOMEL RE - AEE TR
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Closure of the Register of Members

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 29 May 2023 (Monday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 23 May 2023 (Tuesday) to 29
May 2023 (Monday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 22 May
2023 (Monday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 22 May 2023.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s article of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in the note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Management Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Major Suppliers and Customers

During the Reporting Period, sales to single largest customer
of the Group and the five largest customers of the Group in
aggregate accounted for approximately 27.4% and 81.8% (2021:
approximately 41.7% and 86.7%) of the total revenue of the year,
respectively. During the Reporting Period, purchases from the
single largest supplier of the Group and the five largest suppliers
of the Group in aggregate accounted for approximately 16.6%
and 45.6% (2021: approximately 20.2% and 38.5%) of the total
purchases of the year, respectively. None of the Directors of the
Company or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Bizhong

Mr. Xu Shizhen

Ms. Li Bigiong

Mr. Hao Xiangjun (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yuan Shuntang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund

Ms. Mu Lingxia

Mr. Huang Jianfei (appointed on 19 October 2022)
Mr. Chen Zhong (resigned on 19 October 2022)
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In accordance with article 108(a) of the Articles of the Company,
every Director shall retire from office once every three years and
for this purpose, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest one-third but not less than one-third
shall retire from office by rotation. The Directors to retire in every
year will be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise
agree between themselves) be determined by lot. Subject to the
Articles, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at the
meeting at which he or she retires. For avoidance of doubt, each
Director shall retire at least once every three years.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of the Company, at
any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the members in general meeting. Any Director
so appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Any Director so appointed by the Board shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Mr. Xushizhen, Mr. Yuan Shuntang, and Mr. Wong Chun Sek
Edmund will retire in accordance with article 108(a) of the Articles
at the Company’s forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Mr. Huang Jianfei will retire in accordance with article 112 of the
Articles at the Company’s forthcoming AGM and being eligible,
offer themselves for re- election.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 27
of this annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an
initial term of one year to three years. All the service agreements
may be terminated by either party by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s or three months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term one
year. All the appointment may be terminated by either party by
giving to the order party not less than one month or three months
prior notice in writing.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
or compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Directors’ Interests In Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the company or his or her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company (“Director” or “Directors”)
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the
Reporting Period.

96 EmmimBRARAT F 2022

EERBEL
EWTESERIFNTESTEEHARAR LR
B NERBP—E=F - REWHB T H
Hfp—JAs—m#ETIR—=EAN
EREMBHLL -

EBUFATEFTCEHARARITRENR
NERP—F - ZEBATAEFT—FTRAS—
FEOADR—R=EANEREERAEL -

BREaES HERARRAFAS LEZZE
ENEFEARBTLAARARER —F
MR IEMBAZ N RIBHREE CEERERRIN)
HIRFE & #) -

EERWE
ARFEBEAENEZNSRBE SRR -
BZENEERXm ANEEFRERIER
EARURBEFE-—BEEM -

EERRE REHGWHNER

BRAREMWEEI AR AHEEMER
DA MBARNERMBARMET LR
FRAFAEAREDABEEMARANES
SEHMAEEERNETERAEEREERNRE
SNEMNEARS - RHIEH -

EERANNER

ARE - ABRAF - WBARRKAZMEL
B4 4 5T ST 40 85 B 5K o 3R o5 B R 4 (7 B P
NABEMAAANES (EF)REREE
SRR AR EREH -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHE @)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions In Shares, Underlying
Shares And Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) held by the Directors and chief executive of the
Company which have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for are as follows:

() Interests in our Company

EERESTRAERKRG - 1HE
ROFREEINEERAR

R-TZ-—FE+-_A=+—H AREESE
MESITRABRARR RETAEEERE (F
ZEREBHFRHEEMEXVE) RS - HHE K
HREEETFHBCREZFMBPEKRIE
XVEBE 7 K87 S Eg ANQ 7 KRB X P A i i
AR (BIERIEZS LSS EBIEH
BANGIEREENEZ AR HNERLALR
AIIRIE B 5 M HR B 160156 352 k17 & My = s fit
HERBEIZETASITNE AR R LA
mRERSAR T

() RAEDFHER

Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares" shareholding (%)
EEnR EEME ROBEO BRE DL (%)
Mr. Li Interest in a controlled corporation® 99,881,250 (L) 39.95
FhRE NEEEE R
Mr. Yuan Interest in a controlled corporation® 31,250,000 (L) 12.50
REAE R EE RO
Mr. Zhang Interest in a controlled corporation® 27,543,750 (L) 11.02
9K ST A REEEE R
Notes: B 5

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  These Shares are held by Skyflying Company Limited (the “Skyflying”).
Skyflying is wholly owned by Mr. Li. Mr. Li is also the sole director of
Skyflying. Therefore, Mr. Li is deemed or taken to be interested in the
Shares held by Skyflying under the SFO.

(8)  These Shares are held by Central Wealth Limited (the “Central
Wealth”). Central Wealth is wholly owned by Mr. Yuan. Mr. Yuan is also
the sole director of Central Wealth. Therefore, Mr. Yuan is deemed or
taken to be interested in the Shares held by Central Wealth under the
SFO.

(4)  These Shares are held by Realtime Limited (the “Realtime”). Realtime
is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang. Mr. Zhang is also the sole director of
Realtime. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be interested in
the Shares held by Realtime under the SFO.

(M) FEILURRZKALRRAHIE -

(2 #% % K1 B Skyflying Company Limited
(['Skyflying 1) # 7 ° Skyflying B 2= 5 4 & &
A o 745 A IR A Skyflying B ME — B 2 o [A It -
RIBEEF KA ERD] - FREWE RN EER
& Skyflying B #5 i 10 H) 1 25 ©

(3) %% M Central Wealth Limited ([ Central
Wealth ]) # % ° Central Wealth = % 4+ 2 &
B o BTN A Central Wealth M —E = o
I BEBEFESFRAEKRY  REEFEEARE
{E¥% A Central Wealth FT#5 i% {5 A #E 25 ©

4)  Z %K1 H Realtime Limited ([ Realtime J) #
B o Reatime R EELELZEHWB - REAEENA
Realtime )l — & £ - F L - RIFFHFRHBE
1B+ 3R %t 4 AR 75 ok & {E 75 Realtime BT £
A& 17 B fE 2R
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(ii) Interests in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation

(i) OAEIRS S B  25  B  l

Name of

associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests shares™  shareholding (%)
EEsE HEEE SR EEMtE RGOBEO BRE DL (%)
Mr. Li Skyflying Beneficial owner 10 100
FHhE EnHEA
Mr. Yuan Central Wealth Beneficial owner 1L 100
R4 EmEEA
Mr. Zhang Realtime Beneficial owner 10 100
SRAEA BB A
Note: B

1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
relevant associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had
registered any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares in, and debentures of, the Company or any
associated corporations as at the date of this report, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debenture

Saved as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the Reporting
Period and to the date of this report was the Group a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, and including
debentures, of the Group or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Others’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors are aware, as at the date of this report,
the following corporations/persons (other than our Directors
and chief executives of the Company) had interests of 5% or
more in the issued Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO:

TERREHEMA ARG RE
EROHNERR AR

BEEMM RARSBEH - UTOXE AL
(RRREERZSTHRABRIN KRB #IT
By R RIEE S LB IRPIEXVERE2
Ko 373 BREV AR SCZR A AN A A R B X P 4 BR Bk R
AR RBIRIEE 7 R E GROIE 336 IRAFE
BB RL M A E) 5% S IA EHESS ¢

Number of
Shares held/

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested Percentage (%)
BE BEEER

R A EHEME KRS B B2 (%)

Skyflying Beneficial owner 99,881,250 39.95
EnEAA ordinary Shares
99,881,250 A% & @ A%

Central Wealth Beneficial owner 31,250,000 12.50
E=EA A ordinary Shares
31,250,000 A% 3 38 i

Ms. Zhang Juan Interest of spouse 31,250,000 12.50
sRIG 20t fic (B 4 2 ordinary Shares
31,250,000 % & 8 %

Realtime Beneficial owner 27,543,750 11.02
EnEAA ordinary Shares
27,543,750 ix & B Ik

Ms. Chen Juan Interest of spouse 27,543,750 11.02
PR 48 20 1 B 1B 4 2 ordinary Shares
27,543,750 % I Bk

Regan Fund Management Company Beneficial owner 16,468,000 6.59
Limited (the “Regan Fund”) EnEAA ordinary Shares
([Regan Fund]) 16,468,000 i% £ 38 %

Regan International Growth Fund SPC  Beneficial owner 12,590,800 5.04

(the “IGF”) EnlEA A

(TGF1)

M These Shares are held by IGF and Regan Global All Weather Strategy Fund
SPC (“AWS”) with 12,736,000 shares and 3,732,000 shares, respectively.
Regan Fund is the Investment Manager for IGF and AWS. Therefore, Regan
Fund is deemed or taken to be interested in the Shares held by IGF and
AWS.

ordinary Shares
12,590,800 A% & 8 %

0 Z E 1819 5 5 B IGF & Regan Global All Weather
Strategy Fund SPC ([ AWS ]) % Bl #5 A 12,736,000 f&
3,732,000 % ° Regan Fund &IGF & AWSHI 1 & &
A o EIft - Regan Fund #2457 4 547 {E A IGF )2 AWS
BT B BB P A ok o
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Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, as at the date of this report which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

Arrangement for Directors to Purchase
Shares or Debentures

Saved as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above and in the section “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates has
engaged in or has any interest in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group, or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report.

Mr. Li and Skyflying (together the “Controlling Shareholders”),
had entered into a non-competition deed dated 20 September
2019 (the “Non-competition Deed”) in favour of the Company
(for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant
to which, each of the Controlling Shareholders would not, and
would procure his/its associates not to (other than through the
Group or in respect of each covenanter (together with his/its
associates), as a holder of not more than 5% of the issued shares
or stock of any class or debentures of any company listed on any
recognized stock exchange) directly or indirectly carry on, engage
or otherwise be interested (in each case whether as shareholder,
partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or
otherwise) in any business which may be in competition with
the business carried on by the Group from time to time, except
where the Company’s approval is obtained.
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In order to ensure the Controlling Shareholders have complied
with the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has provided to the Company a written confirmation
(i) in respect of his/its compliance with the Non-competition Deed
for the Reporting Period : (ii) no personal interests were ever
declared by any Controlling Shareholders who are also Directors
at the Directors’ meetings : and (iii) stating that they have not
entered into any business which may be in competition with the
business carried on by the Group from time to time. As there
was no change in terms of the undertaking since the Company’s
listing on the Stock Exchange, the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders have complied with the Non-competition Deed and
no matters are required to bring to the attention of the public.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme was conditionally adopted on 20
September 2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became
effective on the Listing Date. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
motivate the contributions that the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant options to any
employee (full-time or part-time), consultant or adviser of our
Group, Directors, shareholder of our Group, or any supplier,
customer, business partner or service provider of our Group
(together, the “Eligible Participants” or each “Eligible Participant”).

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 25,000,000 shares)
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company. The 10%
limited may be renewed by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting from time to time provided always that the 10%
limited so renewed must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of approval of such renewal by the shareholders of
the Company.
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No option shall be granted to any Eligible Participants which, if
exercised in full would result in the total number of the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options already
granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled, and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant exceeding 10% in aggregate of
the shares in issue as at the date of such grant.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption and
the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 6
years and 6 months.

No share option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme up to the date of this report.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group provided
certain Financial Application Platform and Platform Maintenance
Services to Shanghai Regan Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (_E/&
EIREEEEABMR A A]) and Shanghai Regan Insurance Brokers
Co., Ltd.* (E/8 E R R B2 48 42 B BR 2 &) which are connected
person at the subsidiary level under the Listing Rules, at a
consideration of approximately RMB39,000 and RMB1,730,000
respectively. These transactions were exempted from reporting,
disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. Details were disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

* For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEERE @)

Future Prospect and Development

With reference to the Prospects section of the Chairman’s
Statement, the Group will continue to diversify or expand our
customer base and keep pace with the latest technologies to
deliver PCBAs that can be applied to our customers’ innovative
electronic products and provide engineering solutions to our
customers. We will continue to strive a balance among the
interests of shareholders, employees and customers, and pursue
long-term and sustainable development for the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the
purpose of to making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor, to review the
financial statements and related materials and provide advice
in respect of the financial reporting process, and to oversee the
internal control procedures and risk management of our Group.
The Audit Committee now comprises three members, all being
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun
Sek Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Huang Jianfei and Ms. Mu Lingxia.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 28 October 2022 and the
Company appointed Mazars CPA Limited as the external auditor
of the Company with effect from 28 October 2022 to fill the
vacancy following the resignation of PwC and to hold office
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company.
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Mazars CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, will retire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company and be
eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be submitted to the AGM to be held on 29 May 2023 (Monday)
to seek shareholders’ approval on the appointment of Mazars
CPA Limited as the Company’s auditor until the conclusion of the
next AGM and to authorize the Board to fix their remuneration.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
Code for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to the
Directors and senior management of our Group, to review and
evaluate their performance in order to make recommendations
on the remuneration package of each of the Directors and
senior management personnel as well as other employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Mu Lingxia
(Chairman), Mr. Huang Jianfei and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
Code for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. The Nomination Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Jianfei
(Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund and Ms. Mu Lingxia.

Corporate Governance Practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company
had maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of its
total issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the
Reporting Period and to the date of this report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All Directors of the Company have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they
have compiled with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the Reporting Period and to the date of the report.

By order of the Board
Li Hao
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

maczars e

¢ ==y # i$ 42nd Floor, Central Plaza
$ A 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BB ABE 18R RIRESA2E
Tel B : (852) 2909 5555
Fax {8 : (852) 2810 0032
Email EEL : info@mazars.hk
Website #84F : www.mazars.hk

To the members of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 122 to 247, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group at
31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition for the provision of
electronic manufacturing services (the
“EMS”)

Refer to Notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated Our key audit procedures to assess the revenue recognition for the
provision of EMS included the following:

financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
revenue from the provision of EMS of
approximately RMB260,514,000 (2021:
RMB353,896,000) was recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Revenue from the provision of EMS is
recognised over time over the contract
period using the input method which is
based on the proportion of the actual
inputs deployed to date as compared to
the estimated total inputs to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation.

We identified the revenue recognition for
the provision of EMS as a key audit matter
because the amount involved is significant
1o the consolidated financial statements and
management used significant judgements
and estimations to determine the total
inputs deployed.
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understood and evaluated the key controls in respect of revenue
recognition for the provision of EMS and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatements by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty, in particular, the estimated total inputs deployed, and
other inherent risk factors;

performed retrospective review, on a sample basis, by comparing
previous estimates to actual outcome and evaluated the outcome
of prior period assessment of revenue recognition to assess the
effectiveness of management estimation process;

examined, on a sample basis, the sales contracts with customers
and identified the terms and conditions relating to the timing of
transfer of controls of services, to assess the Group’s revenue
recognition policies with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

checked, on a sample basis, the transaction price of the revenue
recognised during the year from the provision of EMS to the
underlying sales invoices and sales contracts;

tested, on a sample basis, the actual inputs deployed for the
provision of EMS during the year by checking to underlying
supporting documents in relation to direct material costs, direct
labour costs and overhead costs incurred;

compared, on a sample basis, the estimated inputs deployed of
selected sales contracts to the actual inputs deployed of similar
sales contracts completed and enquired the Group’s management
about any significant variances identified; and

recalculated, on a sample basis, revenue recognised from the
provision of EMS during the year based on transaction prices,
the total actual inputs deployed and the total estimated inputs
deployed on completion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provision for write-down of inventories,
net

Refer to Notes 2 and 18 to the consolidated Our key audit procedures to assess the provision for write-down of
inventories included the following:

financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had
inventories, net of provision for write-
down of inventories, of approximately
RMB17,843,000 (2021: RMB30,460,000).
The provision for write-down of inventories
was approximately RMB3,731,000 (2021:
RMB2,724,000) at 31 December 2022
and the Group recognised the provision
for write-down of inventories, net, of
approximately RMB1,007,000 (2021:
reversal of write-down of inventories, net, of
approximately RMB1,264,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group operates in a market where new
products releases are regular. There is a risk
that inventories held will become obsolete/
slow-moving considering technological
advancement and changing market
conditions.
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(@)

understood and evaluated relevant controls over management’s
periodic reviews of provision for write-down of inventories and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and other inherent risk factors;

assessed whether the inventory write-down policy is appropriate
with reference to the Group’s current circumstances and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

tested, on sample basis, whether the inventory write-downs at
the reporting date are calculated on a basis consistent with the
Group’s inventory write-down policy by recalculating the inventory
write-downs based on the percentages and other parameters in
the Group’s inventory provision policy;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In addition, there is a risk that the net
realisable value of inventories may fall below
their respective cost as a result of changing
in customers’ demand because of changing
in technologies. The Group’s management
identifies obsolete/slow-moving inventories
as a result of technology change, and then
applied allowances on those inventories
by considering the respective recoverable
amounts.

The Group’s management regularly reviews
the inventory aging and other relevant
factors, including the current market
conditions and technologies and inventories
held, to identify slow-moving and obsolete
inventories and assesses the level of write-
downs of inventories required at the end of
each reporting period with reference to the
latest transaction prices.

We identified the provision for write-down of
inventories as a key audit matter because
the inventories balance is significant to
the consolidated financial statements, and
there is a significant degree of management
judgement involved in determining the
provision for write-down of inventories.
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(d)

performed retrospective review, on a sample basis, by comparing
previous estimates to actual outcome and evaluated, on a sample
basis, the outcome of prior period assessment of provision
for write-down of inventories to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

tested, on sample basis, the accuracy of the net realisable values
by reference to the latest transaction prices; and

discussed with the Group’s management and assessed the
reasonableness of the provision for write-down of inventories
by challenging management’s projections on future trends and
customers’ demands for the inventories held at the end of the
reporting period, with reference to historical information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Acquisition accounting for Shanghai
Regan Financial Information Service Co.,
Ltd.* (“Regan Financial Information”)

(LEEREMESBRBARDT)

Refer to Notes 2 and 32 to the consolidated Our key audit procedures to assess the acquisition accounting for
Regan Financial Information included the following:

financial statements.

The Group completed the acquisition of
60% registered share capital of Regan
Financial Information on 3 November 2022
(the “Acquisition Date”) at a consideration
of approximately RMB7,032,000 (the
“Acquisition”). The Acquisition constituted
a business combination for accounting
purposes.

The initial accounting for the Acquisition
requires the Group to identify the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed and
measure their amounts at the Acquisition
Date. The Group has appointed an
independent professional valuer to assist
in determining the fair value of identifiable
assets and liabilities of Regan Financial
Information at the Acquisition Date. A
gain on bargain purchase arising from the
Acquisition of approximately RMB2,133,000
was credited to profit or loss.

We considered this matter to as a key audit

@)

()

matter because of the significant impact of (g)

the Acquisition on the consolidated financial
statements and the inherent judgement
involved in estimating the fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

*  For identification purpose only
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evaluated the management’s assessment of the terms and
conditions under agreements for the Acquisition;

understood the valuation processes and methodology, significant
assumptions adopted and key inputs used in the identification and
valuation of assets and liabilities;

evaluated the reasonableness of key assumptions used by the
Group’s management based on our knowledge and understanding
of the businesses of the Regan Financial Information and the
related market;

assessed the appropriateness of the methodology in determining
the values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed including fair
value adjustments at the Acquisition Date;

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent professional valuer;

checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data provided by the Group’s management to the
independent professional valuer; and

understood and evaluated the reassessment on the gain on
bargain purchase performed by the management of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the 2022 annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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BMRAIEH KRR TE - BIBRBRHERBUL AT HRIEERX

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022 117



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e  FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the directors of the
Company and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:

She Shing Pang
Practising Certificate number: P05510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

=\/

n\l-_]_\ = = fm

Year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —ZE ~ — 4+ - H=+—HIF/Z

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T ARMBF T
Revenue W z= 4 263,248 353,896
Cost of sales 5 & AR (233,865) (299,916)
Gross profit EF 29,383 53,980
Other income HAB WA 5 7,022 6,406
Other losses, net H b g8 55 6 (2,021) (928)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ry HAX (2,996) (3,366)
Administrative and other operating 77} HL 4 48 5 2
expenses (39,594) (42,311)
Impairment losses on financial assets £ @& E K& R EE
and contract assets BEEE 7 (290) (240)
Gain on bargain purchase arising from Y8 —fE i B R &) 2
the acquisition of a subsidiary EEEE W= 32 2,133 -
Finance costs B 75 A AR 7 (1,203) (1,216)
(Loss) Profit before tax BRBLAT (B51R) & F 7 (7,566) 12,325
Income tax credits (expenses) FrsfiiE % (%) 9 489 (2,252)
(Loss) Profit for the year FR(EER)EF (7,077) 10,073
(Loss) Profit for the year THEFELFER (ER)
attributable to: A
— Owners of the Company —ARRAHEBA (9,079) 7,241
- Non-controlling interests — FEPE R 2 2,002 2,832
(7,077) 10,073
RMB cents RMB cents
AR®S AR
(Losses) Earnings per share for B Q T #EE AE (BE)
the (loss) profit attributable to B zER (EE) &R
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted HEARR#E 10 (3.63) 2.90
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
LeBmRkHEMPEEER

Year ended 31 December2022 B —F -~ - A=+ —HFEE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT R ARMBF T
(Loss) Profit for the year Fr(ER)ER (7,077) 10,073
Other comprehensive income Hih2EUWE (B1R) -
(loss):
Iterns that will not be reclassified to  # TS EH 7 2182 A1EH -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation ¥ E AR R IEHREE LT
of the Company’s financial EEFTEAMER Z8
statements to presentation
currency 4,752 (1,711)
Financial assets at fair value through 1% A (& 51 A E fth 2 de s
other comprehensive income MemEE ([HRAFERA
(“FVOCI) H 2 mE U] 17
— Changes in fair value taken to — N TFEZEHFTARE
reserves 673 (5,173)
— Gains on disposal taken to — R EREET ARE
reserves - 1,116
Items that may be reclassified B EH 7 EE
subsequently to profit or loss: B EE -
Exchange difference on translation of ¥ & 5 9M 5 75 #) (& i, 2= 48
foreign operations 3,952 168
Exchange reserve released upon BUB LM —E MW B A F1E
deregistration of a subsidiary R BR HMNE - (43)
Total other comprehensive income £ A H fth 2 m Y &
(loss) for the year (F1|) A% 9,377 (5,643)
Total comprehensive income for FRAZEUFALEE
the year 2,300 4,430
Total comprehensive income for T H&FEEEREZE
the year attributable to: Wiz 4858 -
— Owners of the Company S N/NEIEZFS PN 298 1,598
- Non-controlling interests —SEIERR Mz 2,002 2,832
2,300 4,430
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RN R

At 31 December 2022 R —E - —#+—-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARBFT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BERE&EE 13 145,741 177,744
Intangible assets mEAE 14 17,097 1,278
Investment in an associate R—HEBERRZIRE 15 - -
Prepayments and deposits FENREREE 16 2,785 3,186
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 26 7,972 2,403
Financial assets at FVOCI BATFERGT AR MR E
NERELEE 17 9,840 8,369
183,435 192,980
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 18 17,843 30,460
Contract assets EREE 20 39,318 55,052
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WA K e R g 20 36,694 52,973
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FEfTFUE ~ 14 &
receivables H A pE U i E 16 3,658 3,286
Financial asset at amortised cost REHFERATENeREE 19 17,274 16,080
Pledged bank deposits BHEBIRITER 21 1,696 1,695
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 21 111,502 48,926
227,985 208,472
Current liabilities b p=R
Trade payables g S ENFIE 22 23,821 17,499
Contract liabilities afas 23 4,180 1,503
Other payables and accruals Hih A FIE R ERTE A 23 35,475 35,147
Bank borrowings RITIENR 24 8,022 12,614
Lease liabilities HEaE 25 4,391 5,140
Income tax payable FER RS 3,754 1,752
Deferred government grants IR SE TR 4 B 27 4,088 4,277
83,731 77,932
Net current assets REBEEFH 144,254 130,540
Total assets less current liabilities & 7 4 {5l 7 8 & {& 327,689 323,520
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
GEBERRE @

At 31 December 2022 R—ZE - —#F+ - H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARET R ARET T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 5,286 7,553
Deferred government grants R E TR T B 27 14,917 15,999
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE 26 1,215 2,107
21,418 25,659
NET ASSETS EERE 306,271 297,861
Capital and reserves ERREE
Share capital [N 28 2,250 2,250
Share premium BB 28 98,676 98,676
Retained earnings IRE AT 55,891 65,632
Other reserves H b 131,206 121,167
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEB ANEEERE
the Company 288,023 287,725
Non-controlling interests eV fE = 31 18,248 10,136
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 306,271 297,861

The consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to 247 were 122 F 247 B G A B REREFT RN =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson ZEx—-—=& =8 -+ \ Bt &N IEREZF - W

28 March 2023 and signed on its behalf by AU TATREESE
Li Hao Xu Shizhen

£ APt E

Director Director

EFE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBER

Year ended 31 December 2022 &t 7 —FE -~ —#+ - HA=+—HIFFF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANREEHEARL
Reserves
i
Share-based Financial assets
Share Share Other payment Statutory Exchange at FvoCl Retained Non-controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests  Total equity
RATEA
HRBF Hb2EUEN
k& kivEE At RGRE HERE NERE SREERE REEF & FERER REEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTZ  ARBTZ  ARETZ  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR
(Note 26) (Note 28)  (Note 29(a)) (Note 29()) ~ (Note 29(c))  (Note 29(d) (Note 31)
(28) (Hz8)  (WE2o) (BE2op)  (WEoe) (W) (H3E81)
A1 January 2022 H-g-zE-5-R 2,250 9,676 111,285 75 21,087 6734 (A7) 65,632 81725 10,136 297861
(Loss) profi for the year £ (ER) & - - - - - - - 9,079 9079 2,002 [0m)
Other comprehensiveincome ~ E2E R
liems that wilnot be reckassited  EFEEF7EE
loproftorlbss: EHEE -
Exchangg diferences on BRERDAMEREE
tanslfonofthe Companys ~ 2JISHHERER
financial statements fo
presentation curency - - - - - 4,752 - - 4752 - 4752
Finencialassets at FVOCI BATEFAEG2E
hanesEE
- Changes nfair value ~RFERBA
takento reserves (Note 17) Bl (Hst7) - - - - - - 673 - 673 - 673
lems trat mey berechssited — ERTEETAEE
subsequenty toprofiorioss:  ER#EE -
Exchange dfference on rendation 285255k
offoreign operations EizE - - - - - 3952 - - 3952 - 3,952
Total other comprehensive ~ EREH2ERRLE
income for the year - - - - - 8,704 673 - 9,317 - 9317
Total comprehensiveincome A2 KRS
forthe year - - - - - 8,704 673 (9,079 28 2,002 2300
Transactions with owners: REEANRS
Contrbutons and dlstibutions A3 RAE
Aopropriaon to statutory resenve  REUEE il - - - - 662 - - (662) - - -
Aoquistion of a subsicary hE-RHELT
Note 32) (Fiz32) - - - - - - - - - 6,10 6,10
Total transactions with owners ~ EEB AR BEE - - - - 662 - - (662) - 6,110 6,110
At 31 December 2022 ik bt
tZAZt-B 2,250 98,676 111,285 752 21,749 1,970 (4,500) 55,891 288,023 18,248 306,271
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
MEEZEBHR @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

Atributable to equity holders of the Company

FRARREEARE
Reserves
1]
Share Share Other Stae sl Statutory Exchange Frencalases Retained Non-controling }
capfal premium resere paynet esene esene #Rod eamings fod Interests Toaeqty
resene resene
BATEA
HRAFS A2 EkEH
R RGRE k&R GAEE  iEEE  ERE SRAEEE  RERA Gr fiRER BagE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 28) (Note28)  (Note 29(a) (Note29() ~ (Note29(c)  (Note 29(d) (Note 31)
(Mitog)  (Mitos)  (Bhitoom) (Mitoop)  (ioog)  (Wioag) (M3x31)
At 1 January 2021 K-E--%-f-R 220 98,676 11286 752 19,383 (b,14g) - 58979 286,127 5,804 291931
Proft o the year R - - - - - - - 724 7241 269 10073
Other comprehensiv oss) Ah2E (B ha
income
ems trat wil ot be reckssited T EEFAEE
toproftorbss: BatEs
Exchange diferences on RERDAMBREE
translation ofthe Company’s SHlEHMES 2R
financial statements fo
presentation currency - - - - - (1,1) - - (1,711 - (1,711)
Financial assets at FVOCI BATEHALLZE
hiahediE
-Chenges infai value takento ~ATEZHIA
reserves (Note 17) Ei:AGED) - - - - - - (179 - (179 - BT
- Gains on dlsposal taken to —HARBNLE
resenves (Note 17) W (M) - - - - - - 1,116 - 1,116 - 1,116
-Gansondisposalrecycedto  ~EEZRERFH
retained eamings h = - - - - - - (1,116) 1,116 - - -
ltoms that mey be reckssited  RETHEHFEE
subsequenty foproftorloss:  Ea#EA
Bxchange dfirence on rangaton £ E 55 £ 5K
of foeign operations EXZE - - - - - 168 - - 168 - 168
Exchange resene released upon  SUEE T -RBAA
deregstraton of a subsidiary BERIMERE - - - - - @) - - “3 - (%]
Tota other comprehensive loss) ~ EREH2E (B1)
income for the year s - - - - - (1,586) (5,173 1116 5,649 - (5649
Total comprehensive (oss) income £/ 2 (B518) Wik
for the year 4% - - - - - (1,586) (173 8,367 1598 2832 4430
Transactons ith owners: HEEANRS
Contrbutons and dstroutions B3 RAE
Aopropriaton to statutory resenve.  REER S fe - - - - 1704 - - (1,704) - - -
Capitl contibution fiom FElER A
non-contraling inferests - - - - - - - - - 1500 1,600
Totdl rensactons wih owners —— 2EE AR 548 - - - - 1,704 - - (1,704) - 1500 1500
At 31 December 2021 HoE--£
TZA=t-8 220 98,676 11123 752 21,087 (6,734) 173 65,632 2772 10,136 297,861
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\lj_\ IE@/)ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2022 & = —

E-Ff A=+ —HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARBFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFTH
Cash generated from operations &Z&FSE & 30(a) 76,654 18,586
Income tax paid BAEH (711) (2,900)
Interest received B U F & 1,159 649
Net cash from operating activities B&E& ZE 2R & FHE 77,102 16,335
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest income from unlisted FELEMEEESHFHOF WA
corporate bonds 1,461 -
Dividend income B B4 A 205 -
Payment for purchase of property, XN BEEWHE - BE L& E
plant and equipment (4,041) (62,676)
Payment for purchase of intangible X8 & R & &
assets (4,286) (544)
Receipt of government grants for DL B AR UWCER 2 BUAT 1 B
purchase of equipment 3,110 11,738
Proceeds from disposal of property, &% V B RE#E
plant and equipment Fr1§ 3K - 2,830
Proceeds from disposal of financial  H&E&R A $@§+ A8 s
assets at fair value through profit (M AT EFTAER]D®
or loss (“FVTPL”) TRLEEFTERIE - 5,000
Payment for purchase of financial ~ XM EER A FEF A HA
assets at FVOCI E2HUENEREE - (23,653)
Proceeds from disposal of financial &R AFEFAEMEE
assets at FVOCI WS REEMSHRIA - 11,084
Purchase of financial asset at I8 B IR SR AN 5 BR Y
amortised cost TREE (18,089) (16,352)
Proceeds from redemption of 8 B R 8 SH AR AR 51 BR Y
financial asset at amortised cost TREERSHRIE 17,537 -
Net cash flow from acquisition of a U B — &I B B A &1 HY
subsidiary W MmFRE 32 (6,369) -
Net cash used in investing RETBFARESFE
activities (10,472) (72,573)
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CONSOL|DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
n‘/j—\ IE%/}ILE%% n,\

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT R ARMBF T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERATERIE - 19,245
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIRITER 30(b) (5,175) (20,342)
(Increase) Decrease in pledged bank 2 IR R 1777 (3 0) I8
deposits 1) 12,862
Payment of interests on bank S AHRTTIE A B
borrowings 30(b) (516) (889)
Payment of principal element of lease X N & & EAE L H
liabilities 30(b) (5,238) ©9,178)
Payment of interest element of lease XA E & EFIE D
liabilities 30(b) (687) (327)
Capital contribution from FERERZIFE
non-controlling interests - 1,500

Net cash (used in) from financing BE EE (FrA) FFERE
activities FE (11,617) 2,871

Net increase (decrease) incash BE&RRSEEYIE M (L)

and cash equivalents FE 55,013 (563,367)
Cash and cash equivalents REHINESRESEEY

at the beginning of

the reporting period 48,926 104,004
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXGEH 8 FH

changes, net 7,563 (1,711)

Cash and cash equivalents atthe HEPRRERRESEEY -
end of the reporting period, BRTESRRRES
represented by bank balances
and cash 21 111,502 48,926
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE -~ —4#+ - HA=+—HIFE&F

1.

General Information

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “Group”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 7 December
2018. The shares of the Company are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 18 October 2019. The registered
office of the Company is situated at Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of business
is situated at Unit 702, 7th Floor, Greenfield Tower,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong and the Group’s headquarter
is situated at No. 7 Building, New Development Zone,
Baishixia, Fuyong Street, Bao’an District, Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of (i)
electronic manufacturing service (“EMS”) and (i) financial-
related application platform (“Financial Application Platform”)
and related maintenance services (“Platform Maintenance
Services”). The principal activities of the Group’s subsidiaries
are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company is Skyflying Company Limited (“Skyflying”), which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
controlling party of the Group is Mr. Li Hao (the “Ultimate
Controlling Party”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 &t F —F — —#+ - H=+—HI F/F

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all amounts have been rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise
indicated.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2021 consolidated financial statements except for
the adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are
relevant to the Group and effective from the current period.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfiling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle

HKFRSs

2.

EREFEE

BREH
ZEGAVBBRRIOBREFEGQ
g((BEEFMAS) EhZ2MEER
BRPBREEN ([FEMBHHREER)
(ZFREMEERENETEM RS E
- BB GEA ((FEGHER]D K
2B REARARERAARMEEAT
RO BERERE - ZFHRAVHR
RN AMRAES EMARA (T EMR
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow
lessees to account for such rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications. It applies to Covid-19-related rent
concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before
30 June 2022. The amendments do not affect lessors.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16: Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements for
proceeds received by an entity from selling items produced
while testing an item of property, plant or equipment before
it is used for its intended purpose. An entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those
items, in profit or loss and measures the cost of those items
applying the measurement requirements of HKAS 2.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfiling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly
to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfiling that contract
(for example, direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for
example, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfiling the
contract).

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for some types of
liabilities and contingent liabilities, an entity applying HKFRS
3 should instead refer to HKAS 37. The exception has been
added to avoid an unintended consequence of updating the
reference.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020
Cycle
HKFRS 1. Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

This amendment simplifies the application of HKFRS 1 for
a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of HKFRSs
later than its parent — i.e. if a subsidiary adopts HKFRSs
later than its parent and applies HKFRS 1.D16(a), then a
subsidiary may elect to measure cumulative translation
differences for all foreign operations at amounts included in
the consolidated financial statements of the parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9: Fees in the “10 per cent” Test for
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of
performing the “10 per cent test” for derecognition of
financial liabilities — in determining those fees paid net of fees
received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf.

HKFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements. As currently
drafted, Example 13 is not clear as to why such payments
are not a lease incentive.

HKAS 41: Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

This amendment removes the requirement to exclude
cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value, thereby
aligning the fair value measurement requirements in HKAS
41 with those in HKFRS 13.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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2. 2. ERETHE®@®

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for financial assets at FVOCI and financial assets at FVTPL
(if any) which are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policy set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of the other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (j)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the holding company had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the former
subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former
subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset or liability,
an associate, a joint venture or others, as appropriate, from
the date when control is lost.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are principally recognised at their fair
value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets and
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 and HKAS 19 respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed at acquisition date. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, investments in subsidiaries is
stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of
the interest is reduced to its respective recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The result of a subsidiary is accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment or a portion thereof is classified as held for sale.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment.
Except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses when the Group’s share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is
measured as the excess of the cost of investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquired associate. Such goodwill is
included in interests in an associate. On the other hand,
any excess of the Group’s share of its net fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of investment
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as an income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the
acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwiill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree (if applicable) and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Any resulting gain or loss arising from remeasuring the
previously held equity interests in the acquiree at the
acquisition-date fair value is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (included right-of-use
assets) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, over their estimated useful lives as set out below
from the date on which they are available for use and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method. Where parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated
separately:

20 years
Shorter of estimated useful
lives or remaining lease

Building
Leasehold improvements

terms
Plant and machinery 3to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 31to 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination — e-Financial Club App

e-Financial Club App is a financial application platform
acquired in a business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, the e-Financial Club App
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected lives of the e-Financial Club App, which are
determined to be 10 years.

The e-Financial Club App is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of the
e-Financial Club App, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the e-Financial
Club App is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application of
research findings to a plan to design for the production of
new or substantially improved products and processes,
are capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources to complete the development. The expenditure
capitalised will be the outsourcing costs. Other development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as an expense as
incurred. When the asset is available for use, the capitalised
development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Software

The initial costs of acquiring the computer software licenses
for own use are capitalised. Computer software licenses
with finite useful lives is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis, except for financial
assets measured at FVTPL and financial assets measured
at FVOCI which are accounted for on the settlement date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade
receivables are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) debt investment measured
at FVOCI; (iii) equity investment measured at FVOCI; or (iv)
measured at FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

(1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

(i) itis held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

Financial asset at amortised cost is subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
include trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, an unlisted bond recognised as financial
asset at amortised cost, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash.

Financial assets at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

The Group’s financial assets at FVOCI include equity
securities which are not held for trading.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

©)

Financial assets at FVTPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are
otherwise required to be measured at FVTPL. They
are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and
loss recognised in profit or loss, which includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in
the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVTPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
All financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVTPL,
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.

the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or
more shared credit risk characteristics:

(i)  past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) industry of debtors

(iv) geographical location of debtors

(v) external credit risk ratings, if available

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or

loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

()  information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

(Continued)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, except for the receivables for which the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that
previous non-payments were an administrative oversight,
instead of resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower,
or that there is no correlation between significant increases
in the risk of a default occurring and financial assets on
which payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

(i) it has alow risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. E K5 B (@)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Low credit risk (Continued)

Bill receivables guaranteed by banks, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances are determined to have low
credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets without significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

()  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15

Nature of services

The nature of the services provided by the Group is as
follows:

(@ provision of EMS;
(o) provision of Financial Application Platform; and

(c) provision of Platform Maintenance Services.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the services
promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as
a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the
customer either:

(@) aservice (or a bundle of services) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct services that are substantially the
same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.

A service that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of
the following criteria are met:

(@ the customer can benefit from the service either on its
own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer (i.e. the service is capable of
being distinct); and

(o) the Group’s promise to transfer the service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises
in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the service
is distinct within the context of the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised service
(i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or
as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(@ the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Revenue from provision of EMS is recognised over
time because (i) the Group manufactures the products
according to the customer’s specification and the Group
is limited practically or contractually from directing the final
products and any assets created or enhanced during the
production process for another use; and (i) the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for the performance
completed to date if the customer were to cancel the
contract for reasons other than the Group’s failure to
perform as promised.

Revenue from provision of Financial Application Platform
is recognised at a point in time when the subscribers
successfully registered the application platform.

Revenue from provision of Platform Maintenance Services,
represents the provision of maintenance services for the
Financial Application Platform, is recognised over time on
the straight-line basis over the agreed services period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies (i) the input
method (i.e. based on the proportion of the actual inputs
deployed to date as compared to the estimated total inputs)
to measure the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation because there is a direct
relationship between the Group’s inputs and the transfer
of control of goods or services to the customers or (i) the
output method (i.e. based on the direct measurements
of the value to the customer of the goods or services
transferred to date relative to the remaining goods or
services promised under the contract) to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation because the method provides a faithful depiction
of the Group’s performance and reliable information is
available to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the costs
incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the
outcome of the performance obligation.

The principal input applied in the input method is:

—  Provision of EMS: based on the cost incurred,
including the raw material costs, direct labour costs
and other overheads

The following output methods are applied:

—  Provision of Platform Maintenance Services: based on

the performance obligations completed towards the
services promised under the contracts
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Transaction price. significant financing cormponents

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of services to
the customer), in determining the transaction price, the
Group adjusts the promised consideration for the effects
of the time value of money. The effect of the significant
financing component is recognised as an interest income
or interest expense separately from revenue from contracts
with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of
the services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the period
of financing is one year or less.

Revenue from other sources
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial asset measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-
impaired financial assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources (Continued)
Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract
asset, excluding any amounts presented as a receivable.
Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or the
Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a service to the
customer, the contract is presented as a contract liability
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s right to consideration
that is unconditional or only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For provision of EMS, payments are normally not due
or received from the customer until the right for billing is
unconditional. For such transactions, a contract asset is
recognised until it becomes a receivable or payments are
received.

On the other hand, for provision of Platform Maintenance
Services, it is common for the Group to receive from
customers the whole or some of the contractual payments
before the whole services are completed (i.e. the timing
of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group
recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as
revenue.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Company’s functional
currency is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Since the Group’s
main operation is carried out in the PRC, the amounts
shown in the consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at period-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented and, where applicable, goodwill
and fair value adjustments on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition of a
foreign operation which are to be treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation, are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
the average exchange rates;

e all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised as
a separate component of equity;
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a disposal involving the loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest is no
longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to the foreign
operation that is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the separate component
of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised;

on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss; and

on all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of an associate that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets), intangible assets,
investment in an associate and the Company’s investments
in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest
group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior periods. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised
as an income in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value credited to a deferred income account under the
consolidated statement of financial position’s line item
“Deferred government grants” and is released to profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and, where applicable, the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset (included in

property, plant and equipment) and a lease liability at the
commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. 2. ERETHE®@®

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@ the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Leased properties
Plant and machinery

2 to 5 years
3to 10 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(@ the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. 2. ERETTHE®@®

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as
a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification,

(@ the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above;

(b) the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract;

(c) the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term;

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease
in profit or loss; or

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided
in Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 and does not assess
whether eligible rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic are lease
modification. The Group accounts for any change in lease
payments resulting from the rent concession the same way
it would account for the change applying HKFRS 16 if the
change were not a lease modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently
to all eligible rent concessions with similar characteristics
and in similar circumstances.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
employees of the Group’s entities established in the PRC
are required to participate in defined contribution retirement
plans organised by local governments. Contributions to
these plans are expensed in profit or loss as incurred and
other than these monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement benefits to
its employees.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the holding company of the
Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. EXETBER @

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(viy A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
holding company of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the holding company
of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@ that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management, which is
the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of services, the type or class of customers
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management of the Group in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
They affect the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed
on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Where appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period of revision and future periods, in
case the revision also affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

() Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets

The management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of the relevant assets of similar
nature and functions. The estimated useful lives could
be different as a result of technical innovations which
could affect the related depreciation charges included
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. EAEFHE @

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets

The management of the Group determines whether
the Group’s property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets are impaired
when an indication of impairment exists. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets, which is equal to the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Estimating the value in use requires the Group’s
management to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Any impairment will be charged to profit or loss.

(i) Allowance for inventories

The Group’s inventories comprise solely raw materials
of which the Group’s management primarily intends
to utilise for EMS contracts. These raw materials are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group utilises these raw materials for the
assembling and production of printed circuit board
assembly (“PCBA”), and their net realisable value is
the estimated service contract price less estimated
costs to completion and direct selling expenses. The
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of provision of services
using raw materials of similar nature. Write-down of
inventories are recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
down of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. The Group’s management
reassesses these estimates at end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. E K5 B (@)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: (Continued)
(iv) Loss allowance for ECL

The management of the Group estimates the loss
allowance for contract assets, trade and other
receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which
is based on the Group’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of contract
assets, trade and other receivables.

(v) Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes and deferred taxation.
There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain where the final
tax outcome of these matters may be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded and such
differences will affect the income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as the Group’s management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and tax expense in
the periods in which such estimate is changed.

EESFHEE R M E @@

BT EEEEN T ZRR (&)
(v) FERIIZ BER A BT 1R 1%

AEBERENAEORR & EB
EREZTAHABEBELERR 5
BREE E5MEMEERKIARK
AHEREE AR ERRETE
EN - ETVERAEERBEER
B B0 A K & R B R 2 TR 1
fAETEL © WIBMER LA TR
ZERBETEANEE BHRHE
i FE R IR B BRI E

V) FTiE#

PREm R ELEHARENEES 2
FHEANGE -XSZMAEMP R
MBERREEEDEE - WM& E
FENERRBERAZI LN
THEER ZFEERBETEM
BHAMELEHARIELEE AN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
period, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies ")

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current @

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants @
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback @
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ©

(1) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

(8)  The effective date to be determined

The management of the Group does not anticipate that
the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

Year ended 31 December 2022 &t F —F — —#+ - H=+—HI F/F

3.

REMTEHRAMNEE @

Segment Information

In order to realise business diversification, the Group
has commenced the business of provision of Financial
Application Platform and Platform Maintenance Services
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The executive
directors of the Company who make strategic decisions
have been identified as the CODM to evaluate the
performance of operating segments and to allocate
resources to those segments. Based on risks and returns
and the Group’s internal financial reporting, the CODM
considers that the operating segments of the Group
comprise:

(1) Provision of EMS

(2) Provision of Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services

Segment results represent results before tax reported by
each segment without allocation of certain other income and
other losses, net, certain selling and distribution expenses,
certain administrative and other operating expenses
incurred by the corporate office, certain impairment losses
on financial assets and contract assets, gain on bargain
purchase arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary and
finance costs which are considered as unallocable income
and expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM
of the Company for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
financial assets at FVOCI, certain prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial asset at amortised cost,
certain pledged bank deposits and certain cash and
cash equivalents. All liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than certain other payables and accruals.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenue
is attributable to the segments based on the location of
customers; assets and capital expenditure are attributable
to the segments based on the locations of the assets.

The Group completed the acquisition of a new business
segment — provision of Financial Application Platform and
Platform Maintenance Services through a newly acquired
subsidiary, Shanghai Regan Financial Information Service
Co., Ltd.* (Regan Financial Information) ( /& & 1R & &= &
REERA al) on 3 November 2022. Before that, the
Group has determined that it only has one reportable
operating segment which is the provision of EMS. As this is
the only operating segment of the Group prior to the
acquisition of Regan Financial Information, no further
analysis for segment information is presented for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

* For identification propose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

3. Segment Information (Continued) 3. DEER @)
(A) By Business Segments A BEKDEE D
Provision of
Financial
Application
Platform and
Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS Services Consolidated
Rtem
=g ER¥ER
ETRERY FREERE TE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBTR
Year ended BE-E--f£+ZA
31 December 2022 =t—HLEE
Segment revenue b1 ON 260,514 2,734 263,248
Segment results DHEE (2,622 (1,020 (3,642)
Unallocated other income RO EMKA 16
Unallocated other gains, net K2 e E Uiz 548 1,793
Unallocated selling and AOBHE KD HFAX
distribution expenses (345)
Unallocated administrative and k7 B2 17 B} H fth 38
other operating expenses X (7,233)
Impairment losses on financial £ &EE K&K EER
assets and contract assets  JB{EEE (288)

Gain on bargain purchase WE—RRBARZ
arising from the acquisition 3 B8 B iz

of a subsidiary 2,133
Loss before tax BREE AT 18 (7,566)
Income tax credits PristiEse 489
Loss for the year FREE (7,077)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

3. Segment Information (Continued)

(A) By Business Segments (Continued)
A major customer is a customer (including a group of
entities under common control) with whom revenue
from transactions amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue in the respective reporting
period.

Revenue from customers (including a group of entities
under common control) individually contributed over
10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

3.

o EE R @)
(A) IREK D EBE D (|

TBEFR/REKAEXR %ZH&Z (PN
SEERBARSARNEUWE10%K
NEZEF (BREZARZEH 2 ERE
B o

A7 6% B A2 My 25 1 ) B BREL 109% JA
EoER (BRERRZEG TH—A
) W T

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETF T

Customer A ZEA 72,179 147,481
Customer B ®FB 63,240 100,224
Customer C =BFEC 30,067 35,328
Customer D 2FED 30,775 N/AA~ i3 A
196,261 283,033

Revenue from Customer D was less than 10% of the
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The five largest customers accounted for
approximately 82% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately 87%).

BE_T-_—F+-_A=t—HL
FE FEFDUEALRBKE10% °

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—8H1t
FE ARAEPHAEEBERAL
82% (ZZT = —45 : H987%) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

3. Segment Information (Continued) 3. DEER @)

(A) By Business Segments (Continued) (A) BEK D EE D (3
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by REBRZREEDHBENDHMEERE

(==

operating segments is set out below: BEATHEHINET -

Provision of

Financial

Application

Platform and

Platform

Provision Maintenance
of EMS Services Unallocated Consolidated

Ritewm

Rt ERTER
ETHERE TRBERY AAE ®E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR¥FR AR¥T R

At 31 December 2022 RIE-ZZ&+ZH

=+-H
Segment assets PHEE 354,409 23,347 33,664 411,420
Segment liabilities PHEE (94,521) (8,028) (2,600) (105,149)
Year ended BE-E-_—%

31 December 2022 +=ZA=+-H

LEE
Other segment information: £t 7 E#] -
Amortisation B 819 295 - 1,114
Depreciation nE 39,609 9 - 39,618

(Loss) Gain on disposal HEME  :ER
of property, plant and REFEL

equipment, net (B18) s (475) 8 - (467)

Exchange (loss) gain, net ~ [E 3, (E518) Ueak
FEE (3,350) - 20 (3,330)

Bank interest income RITH WA 1,143 - 16 1,159
Finance costs PR 1,203 - - 1,203
Provision for write-down of 17 & 8 & % 48

inventories, net 1,007 - - 1,007
Impairment loss on financial 4 &I &E kA HEE

assets and contract ZREBEFE

assets, net 2 - 288 290
Additions to property, REME BER

plant and equipment R (BEERE

(including right-of-use BE)

assets) 7,962 20 - 7,982
Additions to intangible NEEWEE

assets 1,079 3,207 - 4,286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

3. Segment Information (Continued) 3. 7EER @
(B) By Geographic Information (B) b EE R El 5
() Revenue form external customers () KREIINBEPHIUEE
The Group’s operation is principally domiciled in AEENKEEEBEFRRAL
the PRC. The Group’s revenue by geographical ET - AEENMEBUNEE S
location, which is determined by the location of Bz (&P FTEE i@ 2 5E)
customers, is as follows: W
Provision of
Financial
Application
Platform and
Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS Services Consolidated
BitEw
R ER¥ER
ETHERE FABEERS RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T ARETR
Year ended BE-E-_—F
31 December 2022 +=-B=+—-H
HEE
The PRC H 260,443 2,734 263,177
The United States of EFERERE ([EE])
America (the “USA”) 7 - 4l

260,514 2,734 263,248
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

3. Segment Information (Continued) 3.
(B) By Geographic Information (Continued)

()  Revenue form external customers

U

o EE R @)
(B) R EER B (@)

KB INERE P E e ()

(Continued)
Provision of
Financial
Application
Platform and
Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS Services Consolidated
RS
R ERAFER
BT RIERS TaMgERY )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT AREFT
Year ended HE_ZT-_—F
31 December 2021 +=ZR=+—-H
HEE
The PRC H 353,615 - 353,615
The USA % 281 - 281
353,896 - 353,896

(i)  Non-current assets by geographical

location

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the
Group’s non-current assets were located in the

PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

4. Revenue 4. W=

2022 2021
—E-CF —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Revenue from contracts with ERUKRELERE15HFAN

customers within HKFRS 15 EFEEHWE
Overtime BB ZE b5 A7

— Provision of EMS — REETRERY 260,514 353,896

— Provision of Platform Maintenance

— R#tFaEERE

Services _
Point in time R 1G5 B2
— Provision of Financial Application - RterERTAE
Platform 1,792 -
263,248 353,896

The amounts of revenue recognised for the year ended 31
December 2022 that were included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period was approximately
RMB1,5083,000 (2021: RMB1,487,000) (Note 23).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, all
brought-forward contract liabilities at the beginning of the
financial year were fully recognised as revenue (Note 23).

REBE_FT-_—_F+_HA=+—HLF
EERHKZE S B ARFYVIHRE A
MNEHEE Z2BEHARK1,503,000
T(ZZT=—F : AR®1,487,0007T) (Kt
£¥23)

BE_ZEZT-_—_FRr_ZT-_—F+_A
= T—HLEFE FIERMBFEVR
EEMELHaBEERHER AR E (3T
23) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

government authorities granted to the Group for purchase of certain
qualified property, plant and equipment for its operation. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the assets related grants were
approximately RMB4,381,000 (2021: RMB4,564,000) (Note 27). There
are no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies attached to the remaining
government grants for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Other Losses, net

5. Other Income 5. Hig A

2022 2021
—E-CF —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTT
Bank interest income IRITF B YA 1,159 649
Government subsidies (Note) BT R AL (BEE) 5,765 5,684
Others HAt 98 73
7,022 6,406

Note: Government grants primarily represent subsidies from relevant local Mk B HAE E 2 RS BT RER TASE

WA UBEETHAREENABYE K
ERkZHE REE=ZT-_=_F+=-A=+—H
IEFE - EEERE LN AR 4,381,000
T(ZFTZ—F: AR®4,564,0007) (Kt 5
27) RBEZTS-_—_FR=-ZT=_—F+=A8
=+—BIEFE - BT ERIERIK
MR AETE o

6. HfEiE - FH

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBF T
Interest income from unlisted FLEMREESFFEHKA
corporate bonds 1,571 -
Dividend income B A 205 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - FEMKREBEEE
and equipment, net FEE (467) (1,580)
Exchange (loss) gain, net M5 (E1E) W F 58 (3,330) 610
Gain on exchange reserve released BUH R it — R B 2 B11& fEBR
upon deregistration of a subsidiary HNE R A s - 43
Changes in fair values on financial BATEFABEZEHEEN
assets at FVTPL NEEZH - )
(2,021) (928)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

7.

(Loss) Profit before Tax
This is stated after charging (crediting):

7. BRBLAT (BR) m A
ULE IR (%) THIEE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Finance costs g 3%
Interest on bank borrowings HRITERFE 516 889
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 687 327
1,203 1,216
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRKT(BEESEHS)
emoluments)
Salaries, discretionary bonus, e BIBTEA - ER X
allowances and other benefits in HihEEEF
kind 71,263 85,019
Contributions to defined contribution & Z8 4 Z T 21 #9472k (B 1)
plans (Note i) 3,609 3,767
74,872 88,786
Manpower service expenses (Note i) A J1AR#5 5 (B Eii) 5,667 14,746
80,539 103,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 — &~ —

7. (Loss) Profit before Tax (Continued)

Fr_HA=+—HIFE

7. BREiA (&8RN @

2022 2021
—E-CF —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFT
Other expenses by nature RUEBEINHMEX
Cost of raw materials and FfE A IR M R KB A f AR
consumables used 91,901 123,314
Subcontracting charges >EERH 15,643 27,276
Expenses recognised under FEHEITHE T R a2
short-term leases
— Machineries — M 17,397 24,383
- Offices, warehouses, production —WMR=E - -BE - £ENE
plant and staff quarters FETIFESE 4,483 3,467
Utilities NGRS 6,660 7,649
Depreciation (charged to “cost of TE (RIBRATHEEA] R
sales” and “administrative and other  [{TE K H & @R < | k)
operating expenses”, as appropriate)  (Fff&Eiii)
(Note ii) 39,618 37,665
Amortisation (charged to “cost of BiE (RIBRRTIEERA] R
sales” and “administrative and other ~ [1TEX & B4 & E 5 |15 )
operating expenses”, as appropriate) 1,114 744
Auditor’s remuneration = AT EN & 1,695 1,701
Professional fees EXER 5,844 5,682
Provision for (Reversal of) write-down 77 &R {E R, (B E) F58
of inventories, net 1,007 (1,264)
Impairment losses on financial assets & @MEERANEEZ RAERIE
and contract assets 290 240
Other tax and surcharges EabFE MM nE A 2,698 1,536
Transportation R 149 301
Travelling expenses ERFZ 1,012 1,579
Others HAt, 6,695 8,028
196,206 242,301
Total cost of sales, selling and HERA - HERDHEASZ
distribution expenses, administrative ~ 1TE & E b & EFR Y &
and other operating expenses and CTREENENEEZ
impairment losses on financial VERIENSEi=E L
assets and contract assets 276,745 345,833
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

7.

(Loss) Profit before Tax (Continued)

7. BREiA (&8RN @

Notes: B 5

)  As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, [0} ZRRPEIERR A SOE AR TE - RPEEER
the subsidiary operating in the PRC contributes to state-sponsored M@ A RAREEBRBEREBHRIKGEIE
retirement plans for its employees. For the years ended 31 December HER - BHEZT_—FR-FT=—F+=A
2022 and 2021, depending on the provinces of the employees’ =t+t—BEFE RFTEENEBLFELD
registered residences and their current region of work, the subsidiary HEAI{EE  MBARAEHEREER
contributed certain percentages of the basic salaries of its employees HeETEOLMER  BUEE—PEAR
and had no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or ZEEFINYBRR S TR EEFELER X
postretirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored o ZEFERE RN EI B BRI EKE

retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations

payable to the retired employees.

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
entered into certain manpower service arrangements with several
external manpower service organisations in the PRC. Under these
arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower requirements were
fulfilled by these organisations at agreed service fees whereas the
human resources provided were directly employed by the relevant
service organisations. The individuals providing services to the Group
did not have any employment relationship with the Group.

BNZERASEE -

iy BE-ZT-_—_FR-T-_—F+=-R=+—8H
IEFE - AEEBEHRFEINDA N ERBRS
BB L ETANERRBEZH - REEHELR
B ZERBRBERBERRETAEEE
FAFFXR - AR A N ERAEERS
BEEEED ZERNASERERBEHAL
I ERAE B A A EERE -

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, depreciation iy HEZE-_—_Fr-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H
expenses have been charged in costs of sales and administrative and IFFE  FERIXD A HERARITBREM
other operating expenses, as appropriate, as below: EEMAIMBRET :

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBEFIT

Costs of sales $HE K 33,530 33,537
Administrative and other operating expenses TREEMEERY 6,088 4,128
39,618 37,665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Emoluments 8. EERAEZESFMA LT 2%

of Five Highest Paid Individuals A
8(a).Director’s emoluments 8(a). = = %
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BB SESNEFMNH LT

directors were set forth below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_S-_—F+—-A1
=t+—HIFE
Salaries,

allowances Contributions

and other to defined

Directors’ benefitsin  Discretionary  contribution
fees kind bonus plans Total

e 2RR TR E
Exhe HHERRER BEA fEEA st

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

M AR®TR AR®TRT ARBTT ARBTRT ARMTR

Executive directors ~ #1TEF i

Li Hao By i 104 1,146 600 32 1,882
Zhang Bizhong RNE 104 817 450 16 1,387
Xu Shizhen FHE 104 584 300 17 1,005
Li Bigiong FER i 104 153 10 12 279
Hao Xiangjun WHEE i 138 - - - 138
Non-executive director 5 17ZF v

Yuan Shuntang RIEE 104 - - 13 117

Inclependent non- BUHHNTEE

execulive directors v
Wong Chun Sek EHRHE

Edmund 104 - - - 104
Chen Zhong ¥ v 86 - - - 86
Mu Lingxia BAE i 104 - - - 104
Huang Jianfei =R vi 17 - - - 17

969 2,700 1,360 20 5,119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Emoluments 8. EERAEZESFMA LT 2%

of Five Highest Paid Individuals (Continued) BN ()
8(a).Director’s emoluments (Continued) 8@ EEFM &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_ZT-_—%+—-H
=t+—BILFE
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefitsin -~ Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plans Total
e 2HR TRHTE
EX0E HMEREAN BT igfiiso FoH)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Note ~ AREFTT ARBTR ARBTL ARETT ARETR

Executive directors ~ #i7EE

Li Hao &N i 100 743 800 15 1,658
Zhang Bizhong RE 100 770 600 14 1,484
Xu Shizhen ST E 100 503 400 14 1,017
Li Bigiong ZER i 20 154 67 11 252
Non-executive director  FEHiTEE v
Yuan Shuntang = IEE 100 - - - 100
Independent non- BUHFHTEF

executive directors v
Wong Chun Sek HRE

Edmund 100 - - - 100
Wu Tai Cheung YN vii 83 - - - 83
Chen Zhong B v 100 - - - 100
Mu Lingxia REE i 20 - - - 20

723 2,170 1,867 54 4,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

8. EERABBREHFMALZHE

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Emoluments

of Five

Highest Paid Individuals (Continued)

8(a).Director’s emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The emoluments were for their services in connection with
management of affairs of the Group.

Mr. Li Hao is an executive director, chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company.

Mr. Hao Xiangjun was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 April 2022.

The emoluments were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 19 October 2022.

Mr. Huang Jianfei was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 October 2022.

Ms. Li Bigiong and Ms. Mu Lingxia were appointed as an
executive director and an independent non-executive director of
the Company, respectively, on 18 October 2021.

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 18 October 2021.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no

emol

uments were paid by the Group to the directors

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. No directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

188 emmsmmaRAT 45 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Emoluments
of Five Highest Paid Individuals (Continued)
8(b).Emoluments of five highest paid

individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 included three (2021:
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

8.

BEENLEBBRETFMALTZE
B ()

8(b).HE & &

= H A £ 2 E

AEBBE_T-__F+-A
ZSt-HALtFERERSHFMAL
\Lﬁﬁ@ﬂiEEAJ:YFﬁiﬁll D AT R

analysis presented above and two (2021: two) non- REM=%2(ZFT=_—F:=%)&F
director individuals whose emoluments are disclosed ERMEBE(ZEZ—F - MB)FE
as follows: EALT HBISEENOT ¢
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Salaries, discretionary bonus, e MBI - 2R
allowances and other benefits HiEEEA
in kind 1,318 1,156
Contributions to defined TE R SRET BRI 3R
contribution plans 28 27
1,346 1,183
The emoluments fell within the following bands: FNTUATEER :
2022 2021
—E-CE —E-F
Emolument band's e
Not more than HK$500,000 (equivalent 7~ 8 500,000 7 7t
to approximately RMB428,000) (18 ““WMEM 428,0007T)
(2021: equivalent to approximately (Z2Z—F HERD
RMB416,000) AR 416,0007T) - 1
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000 (equivalent 500,001 7% 7T & 1,000,000 % 7T
to approximately RMB428,000 to (HERH AR 428000 F
RMB855,000) (2021: equivalent AR#855,00070) (ZE=—F:
to approximately RMB416,000 to BERH AR 416,0007TE
RMB832,000) AR #832,0007T) 2 1
2 2

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the highest
paid individuals as a payment for loss of office or as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no highest paid individuals as set out above waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments.

HE_Z-_—_Fhk=_ZF=_—F+=
B=+—BLFE AEBEHER
hEZeHHA T HME EABH
BAEIEABENARERLR
A& K S2E -

BE-_T-_—§R-_FT-_—F+=
A=+—BLEE FRFAN%
BHEMALHEREXRBREL
fAIEN < o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

e EERRE @

9. Taxation 9. HIE
2022 2021
—E2== —E—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Current tax RENHIE
PRC enterprise income tax PRI EATSH
(“PRC EIT”) (THPBEEEMRET]) 2,854 1,883
Deferred taxation (Note 26) IEFE T 18 (Bt 26)

Changes in temporary differences TR =R (3,343) 369
Total income tax (credits) expenses Fi8#H (ER) BB (489) 2,252
The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and Bz -—_—E#N—_ZEE-—F+_A8
the BVI are exempted from corporate income tax during the —t+—BHIEE AEFRHEEER
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. NEELHERYNEREEREEHMND

HEFEH -
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as BHE-_E-_—_FK-_FT-_—F+=_H4
the Group had no assessable profits arising in or derived —t—HUHEFE BRAEETEER
from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December MENEENIREBNE S » N #E5
2022 and 2021. EBMNSHT 2B E -
The Group’s entities established in the PRC are subject to AREBARPEKIHNEEBIREIETHE
the PRC EIT at a statutory rate of 25% except for Shenzhen 5% MR B CEMERH  MHERIIER
Confidence Intelligence Electronic Co. Limited* (“Shenzhen HEeEETERAR (DFEYEREEE]) &
Confidence Intelligence”) (R IINE RS 2 EFH R A Al) ERECREEERIT A ITEMEE
and Regan Financial Information which were recognised as BE-_ST-—_F+-A=+—HItEE
High and New Technology Enterprise and is entitled to a BREEERERERI5%HH (T - —F :
preferential tax rate of 15% during the year ended 31 FHEBREEERA B HEMDE) -
December 2022 (2021: Shenzhen Confidence Intelligence AR GERE AR BT =FEHEBS
recognised as High and New Technology Enterprise). The BMEBEE -
entitlement of this tax benefit is subject to renewal by
respective tax bureau in the PRC every three years.
For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

9.

9. BiIE @)

Taxation (Continued)
Reconciliation of income tax (credits)

FrEsi (R %) <Yk

expenses
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R ARETF T
(Loss) Profit before tax BrEiAT (B548) = 5 (7,566) 12,325
Income tax at statutory tax rate REBBAEERBREER
applicable in respective tax RS RAY
jurisdictions (418) 3,099
Tax exempt revenue TG 28 o Yz (455) (56)
Non-deductible expenses kb 1,778 1,489
Utilisation of previously unrecognised 15 i %t Bl A< B R B 75 /E5 18
tax losses (31) (163)
Unrecognised tax losses RERB B EE 644 -
Super deductions on research and Tt B A SZ AR B 40 (PR L)
development expenses (Note i) (2,007) (2,117)
Total income tax (credits) expenses FrE#: (%) B HEE (489) 2,252

Note:

(i) According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated by the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, enterprises engaging
in research and development activities are entitled to claim 150% to
175% of their research and development expenses incurred as tax
deductible expenses when determining their assessable profits for
that year.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxation profits is probable. At 31
December 2022, the Group recognised deferred tax assets
arising from tax losses of approximately RMB3,118,000
(2021 Nil) through acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 26).

At 31 December 2022, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses of approximately RMB403,000 and RMB3,855,000,
respectively, arising in Hong Kong and the PRC which are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
entities in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to
the uncertainty of future taxable profits against which the tax
losses can be utilised. The tax losses arising in Hong Kong
and the PRC can be carried forward against future taxable
profits. Under the current tax legislation, the tax losses
arising in Hong Kong can be carried forward indefinitely and
the tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried forward
for a maximum of 10 years from the year in which the tax
loss was incurred as the entity which arose the tax loss is
recognised as High and New Technology Enterprise in the
PRC.

MEsE -

()  RERPEERBELBBEGHBEERER -
REMBTFHNOXBRCETEFERERY
A T E AR R A 150% £ 175%
FRRIEAT MM ©

IEAET BB E i 2 THEE R R
MIAB R EE B A% EBER G E
BereBEBHRBENGZAR RZTE-—
T+ A=1+—H8 AEBERAWE—@BH
BAR (MiEee) EEFIEEENARE
3,118,000 L (Z 2 = —F : &) MERE
ERMEEE °

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—"H K&EE
DRREBNMNPRELSRERKIBEE
#3 A R ¥ 403,000 7T & A R # 3,855,000
o A HEEAEBENTENRKERT
AR AT EERRE GERY
AP EZERIEEERE W ER
WEREEHIBEE REBLFEE
EHHBEBEET N EEE RO ERM
wmA e RIBRITHHE REBEERN
MEEENEREAE  MRPBEELE
MRIEEE ARNEAREBENER
RABEERELESTRMEE B
LHEAHREBEENFERREERS
104F ©
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

10. 8% (FR) &R

10. (Losses) Earnings per Share

11.

192 eme

The calculation of basic and diluted (losses) earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on
the following information:

AEARBBREARIGERERNRETE
(B 8) BFJIERTIER

2022 2021
—ECF —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
(Loss) Profit: (E5#8) % 7 -
(Loss) Profit for the year attributable KR RFRN#EH A B (E1E)
to owners of the Company, used in m A AR EIREARN R #E
basic and diluted (losses) earnings (B518) BFETE
per share calculation (9,079) 7,241
’000 ‘000
TR Fh&
Number of shares: R17EH -
Weighted average number of ordinary &% & 78 & 858 (518 ) B 5 &
shares for basic and diluted (losses)  3@AX INfE P8t E
earnings per share calculation 250,000 250,000
RMB cents RMB cents
ARESD AR
(Losses) Earnings per share TR (EE) BT
Basic and diluted (losses) earnings FREARNREE (5B) BT
per share (3.63) 2.90

The basic (losses) earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the (loss) profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Diluted (losses) earnings per share are same as the basic
(losses) earnings per share as there are no potential
dilutive ordinary shares in existence for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Dividends

The directors did not recommend a payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

BEIERBRR AR Fik 2022

11.

HE-T-_—_#k=-_ZT-_—%F+=A
Zt+—BLFE SREKXEE) &F
ThilB AR N B A ATELS (Eiﬂé> ;mw}:

NBZEITERRINEFORER
HREBE-ZE_—_FR-_F_—F+=

A=+ RILFEXEBEETREN
BAk - shi#g (BR BNNEgRE
A (E18) BFER -

IR E

EETRENBE_ZT_—_F+-A
=t HUEFREERNEARE (ZT=—
FE)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e RMEE @
Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

12. Subsidiaries

12. fff B 2 7]
RIBERRMEEHBARFBOT -

Details of principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Percentage of effective
interests held/controlled
by the Group
AEEEE/BHH
ERERBIL
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity ~ operation paid up capital 2022 2021
LA AR 3L 3t B IR FEEHR
MEAREE EEEEESR EG$ick BRRRAFE —T-=F _—T_—F
Directly held
HERE
New Trive Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 United States 100% 100%
company in BVI Dollars (“USD")
New Trive Limited KBRS REBRLES IEZAESH)
BRAT EREER
Hero Tag Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% 100%
company inBVI
Hero Tag Limited RERZHS RABRXEHS E
BRAT REREER
Indlirectly held
FERE
New Trive (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$10,000 100% 100%
liability company in Hong Kong
HMBE(BE)ERAF BE BRRA REBRERE 10,0003# 7T
R
Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic Co.,  The PRC, limited Investment holding RMB100,000 100% 100%
Limited* liability company in the PRC
EERINEFERRA hE ARAA RPBERERE AR 100,0007T
R
Shenzhen Confidence The PRC, limited EMS in the PRC RMB115,238,710 100% 100%
Intelligence liability company
RGBS 8 hE BRARF RPBEREET ARE
BB R 115,238,7107C
Confidence Intelligence Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
(Hongkong) Limited liability company in Hong Kong
BB (BB)BERRA BE BRRA NERRERE 3,000,000/ 7
s
Chongaing Xinken Technology The PRC, limited EMS in the PRC RMB20,000,000 70% 70%
Company Limited* liability company
(“Chongaing Xinken
Technology”)
BEEERMEBRAF mE: ERAA RPBEREET ARE
(EEERRE]) BUERT 20,000,0007%

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

12. Subsidiaries (Continued) 12. [t B A 7] (®)

Percentage of effective
interests held/controlled
by the Group
rEEEE/BHH
ERERBIL
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity ~ operation paid up capital 2022 2021
AR L3t B R FEEBR
WEARAR EERRER ik BRRRAFE —T-=fF —T--F
Indirectly held (continueq)
FERE (&)
Hero Tag (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
liability company in Hong Kong
Hero Tag (HK) Limited &% BROF REBNERE 157
R
Wanhai Big Data Technology The PRC, limited Investment holding RMB6,799,905 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Limited* liability company in the PRC
(“Wanhai Big Data”)
BEREBENR(LE) AR e BRRA RPREGERE ARE
AT R 6,799,905 70
Anhui Xinken Information The PRC, limited EMS in the PRC Nil (Note i) 100% -
Technology Co., Ltd.* liability company
(“Anhui Xinken”)
ZHERESMERERRA e BRAA RPBEREET T (FfaEi)
(TZHER]) HERB
Shanghai Wanhai Jinyuan The PRG, limited Investment holding Nil (Note ) 100% -
Business Management liability company in the PRC
Company Limited*
(“Wanhai Jinyuan”)
TEEESROEER e BRAA RPBERERE T (FfaEi)
ARAT iy
Regan Financial Information The PRG, limited Provision of Financial RMB24,000,000 60% -
liability company Application
Platform
and Platform
Maintenance
Services in the
PRC
EREMER hE BRARF N E R RE AR 60%
BYakta# 24,000,000 7T
E R
Note: B A -
()  The registered share capital of Anhui Xinken and Wanhai Jinyuan are ) ZREBREESRNEMBESHNA/ARE

RMB20,000,000 and RMB100,000,000, respectively. 20,000,000 7T & A R #& 100,000,000 7 °

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. % - BMERRE

Right-of-use
assets Office Plant and Furniture Motor Leasehold
(Noteii) ~ equipment ~ machinery and fixtures vehicles  improvements Buildings Total
fEREEE
(Wi WORE  BEREE  GAREE RE RENERK gz L h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR
Reconcliation of FEEHER-
carmying amount - HE-%3--F
year ended t-B=t-H
31 December 2021 IF5E
Atthebegiming of the 1 E31]
reporting period 6,163 1829 141189 444 364 4282 - 154221
Addtions hE 15,380 1,190 31,793 138 200 2,484 9,951 67,136
Disposals & - - (5949 - - - - (,949)
Transfers (Note ) 25 (k) 633 - 633 - - - - -
Depreciation i3 (8,390) (1,231) 23,326) (281) (337) (3897) (197) (37,669)
Atthe end of the RREER
reporting period 12,520 1,788 150,291 29 20 2,869 9,754 177,744
Reconcliation of REESE-
carying amount - HE-ECCE
year ended tZR=1-8
31 December 2022 5§
Atthebegining ot SNEREA]
reporting period 12,520 1,788 150,291 295 21 2,869 9,754 177,744
Adattions hE 3,014 432 3,324 110 160 942 - 7,982
Disposals HE - - (467) - - - - (467)
Acquired through FRkENELT
acauistion of a BE (M)
subsidiary (Note 32) - 100 - - - - - 100
Depreciation i (6,276) (1,148) (28,608) (170) 67) (2,876) 473) (39,618)
At the end of the REEHR
reporting period 9,258 1,172 124,540 235 320 935 9,281 145,741
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)  13. 1% * B E R &% @)

Right-of-use

assets Office Plant and Fumiture Motor ~ Leasehold

(Noteii) ~ equipment ~ machinery and fixtures vehicles  improvements Buildings Total
FREEE

(W) WA%E  HEREE  GAREE RE RENRRE ¥ it
RMBOOD  RWBOD  RVBOD  RWBOD  RVBOO  RMBODO  RVBOOO  RMBOOD
ARETT  ARMTn  ARETT  ARETR  ARMTR ARETR ARRTR ARETR

At3iDecember 2021 R-FZ-%

t-B=1+-H
Cost i 19238 504 238517 1,298 1914 10,115 9951 286,134
Accumulated depreciaion 23T7E (6,718) (3.253) 88,286) (1,009) (1,687) (7.26) (197) (108.390)
Netcaryngamount ~ BEZFE 12,620 1,788 150,291 2% 21 2,869 9,754 177,144

At31December 2022 RZEZZ%

TZAZ1-8

Cost A 14,383 5,625 241,045 1,408 2,074 11,067 9,951 285,543

Accumulated depreciafion 237 (5,125) (4453 (116,505) (1,173) (1,754) (10,122 ©70) (139,802

Net carrying amount EHEE 9,258 1,172 124,540 235 320 935 9,281 145,741

Notes: B 5T -

[0) The Group has exercised the purchase options and transferred certain (i) AEERBEE-E-—F+-A=+—HLHF
assets from right-of-use assets to plant and machineries at the end of EEHAERSITEEEEEREMKE TEE
the lease terms during the year ended 31 December 2021. HEAREEEREHE RS -

(i) At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group’s property, iy M-BE-—F+-_F=+—0 KEEYZE-
plant and equipment (excluding right-of-use assets) of approximately BEREE(TREFERAEELEE) NEEELD
RMB22,960,000 (2021: RMB25,038,000) was pledged to secure AR®22060,000L (ZE=Z—F: AR
banking facilities (Note 24). 25,038,0007T) B {EIE I - EVSRITRRE (M

F24) -
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

13. % - BMERRE @

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Right-of-use assets

Extension and termination options

The lease contracts of leased properties contain extension or
termination options. These options aim to provide flexibility to the
Group in managing the leased assets. The extension option of the
leased properties is normally exercised because the Group does
not want to incur additional costs, such as leasehold improvements,
while exercising the termination option is normally unusual unless
the Group could replace the leased properties without significant
cost or acquisition of a new property. The Group seldom exercises
options that were not included in the lease liabilities. During the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of lease contracts for leased
properties contains an extension or termination option, in which the
total lease payment made amounted to approximately RMB5,238,000
and RMB9,178,000, respectively, representing the total cash outflows
for lease during respective reporting periods.

Restriction or covenants

Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval is
obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use assets can only be used by
the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying assets. The Group is also required to keep those leased
assets in a good state of repair and return the leased assets in their
original condition at the end of the lease.

Commitments under leases
At 31 December 2022, the Group was committed to short-term leases
or low-value asset leases of approximately RMB1,832,000 (2021:Nil).

BisE - (48)
(i) FRAEEE
BRI RS

HEMENRESHBSERRKRIERIERE-
ZEREREEAAEERUEENHEEAE
EEAR -HEVENEREEERATIRY
17 BAREETHBBREINA - HlanF
EMERE MAEKRLEEERERTSE
8 BRIEAREE TR DIEE R E KA EH
MENBRATERAEYE - REBRDITE
ABELTHEAEPNEERE -BHE_T_—
FER-ZE-Z—F+=-A=+—HLEFE B
HEMENAEANYREERARKIERE
#-HEPEXMNNEHEERESFNAARE
5,238,0007T & A R #9,178,000 7T * HHE R &
REHANRERS A LREE -

PRl 2k 22 5

RESHEFINES - BrIFESHEAMNILE -
DR REEAEERAREER  BEIEAE
EHERKTEREE - ARENARKEZS
HEEERFNEERE  TREERREE
SEEWEREFRBMRE -

MEAE

R-ZZE-—F+-_A=Z+—H AE@YE
HEERREELEERENAENAARKE
1,832,000 L (=T =——F : ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

(i) It represents development costs of the financial application platform
which were acquired as part of a business combination during the year

ended 31 December 2022.

198 emmsemaRAT 45 2022

U

14. Intangible Assets 14. B EE
e-Financial
Club App Software Total
2HEleR BH et
(Note i)
(BEED)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFT AREF T ARBFT
Reconciliation of carrying IREEHER—
amount — year ended HeE—_Z—-—%F
31 December 2021 TZA=t—HIEFE
At the beginning of the 2R 25 HA )
reporting period - 1,478 1,478
Additions NE - 544 544
Amortisation BN - (744) (744)
At the end of the reporting RERE HR
period - 1,278 1,278
Reconciliation of carrying  BRTEI{E % BR —
amount — year ended BE=-—ZE=—C—
31 December 2022 +ZA=+—-BLEE
At the beginning of the F 1)
reporting period - 1,278 1,278
Additions NE 3,207 1,079 4,286
Acquired through acquisition 1% 18 Ut B8 B B R R1JE 1S
of a subsidiary (Note 32) (MF5E32) 12,647 - 12,647
Amortisation i (296) (818) (1,114)
At the end of the reporting MR & HER
period 15,558 1,539 17,097
At 31 December 2021 WZZEZ—%F
+=ZA=+—H
Cost BN - 2,318 2,318
Accumulated amortisation R E45H - (1,040) (1,040)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 1,278 1,278
At 31 December 2022 R=-Z¥=-Z
+=ZA=+—H
Cost B 7R 15,854 3,397 19,251
Accumulated amortisation g §i (296) (1,858) (2,154)
Net carrying amount BREFE 15,558 1,539 17,097
Note: ffeE -

BeREATANMERAIAREEZE-T ==
ToR=t-RALEFEEREBAFN—HS

#15 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 — &~ —

14. Intangible Assets (Continued)

15.

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the following periods:

Fr_HA=+—HIFE

14. B E=E @)

ti B EERAERAERFY - ZE
WMEERATHIMREREE#E

Development costs — e-Financial Club App 10 years REKRAR—EBleR T+
Software 3 years B =
Investment in an Associate 15. A—EBEEQRZRE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREF T
Unlisted shares, at cost IELETARG - FRACAR 1,000 1,000
Impairment losses HEEE (1,000) (1,000)
(@) Details of the associate at the end of the reporting @ REWMEHROEEQRNFFBENAT -

period are as follows:

Principal place
of business
and place of

Proportion of value of issued/
registered capital held by

Name of associate incorporation the Company Principal activities
AR FREF
TEEEBBR BT
HENTER 1 BR S 3th B EXEENLSH FTEEF
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Renxiao Technology The PRC 8% 8%  Production, research
(Shenzhen) Company and development
Limited* (“Renxiao”) and sales of
intelligent hardware
and cloud platform
products
ABERFEE ORI aale 8% 8% HE - MERIEET
BRAA]([ABEL BEEHERETAE

For identification purposes only

o
AN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

15. A —EHE QXTI Z2ERE &)

15. Investment in an Associate (Continued)

@)

200 &=

(Continued)

Renxiao is a private company and there is no quoted
market price available for its shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group acquired 8% equity interests in Renxiao at a
consideration of RMB1,000,000.

Management of the Group has assessed the level
of influence that the Group exercises on Renxiao
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, and determined that it has significant influence
thereon through a board representation and other
arrangements made. Consequently, this investment
was classified as an investment in an associate.

The Group’s management assessed that the
investment costs of Renxiao would not be recoverable
and recognised full impairment for the balance.

Summarised financial information of Renxiao is set
out below, which represents amounts shown in the
Renxiao’s financial statements and adjusted by the
Group for equity accounting purposes.

@)

(%)

ABERLARE - HBR O L ETSH

BE-FT-XF+-A=+—AL
FE - AEBERKEAR 1,000,000
TE M A B8 8% R A -

HEZT-_—_FR-_TE=-—F+=
A=+ BLFE A&EEEEE
B AEERE ABRTENTZER
E -TRE FREETRERRX
MMERHEMTHEmMELERSE

2 Al ZREESDBRA/N—H
fENRZRE -
AEEEEBFENABRNREN

A AU E] - I R A SR EDRUE ©

ABRZHMBEMBEHN T K
RABHMBEREMTOEE
PEEE At AR A EEAE -

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBEF T
Summarised income statements WA BKRFE
Administrative and other operating 77 & E fth ‘& E =
expenses (6) (6)
Loss and total comprehensive loss & A 18 K & E 184858
for the year (6) (6)
Summarised balance sheet EERERREE
Current assets MBEE 462 468
Shareholder’s equity &% R = 462 468

BEIERBRR AR Fik 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

16. Prepayments, Deposits and Other

16. FE{TFKIH -

BeRHEAER

Receivables IE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T ARBFT
Current portion B 8 &8
Prepayments to suppliers TEHEH B 7 RRIR 535 480
Prepayment for a leased g R ERTENKE
warehouse 897 -
Rental and other deposits HEREMES 16() 1,107 854
Interest receivables from unlisted ~ 3F E A FIESH
corporate bonds JE U FI B 110 -
Value added tax (“VAT”) receivable & U8 A ([HE{EF ) 416 414
Other receivables H fth fE U R IE 16(1)&(ii) 593 1,538
3,658 3,286
Non-current portion FEENER IR 5
Prepayments of acquisition of BEME BEX
property, plant and equipment Bl PACI N 1,489 2,719
Rental deposits HEZS 16(i) 1,296 467
2,785 3,186
6,443 6,472
Notes: fieE -

(i

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of deposits
and other receivables approximated their fair values. These balances
were unsecured and interest free.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold certain
machinery to Shenzhen Puneda Electronic Co., Ltd* (“Shenzhen
Puneda Electronic”) (/&Y T I g2 E-F AR A F]), which is a related
company of the Group at a consideration of approximately
RMB4,268,000 (Note 33). At 31 December 2021, the unsettled
balance of the total consideration to be received from Shenzhen
Puneda Electronic was recognised under other receivables. The
amount had been fully recovered during the year ended 31 December
2022.

For identification purposes only

(i

RZE_—FR-_FT-_—F+=-A=+—8"
Be M EMEKFORNREERE A TEEE
ZEEBRBERREE -

o

REBE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—BLEFE K
SERAAEEBEARFITMEREETHR
ARIHEETHEW - RELHRAR 4,268,000
7T (Mf3E33) R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—81"
BRFERARIIEREES FRIMBRREHRER
FREE RN E MBI TR - 2 EERE
BT F+Z A=+ —HIEFEREKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

16. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 16. EIFRIE - ZERHMEK
Receivables (Continued) IH ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits AEEBMNRE Ze REMERKRE
and other receivables were denominated in the following FEREEN T EBEHE
currencies:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB AR 6,194 6,348
HK$ BETT 249 124
6,443 6,472
17. Financial Assets at FVOCI 17. RAFEFARMGEZE RSN
SREE
The Group’s financial assets at FVOCI comprise equity AEENRATEGAEMEERED
securities which are not held for trading and which the THEERREIIIFIFETSAARAEED
Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to A O Hh 3R A W R TE R N 5% BB R A
recognise in this category. BROREZS -
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E ARBET T ARBFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Listed trading securities IR SEF
— Baidu, Inc. —Baidu, Inc. 619 733
— Bilibili Inc. —Bilibili Inc. 17() 607 1,067
— 3SBio Inc. —3SBio Inc. 6,895 4,943
- Yuexiu Services Group Limited ~ — @B FREEEBRAE 17 1,719 1,626

9,840 8,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

17. Financial Assets at FVOCI (Continued)

The movements of the financial assets at FVOCI are BEAFEFAHEMZARENEMEE
analysed as follows: BEONMT
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREF T
At the beginning of the reporting PR H3 4]
period 8,369
Additions = - 23,653
Disposals e - (11,084)
Changes in fair values recognised 7 £ b 2 T U 25
in other comprehensive income &R HY A F(E & &) 673 (5,173)
Gain on disposals taken BAENDE R
to reserves - 1,116
Exchange realignments b 5 & 3T R 798 (143)
At the end of the reporting period ~ R R4 HiR 9,840 8,369
Notes: B3

i

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold its shares
in Bilibili Inc. as a result of a takeover offer for cash. The shares sold
had a fair value of approximately RMB7,162,000 and the Group
realised a gain of disposal of approximately RMB792,000, which had
already been included in other comprehensive income. This gain of
disposal has been transferred to retained earnings in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity upon disposal.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold its shares in
Yuexiu Services Group Limited as a result of a takeover offer for cash.
The shares sold had a fair value of approximately RMB3,922,000 and
the group realised a gain of disposal of approximately RMB324,000,
which had already been included in other comprehensive income.
This gain of disposal has been transferred to retained earnings in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity upon disposal.

All of the financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in HK$.

HE-TZ - F+-A=+—HIEFE K&
5 3R & W Z 40 H & E A BIlbili Inc. (R1H A
RAF) R - EERODIATFENABAR
#7,162,0007T  AEEEFR L ERFZHAR
#792,0007T « I B &t A H b 2 Uk o 5%
ERENHERERERERSEHR KRR
AR e

BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HILEE X&
ERRSKBENLEERNBFREEES
RARMEG - EERMDOAFENBARE
3,922,0007t  AEBEZR L ERFZHARKE
324,000 WEF AHMEERZE - ZHE
WaREERERERARZZHRZRER
F o

BAFEFAEMTERENEREE
L/{/%TEE-HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

18. Inventories 18. 7 &

2022 2021

—E-CF —EC—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

Raw materials R 21,574 33,184
Less: Write-down provision R T R (3,731) (2,724)
17,843 30,460

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and HE_Z-_—_F+HA=+—HLEFE"

19.

204 =

included in “cost of sales” during the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately RMB91,901,000 (2021:
RMB123,314,000) (Note 7).

A provision for write-down of inventories, net, amounting
to approximately RMB1,007,000 was recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss and included in “cost of sales”
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: reverse of
write-down of inventories, net, amounting to approximately
RMB1,264,000) (Note 7).

Financial Asset at Amortised Cost

The Group acquired an unlisted bond from an independent
third party with principal amount of HK$20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB17,865,000) for 1
year maturity starting from 29 September 2022 at a

19.

HAREQG1,901,000 L (ZFE=—F : A
R #123,314,0007T) MIF EX A E R
BRI ATHEERA] (MHFFE7) °

HEZZS--F+-A=1+—HIEFE "
# A R ¥1,007,000 7T K 17 &8 (B B 15 F
HEN e B R ERILET A S KA
ZEIF - FERERRFEHAR
¥ 1,264,000 7C) (BIE7) °

BREBHERAGTTENSREE

AREBER - EZBLFEF =T WEARLHE
20,000,000 T (HE RO AEARE
17,865,0007T) W EMESF B _Z
T ZFEAAZtHABRFAR—F &

fixed interest rate of 8.0% per annum (2021: principal BEEFEFE80%FTE (ZEZ—F &K
amount of HK$20,000,000, equivalent to approximately % %820,000,000/8 7L (HHE RO AR

RMB16,352,000, for 1 year maturity starting from 23
December 2021 at a fixed interest rate of 12% per annum
(“2021 Unlisted Bond”)). The 2021 Unlisted Bond was early
redeemed at its face value in September 2022.

16,352,0007t) ' B - —F+ = A
—t+ZHRHAN —F REEFHE
12%5 B ([ ZZE=Z—F Ik LmESHD) o
:E:*E?Eim{aﬁﬁ’\_gzzih
AEREmEERTER

2022 2021

—_s=-= —TE - —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETIT

Unlisted corporate bond JE LT RARMES 17,865 16,352
Provision for impairment losses REE B R (591) (272)
Unlisted corporate bonds, net LT RBEFRFRE 17,274 16,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

19. Financial Asset at Amortised Cost

(Continued)

The movements of the financial asset at amortised cost are

analysed as follows:

19. RBERETENSREE @

REHKATENSREEZSOMAT -

2022 2021

—=E-= T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF R AREF T

At the beginning of the reporting e E=R R )

period 16,080 -
Additions nE 18,089 16,352
Redemption i Bl (17,537) -
Provision for impairment losses VEREYRiE e (284) 272)
Exchange realignments ME H, 38 B 926 -
At the end of the reporting period REREHIR 17,274 16,080

The unlisted corporate bond at amortised cost is

RBERAGTENIE LT RAREFTAE

denominated in HK$. JURTE °
20. Contract Assets, Trade and Bills 20. 5N EE EFERRERE
Receivables KWEE
2022 2021
—s-= s
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P e AR®BT T ARETIT
Contract assets BHEE 39,318 55,158
Less: Loss allowances for contract ¥ : & L& EE1BEE
assets - (106)
Contract assets, net BHEETSE 20(a) 39,318 55,052
Trade receivables, from third parties B % =75 ¥ 5 E U718 30,430 51,788
Less: Loss allowances for trade B BSERFIEZ
receivables E B (131) (129)
Trade receivables, net E ZEWFIEFE 20(b) 30,299 51,659
Bills receivables e E & 20(0) 6,395 1,314
Contract assets, trade and bills BHEE  EFEUR
receivables, net IEPNY et e 76,012 108,025

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022 2 05



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

20. 6N EE EFZRWRERE
WEE )

Na.8HNEE
ABHEERAESEREET FRIER
BB SRR EE Y M AR UER
REREF o ZREFIK BEGGE
—RBER—E=2NEA(ZE=—F:
—Z2=@R) AHNEEEEREESH
JE UL SR TE -

20. Contract Assets, Trade and Bills
Receivables (Continued)

20(a). Contract assets
Contract assets represent the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but unbilled for its
services provided for EMS segment. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional, which generally takes
one to four months (2021: one to three months).

Movements of contract assets are as follows: BHEENEFHNOT
2022 2021
—s-= —E——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
At the beginning of the reporting 7R 25 #i %]
period 55,052 55,294
Additions NE 39,318 55,158
Transferred to trade receivables EREE S ERIGR (55,158) (55,294)
Provision for loss allowances TR 1B R - (106)
Written off B 3H 106 -
At the end of the reporting period A 4&5 Hik 39,318 55,052

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the contract assets
are expected to be recovered within 12 months.

2006 emmamRERAT 5 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

20. Contract Assets, Trade and Bills 20. 6N EE EFZRWRERE

Receivables (Continued) WEE @)

20(b). Trade receivables, from third parties Wh).REE=FWEZERKIE
The Group’s business with its trade debtors is mainly AEBHEBESBEBRACESITE
on credit basis and the credit period is ranging from KARERERET TEEHANT
30 to 120 days (2021: 30 to 90 days). At the end 30E120H (ZZE - —4F : 30E 120
of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade H) -RAMEMR HEZRHNE
receivables, net of loss allowance, by invoice date was SR GRIE (IR S IB B E) MR IR
as follows: ST -

2022 2021
- —E-—5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBFIT
Less than 1 month LR1EA 18,139 34,298
1 to 2 months 12218 A 5,086 12,659
2 to 3 months 2Z3fEA 4,113 3,907
Over 3 months HBim31E A 2,961 795
30,299 51,659
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RMER R PENEZEK
of trade receivables (net of loss allowance) by due date SRIE (R BIERE) WERE ST
is as follows: N
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBFIT
Not past due R :eng-t] 29,560 41,242
Less than 1 month past due BEL 1 EA 373 10,417
1 to 2 months past due wEI1 = 2@ A 120 -
2 to 3 months past due wER2 = 3@ A 246 -
30,299 51,659
Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks EBEAEEFEERRKEE S ERK
and loss allowance on trade receivables is included in HE BB EH MO E BT ARER
Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. BB HRERMTESS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

rEBIEIRRMEE @)

20(c).Bills receivables

20. Contract Assets, Trade and Bills
Receivables (Continued)

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, all bill receivables are
interest-free and guaranteed by banks in the PRC and
have maturities of less than six months.

20(d).The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets,
trade and bills receivables were denominated in the

following currencies:

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

=__

20. 6N EE EFZRWRERE
WEE )

20(c). B R
NZEBEZ—FER_FE-—F+=_f
=+—A FEREKEELAEE
AP EMRITERRBREA DR
~NER -

N AEEANEE BHRKFHEAR
ENRBENREE T E%EHE :

2022 2021
—_s=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
RMB AREE 73,887 107,952
UsD ETT 2,125 73
76,012 108,025
21. Cash and Cash Equivalents 1. RERREEEY

2022 2021

—E-CF —_EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETF T
Cash at banks RITIRNE 113,130 50,569
Cash on hand FHERE 68 52
Less: Pledged bank deposits A BERRRITER (1,696) (1,695)
Cash and Cash Equivalents BeMREEEY 111,502 48,926

At 31 December 2022, bank deposits amounting to
approximately RMB1,696,000 (2021: RMB1,695,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities (Note 24) granted to the

Group.

208 emmamRERAT 5 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e RMEE @
Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

21.

22.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:

21.

BeERBAEEZEEY @

AEERe AR FEYHEREERS
ERNRITERATIEEE

2022 2021

—s=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET AREFIT

RMB AR 100,272 33,359
usD ET 6,333 4,881
HK$ BT 6,593 12,381
113,198 50,621

Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rate.

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounting to approximately RMB104,652,000
(2021: RMB37,654,000), were deposited with the banks
in the PRC where the remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Government of the PRC.

Trade Payables

The trade payables are unsecured, interest-free and with
normal credit terms ranging from 30-90 days.

At the end of each reporting period, the ageing analysis of
the trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:

22.

RITREERBEEFARTHERNRZZES
FRERENA B

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H A&EER
S MRS EE ML B AR 104,652,000
T (ZT=—%F : ARM37,654,0007T)
FRPBERAMNET mMGEELF
B SPERFBEMAINESIERI KER
HE -

B S ENRIE
BHENFBEBAERT THERIESR
FEBNFI0RENKX -

RERESHR REZEHNEZEN
AN DM

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARET T

Within 1 month 1{EARN 15,899 13,396
1 to 2 months 1Z=21EA 7,759 2,503
2 to 3 months 2Z=3fEA 84 1,546
Over 3 months HBiB3{E A 79 54
23,821 17,499
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR RMEE @)
Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

22, Trade Payables (Continued) 22. B 5 B I ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were AEEESENFENERABUATIE
denominated in the following currencies: Bt E -

2022 2021

—E== T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREET T

RMB AR 22,059 16,803

usD ETT 1,762 696

23,821 17,499

23. Contract Liabilities, Other Payables and 23. 84 &8E  HttENRERE

Accruals FTEA
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T ARMBF T
Contract liabilities eEHNEaE 23(a) 4,180 1,503
Other payables and accruals HihEARIERETEH
Payable for operating expenses HEEHT AR
FE S Fh1E 4177 4,997
Payable for acquisition of property, BREWEWE - BE &
plant and equipment BN - 961
Payable for staff salaries and EREIHERAS
manpower service expenses PR #5552 14,516 14,793
VAT and other tax payables B T K B A JE AN A 18 13,608 11,720
Other payables H b < FOE 297 154
Amount due to the non-controlling & {5t 3E$58 B% A% 58 F0IE
shareholder 23(b) - 1,000
Accruals EsrE R 2,877 1,622
35,475 35,147
39,655 36,650
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

23. Contract Liabilities, Other Payables and EHEE HUENFTERE
Accruals (Continued) n‘f = 8::K¢ )
23(a). Contract liabilities V. ENERE

Contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from the customers for services that have
not been transferred to the customers. The contract
liabilities fluctuated during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 due to fluctuation in sales
orders with advance payments.

The balance at the end of each reporting period is
expected to be recognised as revenue in the next
reporting period. The movements (excluding those
arising from increase and decrease both occurred

AEHNEABERSRETEFOMR
ERE P WA B GRIE - R M
ERWHEMEETERD  #E
TE I FRZE—F+ A
=+ HIEFENEHNEEFRATEE -

EHREHRNERBAHIR T —®|E
HIMERAR KRG RN B REE
AIF 15 RBBEANENBEES (T
BE A — 5 A AR A 3 0 KR

within the same reporting period) of contract liabilities LEHHEE)MAT
within HKFRS 15 are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T AREET T
At the beginning of the reporting PR & HA 47
period 1,503 1,487
Additions wNE 1,570 1,503
Revenue recognised (Note 4) R (HiE4) (1,503) (1,487)
Acquired through acquisition of a & B UL IE — K B A =) g
subsidiary (Note 32) (FF3E32) 2,610 -
At the end of the reporting period R ¥R & B K 4,180 1,503
The contract liabilities at 31 December 2022 and 2021 RZBZZFRZZE-_—F+=H

represented the aggregate amount of the transaction
price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied as of the end of each reporting period. The
Group expects the transaction price at 31 December
2022 and 2021, respectively, allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised
as revenue in one year or less when the obligations are
performed.

St HMANEBEEIREEEZ
REPARABITHNEHNETNR S
BRE - AEBEEAR_ZT=_=F
;rZEZ—F+ZA=+—HHE

EXRBUTEBHNETHNRZEDBG
REEBITHR —FRUNERE
Uk -

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022 211



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

e EERRE @

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

23. Contract Liabilities, Other Payables and

24,

Accruals (Continued)

23(b).At 31 December 2021, the amount due to the non-
controlling shareholder is denominated in RMB,

unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year.
The amount had been fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

23(c). The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract liabilities,
other payables and accruals were denominated in the
following currencies:

23. ENEE  HtENKERE

FTEHR @

BT =—F+=—A=+—8H " [E
IR R R IEIAA R E
AERR - TEEAR—FRNEE-
ZHBEREBEE_S-__F+=H8
=+ —BHIEFEBHLEN -

Be)AEBAaNAE EtENREAR
FEET B RMREE T E%EHE :

2022 2021
—_s=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT
RMB AREE 36,599 34,258
ush EV 1,019 869
HK$ BT 2,037 1,523
39,655 36,650
Bank Borrowings 24, SRITER

The secured bank borrowings are repayable ranging from
within one year to over five years since their inception. At
31 December 2022, the secured bank borrowings carried
weighted average effective interest rate of approximately
5.40% per annum (2021: 5.27% per annum).

At the end of each reporting period, details of the bank
borrowings of the Group are as follows:

EEBBRTEREEEBART —FNR
ERAFUNELEEE- R-_ZT-__F+=-A
=+—8 AE\ERTETIZNETFS
BEERENERLH540% (ZF = —F : £F
K527%) °

W R B - 7 R T 1 B A B
m -

2022 2021

—E-CF —E -

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFT

Secured bank borrowings BEMRITER 8,022 12,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

24. Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The bank borrowings are secured by:

(i)  certain property, plant and equipment with aggregate
net carrying amounts of approximately RMB22,960,000
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB25,038,000), as set
out in Note 13;

(i) pledged bank deposits with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB1,696,000 at 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB1,695,000), as set out in Note 21; and

(i) corporate guarantee provided by the Company.

All banking facilities are subject to the fulfiiment of
covenants, as is commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand. In addition, the subsidiaries’ loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lender the right
at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment
at any time irrespective of whether the subsidiaries have
complied with the covenants and met the scheduled
repayment obligations. Therefore, the entire balance for the
bank borrowings was classified as current liabilities.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and does not consider it probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand repayment so long
as the Group continues to make payments according to
the schedule of the loans. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 34. At 31
December 2022 and 2021, none of the covenants relating
to drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in following currencies:

24, SRITEF )

RITEFIL AT 77 AR

() RZE—_=F+=ZA=+—H ' &
THE BERRKEEMAELNA
R#22,960,000L (ZE=Z—4F : A
R ¥ 25,038,000 7T) HAHIFE13 :

i) RZEBE-Z=ZF+=ZA=+—8"
EERBRTHEREEDENARKE
1,696,000 (ZZE = —F : AR
1,695,000 70) M FE21 &

(i) AADFRHEOBRER -

FARITRENBEETRSHEBIIL
MERZHT TR - [ E AR
BERRw CRIEERENAREX
BE- M MBRANERBEHA
Rk - B TRRARR - TwmiE L
FRBERREREDEEEREMEHR
& Al BB RER B R AR E R » F -
RITEREREBDBERRBDAE -

AEBETHERZELANARBR -
TRAEAEBEERBEETEERIT
MITTRATREITEEMIBRERESIER -
BRASEEERBUERBRNELFFE
HAMEM R _FR T —
F+-_A=1+—H8 #@EEXSRIER
MENRFE -E - BOTEREHREH
SEARBAERE -

AEERITEROREEA T EHHE

2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

RMB AR 4,250 4,750
uUsD ETT 3,772 7,864
8,022 12,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

25. Lease Liabilities 25. HE&E
25(a). The consolidated statement of financial position shows 25(a). EBFH E AR M © AR A BT IS Ak
the following amounts relating to leases: MFMT
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Right-of-use assets (Note 13) FEREEE (FfHaE13)

Properties LES 9,258 12,412
Plant and machineries R 5 Be e A - 108
9,258 12,520
2022 2021
—==-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current portion BN ER &L 5 4,391 5,140
Non-current portion JEBNEREL 5,286 7,553
9,677 12,693
At 31 December 2022, the weighted average effective R-ZEBE-_—_F+-_HA=+—H" 'K
interest rates of the lease liabilities of the Group were EEHEBENMETHERFER
approximately 5.05% per annum (2021: 5.54% per R B5.05% (ZT - —F : FHEX
annum). 5.54%)
A 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts RZBZZFR_ZFE_—F5+=H
of the Group’s lease liabilities were denominated in =+—HA FAEEHEABENER
RMB. BERARKGE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

25. Lease Liabilities (Continued) 25. HE & & @)
25(b).The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the 50b)HEERENSEIANGEBERER
following amounts relating to leases: UM
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—5F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Depreciation charge of right-of FHEEEREER

use assets

Properties LES 6,168 4,173
Plant and machineries B 55 Ba e 108 4,217
6,276 8,390
Finance costs B 3 B AR 687 327
25(c).During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, B HEZT-_—FR-_TE-_—F+=
the total cash outflow for leases were analysed as A=+—HLFE HERSRD

below. REEDHTAT o
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Cash flows used in operating RETHFIARSRE

activities
Expenses under short term leases 2 HIFAE THIA TS EN
in respect of (Note 7): S (EE7) -
— Machineries — WA 17,397 24,383
- Offices, warehouses, production —AZE - BE - £EMEN
plant and staff quarters ETIESE 4,483 3,467

Cash flows used in financing RMETEARERE

activities
— Payment of principal element of —XHHE&EZ A& HD

lease liabilities 5,238 9,178
- Payment of interest elementof ~ —XHEEBEZFEH 5D

lease liabilities (Note 7) (fF7E7) 687 327

27,805 37,355
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eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

26. E L 18

26. Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets
and liabilities relate to the same tax authority.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated financial
statements, the following is the analysis of the deferred

EERVNBEEERBERRE —HHEEE
AT B N A AR RN R
EHRBEEENRBBFLEE -

MEINGAEFBHREMS  BERE
DATLR ¢

taxation:

2022 2021

—_s=-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE E 7,972 2,403
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE (1,215) 2,107)
Deferred tax assets, net RIEFIEE EF58 6,757 296

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax assets (liabilities)
were as follows:

Rights-of-use

assets and

Contracts lease
assets liabilities

fEREs

ER

fHEE  HERE
RVBOW  RVBOXO

RASERETEREE (BE) HESHIT

(Accelerated/
decelerated

Tax  Government tax

losses grants  depreciation Others Total
(1) /HE

HERR  HRRY  RENE Rt )
RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBODO  RMBOOD

AREFL  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 o
-f-8 [1679) (163) - 1965 (“0) 768 665
(Charged) Credted to profitorloss - M4 BEM (MB) 85 (1,031) (39 - 1017 30 (768) (369)
At 31 December 2021 and R-E--E+-F=+-BRk
1 January 2022 “E-C&£-F- (2,906) (19) - 3,042 35 - 26
Acouired through acquistion of s EBNE-FIHE A (132)
subsidiary (Note 32) - - 3,118 - - - 3,118
Credited (Charged) to the e ERTES (Hk)
proft orloss 2514 (3) 1,052 (191) (3) 40 3,43
At 31 December 2002 RZZZZF+ZA=+-H (39 (229) 4170 2,851 317 4 6,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

26. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

The Group had undistributed earnings of approximately
RMB104,450,000 (2021: RMB106,849,000) at 31
December 2022, which, if paid out as dividends, would be
subject to tax in the hands of the recipient. An assessable
temporary difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has
been recognised as the parent entity is able to control the
timing of distributions of dividends from the PRC subsidiary
and is not expected to distribute these profits in the
foreseeable future.

26. IIE FE B IH (@)
RZBEZZF+ZA=+—H ' K&H
KB &R AR E 104,450,000 (=
T - —4F: AR¥106,849,0007T) *
ERIREIRS - AW B ASMTIIE -
JERRERBEZETHE  ERERRE
ERBEE RAAT AR EBEME
HIZR B H A BB A A0 KRB AR
BIES TR BRSO EZEFNE -

27. Deferred Government Grants 27. IETE R BY

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
Current portion BIERER 2 4,088 4,077
Non-current portion SEBNHAER o 14,917 15,999
19,005 20,276

Movement of assets related government grants: BB NEMEENEES
RMB’000
ARETF T
At 1 January 2021 R-_E-_—F—HF—H 13,102
Received during the year FRNFTIR 11,738
Credit to profit or loss A= (4,564)

At 31 December 2021 and R-B-_—5+=-A=+—-HEK

1 January 2022 —E--—f—H—H 20,276
Received during the year FAFTI 3,110
Credit to profit or loss FFABE (4,381)
At 31 December 2022 R=-B-Z=_H5+=RB=+—8 19,005

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
government grants have been received for the purchase of
certain property, plant and equipment.

BE-_ZT_—_#r-_ZFT-_—F+=-A
—t+t-—BLEE HREEETYUE B,
ENEREWEBFEE -
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e MR RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

28. Share Capital and Share Premium 28. BA K BB =E
Number
of shares Nominal value
RO EE HE
’000 HK$’000
Fi AT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each B EiRR0.018 T 100,000,000 1,000,000
Number Nominal Share Nominal Share
of shares value premium value premium
gk | HfE RiaE EE RAEE
'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Tk TET AT ARETT ARETR
(approximate) (approximate)
(4) (#4)
Issued and fully paid: BRARAR:
At 1 January 2021, RZE--¥-A-B-
31 December 2021, “E--E+-fR=+-H-
1 January 2022 and ZZZZ§-A-BR
31 December 2022 ZEICETZA=STH 250,000 2,500 109,640 2,250 98,676

218 emmaERERAT 15 2022
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

29, # &

B ERRMIEE (@0

29. Reserves

29(a).Other reserve

Other reserve represents the combined share capital
and capital reserve of the companies comprising the
Group, after elimination of inter-company transactions
and balances at 31 December 2022 and 2021
in relation to the Company’s reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) underwent in previous reporting
periods.

29(b).Statutory reserve

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the profit
after tax (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior
years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holders.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.
A PRC company is required to appropriate an amount
of not less than 10% of statutory profits after income
tax to statutory surplus reserves, prior to distribution
of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company
may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate
sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50%
of its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves
shall only be used to make up losses of the entity,
to expand the entity’s operations, or to increase the
capital of the entity. In addition, the entity may make
further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve
using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions
of the board of directors.

29(c).Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
foreign currency translation as set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

29(d).Financial assets at FVOCI reserve

Financial assets at FVOCI reserve comprises the
accumulated gains and losses arising on the change
in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI that have been
recognised in other comprehensive income.

29(a). HL At £ 45

RZEZZFR=ZZFZ—F+=A1
=+—A HitvFEEEEAKEASEH
MARIKEHEEEANQARMRAR
REBEREHEER ([EEH]) 2

MAEARERE PR AR B AN -

29(0). 5% 7E & #8

REDEEMERBRE  FEZMA
AR MAERFEE AEL BT IRAT
AREBHESAEATYBHRERAMER
RIBR R &R (R BEFEMN R
BER)EBENE T EERETIRE
Ho-MBEEEREHORISETENM
B -ABRARRDIREERIFE
KT8 % FIAT - BEETDRTE
REEZEEFI0NNESEEEATR
HEE BEATRMBHEENEERE
5T A AN 50% 85 - AN R R AL E
IFEE - EFRBRERERNTE
WEREE BErxEREEENLMN
TRER N BRABBEES
*&%ﬁ'ﬁ W B E T & R F
WIS BEREE -

HY 18 ‘ﬂmh}

29(c).bE % & &

INERECIRIBARE T BRERWE2
Frel st AN IR R 2 2 5T R %
SRR o

QR AFEFAHMEEZE R E

MEREERR

BAVFEFARMEE RSN SR
BERBERRABRERER It
DEENAHE2EKEBERNEA
FiE Jr)\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁl S EMEE
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

30. HBRE&RER

30. Other Cash Flow Information

30(a).Cash generated from operations Na).BEREELENRE
2022 2021
—==-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREET T
(Loss) Profit before tax BRA AT (B51R) & A (7,566) 12,325
Depreciation e 39,618 37,665
Amortisation B 1,114 744
Bank interest income FEUWA (1,159) (649)
Interest income from unlisted FELMEEESFHTEMHA
corporate bonds (1,571) -
Dividend income BB UL A (205) -
Finance costs B 75 B AN 1,203 1,216
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE - BE X
and equipment, net REEE - T8 467 1,580
Government grants T B (4,381) (4,564)
Changes in fair value of financial BRAFEFABERD
assets at FVTPL TREEN A TEES - 1
Provision for (Reversal of) GFERE(BE)ZE - F8
write-down of inventories, net 1,007 (1,264)
Impairment losses on financial assets ©REEN A HEE
and contract assets A E R 290 240
Gain on bargain purchase arising from U & — I B A 7] 2 %18
the acquisition of a subsidiary g alg (2,133) -
26,684 47,294
Changes in working capital: EEEENE
Inventories T8 11,610 (4,051)
Contract assets, trade and AHEE BIREERK
bills receivables IR 37,327 (37,511)
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - me REMER
other receivables FIE (1,584) 5,225
Trade and other payables B 5 K E b FIE 2,222 (983)
Contract liabilities, other payables AHEE - HtENRIER
and accruals FERTE A 395 8,612
Cash generated from operations BREEEENRS 76,654 18,586
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

30. HMBR & RER @
b EREHEENE BHIR

30. Other Cash Flow Information (Continued)
30(b). Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities are as follows:

AEBRSBEDNESFBLT

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITER HESE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT ARBTTT
For the year ended BE-_E—_—
31 December 2022 TZA=+—HBLEE
At beginning of the year REH 12,614 12,693
Net cash flows REMFE
Repayments of bank borrowings & & RT3 (5,179) -
Payment of principle element of S NHEGEBEAREHBD
lease liabilities - (5,238)
Interest paid AT AE (516) (687)
Other non-cash movements HinJEH & #
Exchange difference MEH ZER 583 -
New leases e - 2,222
Interest expenses BRI 516 687
At the end of the year REF R 8,022 9,677
For the year ended BE-Z-—F%
31 December 2021 TZA=+—-BLEFE
At beginning of the year REH 13,937 6,491
Net cash flows HemFE
Proceeds from bank borrowings R 178 Z AT 1S 2IE 19,245 -
Repayments of bank borrowings (B i& 1T (20,342 -
Payment of principle element of X NHE&BEAE LD
lease liabilities - (9,178)
Interest paid BAFE (889) (327)
Other non-cash movements HEMIERSEH)
Exchange difference bE 3 =5 (226) -
New leases EE - 15,380
Interest expenses FEFZ 889 327
At the end of the year RER 12,614 12,693
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

31. Non-Controlling Interests

The following table shows the information of the Group’s
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) during reporting periods.
The summarised financial information represents amounts
before inter-company eliminations.

31.

FERER
TRIRRE 8 B IR RS ([3F
R AR BB ERNBEDE
ERARAMEHEATOSHE -

At 31 December 2022/Year ended 31 R-ZB-_—_F+-A=+—-8/
December 2022 or period from the Acquisition BE_F_—_F+=-A=+—H
Date to 31 December 2022 LtEERWEBRPZE T _-_—_F
+ZA=+—HH™
Chongqing Regan
Xinken Financial
Technology Information Total
EEGEERMNE EREBEER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®Tr AR¥®T=R
Non-current assets FRBEE 18,850 19,840 38,690
Current assets MEEE 27,898 3,507 31,405
Non-current liabilities FEmEBaE (113) - (113)
Current liabilities mEEE (6,232) (8,028) (14,260)
Net assets EEFE 40,403 15,319 55,722
NCI % FEEERRER % 30% 40%
Carrying amounts of NCI FEREZNVIRAE 12,121 6,127 18,248
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTr AR®Tx AR®Tx
Revenue and other income ez B H b U A 44,656 2,780 47,436
Expenses =53 (38,040) (2,736) (40,776)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRF N EER SRR
income for the year 6,616 44 6,660
Profit and total comprehensive A FE 1R IR R PE A s T
income for the year attributable to & 2 B W 5 4258
NCI 1,985 17 2,002
Net cash flows from (used in): AT & ETE (FTA)
HEeERE FRE
Operating activities & EEE 13,366 4,608 17,974
Investing activities REES (1,266) (3,228) (4,494)
Financing activities BLE R E (175) - (175)
Net increase in cash and cash HehkReEEYH
equivalents L N 11,925 1,380 13,305
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

31. Non-Controlling Interests (Continued) 31.

At 31 December 2021/Year ended 31

FEER R @)
R=-—ZB=-—-H+=-A=+—-8/

December 2021 BE-_F-_—_f+=-A=+-—H
IEFE
Chongging
Xinken
Technology
BEEERE
RMB’000
ARMBFT
Non-current assets EMEEE 27,285
Current assets mENEE 23,879
Non-current liabilities e TEUN=F = (2,252)
Current liabilities mENBE (15,126)
Net assets BEFE 33,786
NCI % FEVERR IR % 30%
Carrying amounts of NCI IR R REE 10,136
RMB’000
AREEF T
Revenue Wz B oAb U A 49,520
Expenses 53 (40,081)
Profit and total comprehensive income for 4 )35 F| [ % T8 U4 25 42 58
the year 9,439
Profit and total comprehensive income for 4 R IEFE AX i &5 FEAE & F1 e 2 T R & 48 51
the year attributable to NCI 2,832
Net cash flows from (used in): ITEIEME(FA)R&REFE :
Operating activities (e EB) 18,040
Investing activities WEEH (18,001)
Financing activities BEEE 7,711
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R& RIRE&EEBEWH
Pl 7,750

The financial results for the Group’s NCI for the year ended
31 December 2022 included the share of financial results of
Regan Financial Information since the Acquisition Date (Note
32).

AEBEFZEREGREBEE_T -
T AT HLEFENUKEEERRE
B R BE B HA R A B (b B AR B TS A R A B
T (5E32) °
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Year ended 31 December 2022 &t F —F — —#+ - H=+—HI F/F

32. Acquisition of a Subsidiary 32. WiE— BB AR

On 25 July 2022, Wanhai Big Data (the “Purchaser”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with Regan
Shiye Group Co., Ltd.* (EREBEXZ S B B R A7) (the
“Vendor”) and Regan Financial Information (the “Target”)
(together, “All Parties”), pursuant to which Wanhai Big Data
conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell 60% of the registered share capital of
the Target at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB7,032,000 (the “Acquisition”), which enable the Group
to diversify and expand its business. On 14 October 2022,
All Parties and Wanhai Jinyuan, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a supplemental agreement
(the “Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant to which, among
others, All Parties agreed to amend the Purchaser from
Wanhai Big Data to Wanhai Jinyuan.

On 3 November 2022, the Acquisition was completed and
Regan Financial Information has become a subsidiary of the
Group since then.

Regan Financial Information is principally engaged in
provision of Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services in the PRC.

Details of the Acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 July 2022 and 8 November 2022.

The Acquisition constituted a business combination and
had been accounted for using the acquisition method under
HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations” as set out in
Note 2.

The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling

interest at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquiree.

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

32, I iE — R B 2 7 (@)

AT 8Lt 2 (B e P U B8 & B N P
BERENSE  ARRKE A HERL

32. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

The following summarises the consideration paid and the
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as

well as the amount of non-controlling interest recognised at

the date of acquisition:

FFEREETER

RMB’000
AREF T
Consideration, at fair value: RE BAFE:
Cash paid BEfERE 7,032
RMB’000
ARET R
Recognised amounts of identifiable TR EER
assets acquired and liabilities FREEBn
assumed: EREReHE:
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE KR 100
Intangible assets EmEEE 12,647
Deferred tax assets REREEE 3,118
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEEY 663
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EWRIA 5,316
Tax recoverable Bk e 8 141
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b FIE (4,100)
Contract liabilities BREE (2,610)
Total identifiable net assets, AR EEFEAE  BATES
at fair value 15,275
Non-controlling interests R ER (6,110)
Gain on bargain purchase arising from WE—-RHMBATEENZEBE RS
the acquisition of a subsidiary (2,133)
7,032
Net cash flow on acquisition of WiE—RMBATMN
a subsidiary: ReRETFHE:
Net cash acquired from the subsidiary WM B AR ESMNIE S FE 663
Cash consideration paid BEfRE (7,032)
(6,369)
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & £

e RRMEE @

32. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

226 @

The total transaction costs of approximately RMB1,681,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred and
included in administrative and other operating expenses for
the year 31 December 2022.

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer (the “Valuer”) to provide assistance
in determining the fair value of the assets and liabilities of
Regan Financial Information in accordance with HKFRS
13. The Valuer has reviewed the methodologies, the key
valuation parameters and business assumptions adopted.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
approximately RMB2,133,000 arising from the Acquisition
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the gain on bargain purchase is mainly
attributable to the immediate cash realisation and the
Group’s capability in negotiating the terms of the Acquisition
in favour of the Group with the Vendor. The gain on bargain
purchase has been reassessed by the management of the
Group on the Acquisition date.

Since acquisition, the acquired business has contributed
approximately RMB2,734,000 and RMB44,000 to the
revenue and results of the Group, respectively.

If the business combinations effected during the year ended
31 December 2022 had been taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue and net loss for the Group
would have been approximately RMB271,606,000 and
RMB9,259,000, respectively.

BEIERBRR AR Fik 2022

P oE - CFEF A= —HIEE

32. Wi — BB AR @)

W EE X 5 Pk AR 4858 £ A R 1,681,000
TEMRRESEFGR TREEZS
T+ A=+ —HLEFEFAITH
FEAEERYE -

ARREEC BB HEN ([{HER))
BEREBEEEV B RELERFE1IRETE
EREREENEERABANAFE-
HEMDSBRRARABOTE  BREE
SHNEBRR -

REBEREBEE_T__F+=-A
T+ HLEFENGRABRRA  BR
RBEBEHEEENZEBEREZOAR
#2133,0007C c R AREER A HE
HEBBUES FEREANNBESE
BEAEENEFATHA BHEHE
PN EREERNED - HEBEE RS
BEAEERWEBEHBETGE -

BWEEBEUAR  TREBEEXEBESR A
AREBFBOHARK2734,000T AR
#5 44,000 TTH U 25 I 2245 -

WRHEE T -_—_F+=-A=+—H1t
FEEBMEBEGHNEYIEELE A
AEBMNKERFEEEDNNABAR
#& 271,606,000 7T & A R % 9,259,000 7T ©
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33. Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following related parties transactions.

(a) Related party transactions
Transactions between the group entities have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed.
During the reporting periods, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related parties.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, they

3B.EHAIRZ
BRUSERAMBERRE MBS FRE

M5, ERN REEE T WES
%5

(a) BEEEARS

SHERCRANXZENEA AR
R iH - BORBRE - NS M
AREEMBERABTETTATERR
5o ARBAEERR ENEAF
PERNEAKEERENDN K

are under normal commercial terms that are fair and

reasonable and in the best interests of the Group.

BT L -

Name of the related company Nature of transaction 2022 2021
ek NI REME —EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBETTT
Shenzhen Puneda Electronic (Note i) Sales of machinery - 4,268
RN EREEF () S M
Shanghai Regan Asset Management Provision of Financial 39 -
Co., Ltd.* (“Regan Asset Application Platform and
Management”) (Note ii) Platform Maintenance
Services
FEEREEEEERAA RHSBERTER
(BEREEER) (5L A KEERT
Shanghai Regan Insurance Brokers Provision of Financial 1,730 -

Co., Ltd.* (“Regan Insurance
Brokers”) (Note ii)

FHERRBRELER AT
(BREBE ) (K FEi)

Application Platform and

Platform Maintenance

Services
RHEREATAR

T & HERTE

Notes:

B aE -

(i) Shenzhen Puneda Electronic is a related company of the Group (i)
which is controlled by the non-controlling shareholders of

Chongging Xinken Technology.

(i) Regan Asset Management and Regan Insurance Brokers are (i)
the related company of the Group which are controlled by the

non-controlling shareholders of Regan Financial Information.

* For identification propose only

R AR BT AR MR AT -
S

HEERER

FHOIF PR A AR R ]

EREAEEERERRBREBLR/AKHE
BB AR mERTEME BRI RE

AT
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33. B AR S )

33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, representing amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements, is as follows:

(b) TEEEABSHMH
AEETEERABHFMIED AR
RAEERETERHEE (NERE
MRS EE T

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETF T

Salaries, discretionary bonus, e WIEEL  2UR
allowances and other benefits-in-kind ~ E #h Z #71& F 6,347 5,914

Contributions to defined contribution ARG S K

plans 118 81
6,465 5,995

The remuneration was based on the terms mutually
agreed between the Group and the related parties.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives 34. i EMREEEEREEK

and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
financial assets at FVOCI, financial asset at amortised cost,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, other payables and accruals,
bank borrowings and lease liabilities. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bill
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been

AEENTIEZERTABSTERZAFER
ARMEEREN DR EE  REHX
AT ENEBMEE  2E ME MR YK
B HERRTER ReRReEHED
H At JE A FRIB R BT R  IRITIER K
HERE ZFeRMTANTIZAENE
RAFENZERSERETES 4K
EEAEEREAMEREERAE NE
5 WK IR K B W R B A KB 5 B 5K
HOHERKREELE -

TRMTAMNSHRRERNIATER :

applied to the line items below:

2022 2021
—E=-= —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T ARBFIT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEEAHEMETE
WHNeREE 9,840 8,369
Financial assets at amortised cost: B HEKATENSREE
— Financial asset at amortised cost — R AT ER
TRLEE 17,274 16,080
- Trade and bills receivables — B RWRIBERERER 36,694 52,973
— Deposits and other receivables — e REMEWRGIE 3,105 2,859
— Pledged bank deposits — BEMEITER 1,696 1,695
— Cash and cash equivalents —RBeNREEEY 111,502 48,926
180,111 130,902
Financial liabilities EA =N
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REER A ENERHEE:
- Trade payables —B S ENHIE 23,821 17,499
— Other payables and accruals —HihERRIB R EAE A 13,418 12,731
— Bank borrowings —IRITIE R 8,022 12,614
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 9,677 12,693
54,938 55,537
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives  34. i EREE B E R BX @

and Policies (Continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are market risk, (including price risk, interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
directors of the Company review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group also monitors the market price risk arising
from all financial instruments.

(a) Pricerisk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
financial assets at FVOCI amounted to approximately
RMB9,840,000 (2021: RMB8,369,000). The
management of the Group manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks and different return profiles. The sensitivity analysis
has been determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk. At the end of the reporting period, if the fair
values of the financial assets at FVOCI had been 10%
(2021: 10%) higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s pre-tax results would be
increased/decreased by approximately RMB984,000
(2021: increased/decreased RMB837,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI.
The Group’s sensitivity to equity price has not changed
significantly from the prior year.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the fair values
of the financial assets at FVOCI had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to equity price risk in existence at that
date. The stated changes represent the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the fair
value of the financial assets at FVOCI over the next
12 months after the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the year ended 31
December 2021.

230 emmaERERAT 5 2022
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B RPAWT ANEENEEAE
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(a) EHXEK
REBRZAFEFAEME2EUY
EHEREETRHANRAZELY
AR #9,840,0007T (Z & = — E
AR ¥ 8,369,000 7T ) A E (B L A
KEBE EE&E}@”&%ETHH
RAREHRAILELAE  REZ I
[E B o BRNE T B IR IR AR AR B A%
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AFEFAEMEEREZNEME
ENQXAFELA THEI0% (ZF

Z—F 1 10%) * mFTA E M EHIR
B BASEMNRBIAIEER
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MEEMNQATFELS ML/ B
#ANREE984,000T (ZF = —4F ¢
# 50, w A A R #837,0007T) © A&
EEYUBRABRNBREHREFL
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(a

(b)

Price risk (Continued)

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the price risk
because the exposure at 31 December 2022 and 2021
does not reflect the exposure for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash at
bank net off bank borrowings with floating interest
rates of approximately RMB105,108,000 (2021:
RMB37,955,000) at 31 December 2022. The Group
currently does not have a policy to hedge against the
interest rate risk as the management of the Group
does not expect any significant interest rate risk at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s pre-tax results would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB1,051,000 (2021:
increase/decrease RMB380,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
stated changes represent management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting
period. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

In the opinion of the management of the Group,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent interest rate risk because the exposure at
31 December 2022 and 2021 does not reflect the
exposure during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

4. BEEREEEZERBEER @

(a) EHEEBE @)
REBEBRERLE BWRENLNIT
TREEBERRER BRAZT__F
rZEZ—F+ZA=+—HHERA
it AMBE_ST__FR_Z
&+ A=t+—BLFEMREE -

(b) F= = fx
AEBRAMEXEGHMAENT S
BRETEE-_Z-_F+ -8

=T -BAAEERRITORSIG
FEBRTERREEABHARY

105,108,000 (ZZEE=-—F: AR
#37,955,0007T) B8 - ANE&EE B A
WEH PN ERBROBEK  BAR

EREEERER T -_—_FN -
T o —F+ - A=+ —HWELNM
BEAFERR -

RIRERR - WFIE EFA K THE1%
MmATA EtEHRFTE  AIARE
B BR T AT EE B MR A
R#1,051,0007C (Z T = —F : #%
hn,/m A AR #380,0007T) ©

EE LR E D TR R AR

BENRERRELELE TERE
ARERFENSRITANFER
Bro FTIE B BIEEREHMERET
—FEREHERABILEBRANE

BALED  ZHMHEBRE-T
——F+-A=+—BLFENHA
CESITECR

AEEERERS  BEEHNL

TRERBEMNEXRRE BAZZ
TFERZE—F+ZHA=1—
HRRBRIETRBMEE T ==
- —F+_A=+—HItF
ErRER -
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(c)

232 pgmw

In addition, the Group’s financial instruments measured
at amortised cost are considered not to materially
expose to fair value interest rate risk at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in
RMB, USD and HK$.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the
Group are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities
and therefore exposed to foreign currency risk. The
carrying amounts of those financial assets and financial
liabilities are analysed as follows:

34. M EREE BB RBE @
(b) @K &)
BEgh

(c)

AEBERBHEKATFENS
BMTEWRANR SR _=F
T+ - A=+ BV ERRE
RAFEFERR -

A
FEBNZFEEAARE
RAETTAME -

ETT

AEEETSREERSBAEN
AR I E R ) B LS R
WEHE - B E AN E BB o RS
SRHEERSBEMOEEESD I
mF -

2022 2021
—E-= —FET - —4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AREET T

Usb EP 1,896 (4,240)
HKS$ BT 102 100

At 31 December 2022, if the relevant financial currency
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the USD
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s pre-
tax results for the year would have been approximately
RMB95,000 lower/higher (2021: RMB212,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
difference on the translation of USD denominated
contract assets, trade and bills receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and bank borrowings.

At 31 December 2022, if the relevant financial currency
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the HK$
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s pre-
tax results for the year would have been approximately
RMB5,000 (2021: RMB5,000) lower/higher mainly as a
result of foreign exchange difference on the translation
of HK$ denominated cash and cash equivalents and
other payables.

BEIERBRR AR Fik 2022
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to Group’s exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes in foreign currency
represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the
period until the next annual end of the reporting period.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk because the exposure at
31 December 2022 and 2021 does not reflect the
exposure during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets and contract
assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Group’s exposure to credit risk without
taking into account the value of any collateral held or
other credit enhancements.

Contract assets, trade and bill receivables

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group’s performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group limits its exposure to credit risk from contract
assets and trade and bill receivables by establishing
a maximum payment period of three months from
invoice date or respective maturity dates stating on
contracts.

4. VKRR EERE

(c)

(d)
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives  34. i EREE B E R BX @

and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) (d) ESERE k@)

Contract assets, trade and bill receivables
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 21% and
74% (2021: 26% and 83%) of the contract assets was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively, and approximately
52% and 93% (2021: 45% and 86%) of the total trade
and bill receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all contract assets, trade and
bills receivables. The Group measures the ECL on a
combination of both individual and collective basis.

Contract assets, trade and bills receivables with known
insolvencies are assessed individually for impairment
allowances and are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
prepayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments.

ECL is also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and
applying the ECL rates to the respective gross carrying
amounts of the receivables.
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives  34. i EREE B E R BX @

and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) (d) ESERE k@)

Contract assets, trade and bill receivables
(Continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide
range of clients and the contract assets, trade
and bill receivables are categorised by common
risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The contract
assets relate to unbilled services and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the ECL rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets. The Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL for contract
assets, trade and bill receivables and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
to reflect the effects of existing market conditions as
well as forward looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. There was no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BREE - BHRWEFIEK
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AEBMNEFPARBABRZNEFAE
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

Contract assets, trade and bill receivables
(Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the Group recognised loss
allowance of approximately RMB131,000 (2021:
RMB235,000) on the contract assets, trade and bill
receivables. The movement in the loss allowance
for contract assets, trade and bill receivables is
summarised below.

(d) EERB @&
BHEE  BHRKFEK
FEU IR (48)
RZE-_—_HF+=-_A=+—8"
AEERENEE B HEKRFE
MERZEBERABEBEOAR
131,000 (ZE-—F: AR
235,0007T) cAHEE B HEK
HEREREENEBBEZLEN
R

2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Contract assets BAIEE

At the beginning of the reporting R R HA A
period 106 106
Amount written off MiEE (108) -
At the end of the reporting period REEER - 106
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives  34. i EREE B E R BX @

and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) d) EER @

Contract assets, trade and bill receivables
(Continued)

BREE BHRYWFIARK
FEI % ()

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
Trade and bill receivables B ZEMIBR FEY 5
At the beginning of the reporting RIRE AT
period 129 165
Increase in allowances BN 2 -
Amount recovered B U el 458 - (36)
At the end of the reporting period REE R 131 129

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, in the opinion of the
Company’s directors, there was no significant credit-
impaired trade receivables.

Impairment losses on contract assets, trade and bills
receivables are presented as “impairment losses on
financial assets and contract assets” in the consolidated
profit or loss. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the impairment allowance account
for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line
item.

Other financial assets at amortised costs

The Group’s other financial assets at amortised costs
included deposits and other receivables, unlisted
corporate bonds, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents. The impairment loss of other
financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured
based on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month ECL is
the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECL.

RZEZ_FR_F=-_—F+=A1
Zt—H ARREBEERE E5H
JEURGRIBI EEXZERE °

EREE EHRUFALELRE
BEROREEBRRGEABRETIRS
[ERMEERAREEREEE -8
— IR U IR R M B B - 52 R0R
15 B FE WK IR B R B 38 PR P o
5 © 75 B EH BY FROR MR RO BE 1R e m]
#EF AR —IHE °

Y27 B8 9 B AN 1 Bl O L A 2 B
BE
AEEZBEHRATENE M D R
BERREGFFMEMBUR L
mARES S HERERITERA
RBEENRCEEY - RBHKA
ATEMEMEREENRERRKT
RE1R2EANEREEEEE -
12EAMEMEEER2HEN
FEERT RemITANENE
i A aEfE 3R B BRI 1218 A A 3
EWEs AT BEEERRARM
REARERNE  BREZHE
HIEEBBRIFLRME -
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eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives  34. i EREE B E R BX @
and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) d) FERE @
Other financial assets at amortised costs 1R H P AN B BR Y B fth 2
(Continued) BE(F)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s RZEZZFR=ZZT-_—F+=A1
management considered the credit risk of deposits —F+—H XEBEEEERAEEX
and other receivables to be low as counterparties have ANE h FE YR IE /Y15 A R R R K -
a strong capacity to meet their contractual cash flow RXSGTERENGENEEHARN
obligations in the near term. The Group has assessed BITEERRENHEERELK R
that the ECL for these deposits and other receivables B12@ A TESEEE  ~AEEF
were immaterial under 12-month expected losses 1t 1 25 77 30 R HL At B LW 3R 1B /9 T8 AR
method. Therefore, the provision for loss allowance ERABEBEFHEZ - At tFE
for these balances was close to zero and no provision MEMNEBARERLT TRER
was recognised. AT B o
In assessing the ECL allowance for unlisted corporate AR ESERATERNIELT A
bond at amortised costs, the Group’s management RIEHMBHERBREER K
considered the probability of default, loss given default, CEEEECERELNIME - EY
exposure at default and other adjustment factors. At 31 B EBEHRRMEMAZRRE -
December 2022, the Group recognised loss allowance RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H &K
of approximately RMB591,000 (2021: RMB272,000) EERZBENATENESREE
on financial asset at amortised cost. The movement TR E BB AR 591,0007T
in the loss allowance for the balances is summarised —E-—F: AR¥272,0007T) °
below. EmrEEREEEnT
2022 2021
—E-CF B
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF ARETT

Financial asset at amortised cost BB A S AR £ A

At the beginning of the reporting RS BT

period 272 -
Increase in allowances BB E 591 272
Amount recovered B O£ (272) -
At the end of the reporting period RIREER 591 272
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives  34. i E MR EE B E R BX @)
and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) d) FERE @
Other financial assets at amortised costs 1R H P AN B BR Y B fth 2
(Continued) BE(8)
The majority of the Group’s pledged bank deposits AEERBLBEEBERITHERLIR
and bank balances are deposited in major financial THEARBEHIRFTERES  BEE
institutions located in the PRC and in Hong Kong, SEEIEHAA CRIEE A5
which are of high credit rating. The management of the FEEEBBHBITERAZEYEF ST
Group does not expect any losses arising from non- JE #9 2E AE AR R B 18 o

performance by these counterparties.

(e) Liquidity risk (e) RBESREMR

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current NEEMBE BT HAERERRTE
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it HRRBESHT K UBRERR
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity MR HENENEEBEERE
requirements in the shorter and longer term. MEERFK

At 31 December 2022, the Group held cash and RZEZZFF+ZA=+—H" 'K
cash equivalents amounting to approximately SEFENRSRReEEMHN A
RMB111,502,000 (2021: RMB48,926,000), that are AR# 111,502,000 (Z = —4F:
expected to be readily available to generate cash AR ¥48,926,0007T) © TEHRAI E 4
inflows for managing liquidity risk. RERANERREBE SRR
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eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

4. REREEBEEREE @

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) RBE SRR (&)

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including orderly realisation of receivables that the
Group considers appropriate and long-term financing
including long-term borrowings and lease liabilities are
also considered by the Group in its capital structuring.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank and cash balances, committed
credit lines available and bank borrowings which
enable the Group to continue its business for the
foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately
RMB2,153,000 (2021: RMB15,000,000) undrawn
banking facilities and the Group’s total drawn banking
facilities amounted to approximately RMB8,022,000
(2021: RMB12,614,000).

The remaining undiscounted contractual maturity

AEBBZRBLERFHFRBDES -

BRAEFERAKBERBEENE
WrEkEHRE (RREHEE)

MAREEREAZBBRET TS
ZRHMERBE -AKEEEEBHE
FRARMWRITRBESESR BEH
AREERLARITEERGERES
BRI - WEASER A R

W-_E-_—_F#+-_A=+—H XK
EERERMBRTHRENAEARE
2,153,000 L (ZE=Z—F : AR
15,000,0007T) * E4REUHIRITRE
wEE 4 B AR 8,022,000 (=
——4F: AR#¥12,614,0007T) °

AEERRERROIFTESZRE

BEOEBRARBRANIHER (R

profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities

at the end of the reporting period, based on the ARBRERNZTAE) BmT -
earliest date on which the Group is required to settle,
is summarised below.
Less than Over 2 years
1yearor Over 1 year but but within
ondemand  within 2 years Syears  Over5 years Total
SME
HREX 122F 2855 LED @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARMTR  AR%TR  AR¥TR  ARETn
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z£+ZA=1-8
Trade payables BOERFE 23,821 - - - 23,821
Other payables and accruals EtENFERESBR 13,418 - - - 13,418
Bank borrowings (Note i RiTtEa (st 8,022 - - - 8,022
Lease liabilties HERE
~ Principal portion K& H5 4,391 4,67 615 - 9,677
- Interest portion -fgE5 390 152 1 - 553
50,042 4,828 626 - 55,491
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rEBIEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

M. VEREREEEERKE @

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(e) REVE S EM (8

Less than Over 2 years
1yearor  Over 1 year but but within
ondemand  within 2 years 5 years Over 5 years Total
SR1F
FRER 122% 255% SENE 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AREBFR  ARETT  ARETn  ARETR
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-ETZA=1-H
Trade payables EUTES: 17,499 - - - 17,499
Other payables and accruals EHERFERESER 12,731 - - - 12,731
Bank borrowings (Note i) [Tt (rsEi) 12,614 - - - 12,614
Lease liabilties BEEE
- Principal portion -K&8n 5,140 3,608 3,89% - 12,693
- Interest portion -flgE5 522 304 104 - 930
48,506 3,962 3,999 - 56,467
Note i: The amounts repayable under a loan agreement that includes M EXmETEAEE FERAEKN
a clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to call AR EMEREXHEEE
the loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” REHFENRER] —@ -sutm
bracket. In this regard, bank borrowings of approximately FORMBEHRNBITIEROAR
RMBS,022,000 (2021: RMB12,614,000) as at the end of #.8,022,0007C (B = —4F : ARK
the financial period have been so classified even though the 12,614,00070) B ANt S48 - BMEARA
directors of the Company do not expect that the lender(s) RIEEV A EHERASTHEERET
would exercise their rights to demand repayment and thus BRER BMHZEERBREER
these borrowings would be repaid according to the following TR A LA TR R R
schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
2022 2021
—sE-—F —T-—F
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Portion Portion Portion Portion
IS rEWH FEE S reEbH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT AREFT
Interest-bearing borrowings STRER
Within 1 year 1FR 4,272 272 4,911 506
Over 1 year but within 2 years 1824 500 173 3,953 266
Over 2 years but within 5 years 2E54F 1,500 371 1,500 444
Over 5 years 5F N+ 1,750 154 2,250 253
8,022 970 12,614 1,469
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

35. Capital Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to
total capital ratio. Total debt and total capital represent total
borrowings and total equity, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. The total debt to total capital ratios at 31
December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

35.

EXEHE

AEEEREEANBREEREAKEZ
SECERAERELZBNEN  UAK
REREK RASFREEMGCHDHERE
B A& - I R R B AR ARE

RERIABEARE AKEXEH
EABRREKNORESE RBRRED
BARHEEENRIERES -

AEBZRBEEHRERNLKETRE
Ko BBBERBEADRIEGEEESR
BRI AHBEEERBEZ N_F
ZFRZE—FF+ZA=+—HH
BEBEHRERLERNT

2022 2021

- S J— = _—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R AREF T

Total borrowings IR

— Bank borrowings —RITER 8,022 12,614
— Lease liabilities —MHEaE 9,677 12,693
17,699 25,307
Total equity HarEL 306,271 297,861
Total debt to total capital ratio BEBHBERLE 6% 8%

The decrease in total debt to total capital ratio from 8%
at 31 December 2021 to 6% at 31 December 2022 was
mainly due to repayment of bank borrowings and lease
liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

36. Fair Value Measurements

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these
financial statements on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of
inputs are defined as follows:

(a

36. AV {EIE

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair

value
At 31 December 2022

UTBHRIRBEEAEYHRELA SR
1BRERLIAFEEBR=MERIA R
RNFEFEHRARZFPHRENRE
FUHREERBEEAAFENEENRAG
ERAFEAERBUEBEAEMSE
EANGBEEHGARBETOE BA
BIEANERIERMT

e F-HR(RFIAH)  AEERFTE
FHARSHRAEEXABERGR
M5 L2 RE CRERE)

s FA-KREEBAMEBREBREMN
S REEXBENEERXAEE
EFENEABE

e F=A(REHH): BEERAEDN
TRIBRBARIE -

(a) RAFEFENEERERE
R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-8 F=R F=R @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR ARETR ARETR ARETT
Assets measured at fair value BATEHENEE
Financial assets at FVOC BATEHAEMZE
hamnspiE
- Listed trading securities - R 5ER 9,840 - - 9,840
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

36. 2 FEFTE @

36. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

(a) Assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

At 31 December 2021

(@

BAVEGAEBNEERAE
()
N_F_—F+-A=1+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ £-8 E=5 @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT ANREFT ARETT ARETR
Assets measured at fair value BATEHENEE
Financial assets at FVOC BATESAEHZENED
- Listed trading securities - SES 8,369 - - 8,369
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 HEE-_—_FR-_ZE-_—F+=
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, A=+—BLt&E — k=
HoEWEER -
(b) Assets and liabilities with fair value (b) ERBEAFEERZEAFE
disclosure, but not measured at fair value FTENEERERS
All other financial assets and liabilities are carried at FrEEMemEERABHUER
amounts not materially different from their fair values at REFREHRN A TFETEERE
the end of each reporting period. BRGETE
37. Commitments 37. 7%
Capital commitments BAREIE
At the end of the reporting period, capital commitments not RMERR ABREEVBRERERE
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were ZERAENT
as follows:
2022 2021
—E-_-F T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R ARETF T
Contracted but not provided for BRI ERBENORIEDZE -

acquisition of property, plant and 5 B 5% 1
equipment

3,207 3,158
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e RMEE @
Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

38. Statement of Financial Position of the 38. A2 B BV B #E AR R R
Company
Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the

statement of financial position of the Company and the
movements in its reserves are set out below:

REBEBEBRBGD > ARBAF BN K
LERBZEZHZ7IMT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Nz ARET T ARETIT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A FRIEE 162,181 148,442
Financial assets at FVOCI AT EFAEMEE
W= mEE 17 9,840 8,369
172,021 156,811
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIE - Ze &
receivables H b e W g IE 245 124
Financial asset at amortised cost LA AT 2/
SREE 19 17,274 16,080
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 45,804 40,794
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEED 6,204 11,937
69,527 68,935
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals JEZTE A 2,596 1,521
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE AT B BB A R FIE 24,484 22,082
27,080 23,603
Net current assets RBEEZRE 42,447 45,332
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERAEAE 214,468 202,143
Share capital & s 28 2,250 2,250
Share premium B& 10 % B 28 98,676 98,676
Other reserves s 38(a) 113,542 101,217
TOTAL EQUITY Hih gz 214,468 202,143

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March

20283 and signed on its behalf by

Li Hao
=
Director

EF

AMBRREBREFER T _=F=
AZtN\BH#ERKERM WAL T

ALTHRERZEE

Xu Shizhen
FtE
Director

EF
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Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

38. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (Continued)

38. A T B B #E AR R 3k (@)

38(a). Movement of the other reserves 38 HibEEEH
Exchange Capital  Financial assets ~ Accumulated
reserve reserve at FVOCl losses
(Note) (Note 29(d))
BRATERA
Eth2Ehe
EXfE  MeREE
B (sr)  (MrEkeo) 2HEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARBTR ARETR  ARETR
At1 January 2021 W-Z-—£—F-R (7826) 155,404 . 29362)
Loss for the year FNER - - - (6,865)
Exchange differences ERES (6,077) - - -
Financial assets at FVOCI BATEG AL
EUENSREE
-~ Changes in fair value taken to - —&f ARE{&#0
reserves AFEEY - - (5,173 -
-Gansondisposal takento  —:f ARABAYH B
reserves - - 1,116 -
- Gains on disposal recycled to  —ZIEZRE B FH
retained eamnings HERE - - (1,116) 1,116
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ
+=R (13,909 155,404 6173) (35,111)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2022 & 2 —FE - —4#+ - A=+—HIFZF

38. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

38. X T B B #E AR R 3k (@)

38(a). Movement of the other reserves (Continued) 38(a) Hftb B E S B (@)
Exchange Capital Financial ~ Accumulated Total
reserve reserve assets at losses
(Note) FVOCI
(Note 29(d))
BRATETA
At 2 EkE
BARE  HemEE
B (W& (WaF2o() e | b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETn ARETn  ARETn  AR¥ETR
At 1 January 2022 RZBZZF-F-H (13,903) 155,404 (5,173) (35,111) 101,217
Loss for the year FRER - - - (6,839) (6,839)
Exchange differences ERZEE 18,491 - - - 18,491
Financial assets at FVOCI BLTEAEM
PEYEREHEE
- Changes in fair value taken to —:T A &#)
reserves AIEES - - 673 - 673
At 31 December 2022 R-B=Zf
+=ZRA=+- 4,588 155,404 (4,500) (41,950) 113,542

Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the aggregated
net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
pursuant to the Reorganisation.

39. Events after the Reporting Period

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, save as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has no significant subsequent events.

M ARBMERFERIEAARREEAK
B BARMEEETE -

39. BEMEER
R-F-—F+-A=+—H% BE

EMBHERREAMM T AREEIN K&
B EmEARESE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TR

Results ¥E

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-CE —E-—% —T-TF —Z-HhE —ZT-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR®ETR

Revenue gk 263,248 353,896 246,531 284,588 236,210
Cost of sales HEMAR (233,865)  (299,916)  (196,123)  (190,560)  (161,946)
Gross profit 7 29,383 53,980 50,408 94,028 74,264
(Loss) Profit before tax BRI (B 18) % A (7,566) 12,325 13,683 35,395 47,229
(Loss) Profit for the year attributable to A<\ & (B518) i@ FI# A A
owners of the Company FEIEE 7 (B51R) m Al (9,079) 7,241 11,736 27,710 40,814
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=-A=t-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

ZE-ZFE —Z--% ZEZ-FF —“T-NF —T-)N\F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Non-current assets FRBEE 183,435 192,980 157,894 122,155 105,740
Current assets MEEE 227,985 208,472 226,413 232,299 115,726
Total assets AERE 411,420 401,452 384,307 354,454 221,466
Total equity BniEE 306,271 297,861 291,931 278,673 148,145
Non-current liabilities EnBEE 21,418 25,659 19,815 16,902 20,940
Current liabilities MEAE 83,731 77,932 72,561 58,879 52,381
Total liabilities BREES 105,149 103,591 92,376 75,781 73,321
Total equity and liabilities EnkBRESE 411,420 401,452 384,307 354,454 221,466
Notes: Bt eE -

(@  The financial figures for each of the three years ended 31 December 2021 @ BEZ-_—F+_A=t+—BHLEZEAFESZF-
as at the respective year-end were extracted from the published audited EFERNVBBEEIREEASEEE FIH 2 EEZ
financial statements of the Group. SR o

()  The financial figures for the year ended/as at 31 December 2018 were (b)) #HE-_Z—N\E+_A=+—HLEFE HR=_ZT
extracted from the prospectus. —N\F+ZA=+—BUBEER e BRER -

The summary above does not form part of the audited  Fyiiff BV IELEBZGEAERE—ID -
consolidated financial statements.
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